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F R O M  T H E  E D I TO R

CONTRIBUTION OF ARTICLES

The Akauntan Nasional welcomes original and previously unpublished contributions which are of inte-
rest to accountants, executives and scholars. Manuscripts should cover domestic or international accounting
developments. Lifestyle articles of interest to accountants are also welcomed.

Manuscripts should be submitted in English or Bahasa Malaysia and range from 2,500 to 5,000 words
(double-spaced, typed pages). They should be submitted in hardcopy and diskette (3.5 inch) form in Microsoft
Word or Lotus Wordpro. Manuscripts are subject to a review procedure and the Editor reserves the right to
make amendments which may be appropriate prior to publication.

Letters to the Editor
A key element in the world of publishing is what readers have to say.

We want to hear from you on just about anything that appears in
each issue of Akauntan Nasional. Why not drop us a line now?
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AN

People in their twenties, thirties and forties are generally carefree. But upon
hitting the big 50, people usually start asking themselves the million-dollar
question :  How much money have I put away for my retirement?

Although Malaysia has a high national savings rate, this does not automatically
guarantee retirement security. Several costly factors eat into our high savings, such
as inflation, growing healthcare costs, increasing life expectancy, rising living costs
and the greater demands and expectations of a modern, affluent society.

Along with growing affluence, a disturbing trend is emerging. People are not only
spending more, but they are willing to dip into their savings. The frequent withdraw-
als from Employees Provident Fund (EPF) accounts are a germane case. In this
month’s issue of Akauntan Nasional, a Universiti Malaya lecturer reveals that the
EPF scheme may fail to provide an adequate safety net for employees during retire-
ment.

Her findings present a rather gloomy picture. Fundamentally, EPF members who
do not plan financially for their old age and depend solely on the EPF retirement
scheme will not be able to maintain their present lifestyles, and worse, may actually
end their days in poverty.

Perhaps the EPF should actively educate its members on how to increase rather
than decrease their retirement monies. One avenue lies in encouraging members to
make higher contributions than the mandatory 11 per cent. In fact, some members
have already instructed their employers to make higher employee contributions on
their behalf. But these forward-looking members are in the minority. It may well be
that the advantages of saving are not apparent to those on the threshold of exciting
new careers. Logically, middle-aged members faced by the spectre of retirement would
be more ardent about retirement benefits compared to their younger counterparts.

The EPF might also reconsider its frequent withdrawal system. Worldwide, pen-
sion fund schemes are mostly designed to result in a capital sum at retirement age,
freeing members from the temptation of early withdrawals. The EPF is one of the
rare few that instituted reform of its withdrawal schemes to cater to the changing
needs and expectations of society. But the EPF cannot lose sight of its primary goal
— ensuring social security through a public pay-as-you-go system.

Governments the world over worry about social security and the need to take care
of an ageing and dependent population. But individuals can mitigate this headache by
adopting a proactive stance for their own future security. Individuals must take charge
of their own financial welfare. Nobody wants to be a burden on future generations
once active employment ceases and monthly salary cheques stop rolling in. The chal-
lenge to us all is to increase rather than erode our retirement pots of gold.

 Editor

Increase the Retirement Pot of Gold
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VISION AND
MISSION

MIA’s Vision

• To be a globally recognised

and respected business

partner committed to

nation-building

MIA’s Mission

• To develop, support and

monitor quality and expertise

consistent with global best

practice in the accountancy

profession for the interest

of stakeholders

Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(Established under the Accountants Act, 1967)

LETTER TO THE EDITOR
Dear Editor,

In the Jan-Feb 2003 edition, I read the article on
Business Zakat and I write to express my concerns
about it.

On the question of who should pay zakat?, it was
quoted in the article as “Any organisation that is
profit-oriented is obliged to pay zakat”. Hopefully,
the words “voluntar y” and “Islamic-owned
organisation” (or words to that effect) were erro-
neously left out of this sentence.

Second, I disagree with the notion that since busi-
ness zakat rate is set at 2.5 per cent, it is way below
the corporate tax rate and hence is insignificant. The
government is already reluctant to drop the corpo-
rate tax rate even a single per cent and hence 2.5
per cent is astronomical. By seeking tax credits on
rebates paid, this 2.5 per cent against the current
corporate tax rate of 28 per cent is actually 8.9 per
cent of business tax revenues and it is a big per-
centage. Furthermore, comparing the zakat rate
against the corporate tax rate is misleading because
corporate tax rates are levied against taxable prof-
its whereas zakat is calculated against net assets or
equity. If calculated using the net assets method or
net owners’ equity, the zakat sum may be a very
significant  percentage indeed, if net assets or eq-
uity are larger than taxable profits. Irregardless, the
absolute sum of zakat is a huge amount of money
and cannot be dismissed as insignificant.

Whilst I am comfortable and trust that the Gov-
ernment is fully capable of managing the country’s
economy and finances, I do not believe the ulamas
are capable in managing economies or finance.

As in any donation, zakat can be seen as a way
of taking money from the rich to help the poor or
narrow the gap between the rich and poor. The
government is also responsible for that role and
taxation is a means of distributing wealth; the gov-
ernment also has the responsibility of managing
the economy and ensuring that the pie gets big-
ger for everyone. As in any other donation, zakat

W hether a practitioner is negotiating
an increase in his chargeable fees with a

difficult client or having to do a business pre-
sentation with the hope to secure an important
consultancy engagement, the ability to speak
with confidence is of paramount importance. On
another level, an individual who is interviewing
for a new job also needs to outshine his poten-
tial rival in the department of confidence, all
things being equal. And one of the surest ways
to develop your confidence in front of your cli-
ents and other VIPs is to master the skill of pub-
lic speaking. It has been quoted that people
would prefer death than to speak in public. How-
ever, public speaking like any other skill can be
developed. For this reason, the Institute would
like to gauge members, especially the practitio-

ners interest in this area. We will be organising
a series of “demo” meetings at the Institute’s
office to determine if there is a need to cater for
a special interest group in public speaking.
Members in Klang Valley are invited to join our
first few “demo” meetings as scheduled below :

a) 6 March 2003 (Thursday) ;

b) 20 March 2003 (Thursday) ; and

c) 3 April 2003 (Thursday).

All meetings will start at 6 p.m. and will end at
about 8.30 p.m. Should there be enough mem-
bers keen in this area, then the Institute will con-
sider setting up this special group to promote the
art of public speaking. Registration can be made
through Cik Shuhairah Othman at Ext. 125. AN

NOTICE TO PRACTISING MEMBERS
DEVELOPING CONFIDENCE THROUGH PUBLIC SPEAKING

MIA BRANCHES

State : Johor
Location : Johor Bahru
Chairman : Soh Siong Hoon, Sam

State : Melaka
Location : Melaka
Chairman : Lee Hin Kan

State : Negeri Sembilan
Location : Seremban
Chairman : Chan Siew Tong

State : Pahang
Location : Kuantan
Chairman : Foo Tui Lee, Joseph

State : Penang
Location : Penang
Chairman : Teh Eng Hin, Steven

State : Perak
Location : Ipoh
Chairman : Soo Yuit Weng

State : Sabah
Location : Kota Kinabalu
Chairman : Alexandra Thien

State : Sarawak
Location : Kuching
Chairman : Tiang Kung Seng, David

State : Kedah & Perlis
Location : Alor Setar
Chairman : Por Lee Tee

State : Kelantan
Location : Kota Bahru
Chairman : Billy Kang

State : Terengganu
Location : Kuala Terengganu
Chairman : Su Lim

will tend to be short term in the rich-poor gap
bridging; the government will try to make it per-
manent through its fiscal and monetary policies.

There is the risk that the mindset may change
for the worse as people will then be unmotivated
to improve themselves as they depend on hand-
outs in the form of zakat. It is my opinion and ex-
perience that the poor are poor, not because of the
lack of education or opportunities, but because
they choose to be poor. They do not have the de-
sire, perseverance and motivation and lack the will
to work hard; those that do are no longer poor.

If taxation allows credits or offsets for business zakat
then it would allow the  opposition who are in power
in certain states, to mess about with the government’s
economic master plan. For example, the government
may be pursuing contractionary policies but the busi-
ness zakat centres will be spending lots of money on
various ‘missions’. Even if there are no malicious in-
tentions, there will be lots of difficulties in setting a
coherent economic policy or budget.

The above should not be seen as dismissing zakat.
It is a facet of Islam and probably does a lot of good.
It is however dangerous to embed it into economic
policies via tax rebates on business zakat paid.

Chu Chiu Loc
CCL@mni.hongleong.com.my

CLARIFICATION
PRACTICE REVIEW :

OVERSEAS EXPERIENCE
Regarding the article “The Road Towards Quality”
(Akauntan Nasional, January/February 2003, page
53), we wish to clarify that, Sam Soh Siong Hoon,
MIA Johor Branch Chairman is also the Public Prac-
tice Committee Chairman of the Malaysian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). He was
chairing the seminar in his capacity as MICPA,
Public Practice Committee Chairman. The oversight
is regretted.                   — Editor
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NEWS WATCH
Pak Lah is Acting PM

for Two Months
Prime Minister

Datuk Seri Dr.
M a h a t h i r
Mohamad is cur-
rently on a two-
month leave from
5 March till 4 May.
During the period,

Deputy Prime Minister Datuk Seri
Abdullah Ahmad Badawi will act as the
Acting Prime Minister and Acting Finance
Minister, the Prime Minister’s Office said
in a statement recently.

“While Dr. Mahathir is on leave,
Abdullah will be the Acting Prime Minis-
ter and Finance Minister,” said the two-
paragraph statement. The statement also
said the Yang di-Pertuan Agong Tuanku
Syed Sirajuddin Putra Jamalullail had been
notified that Abdullah would be the Acting
Prime Minister.

During his leave, Dr. Mahathir will
make working visits to Brazil and Saudi
Arabia.

Source :  Prime Minister’s Office

Malaysians Spending Habits
Malaysians spend a high percentage of

their household income on food, groceries
and personal care items, ranking joint third
among the ten important economies in the
Asia-Pacific region, minus Japan. The high
percentage of spending on essential prod-
ucts among Malaysians, and countries with
a similar high percentage, has a correlation
with such countries’ per capita income.

The high percentage of spending on es-
sential items, plus the amount households
spend on monthly payments for houses,
cars and credit cards, could indicate that
discretionary spending is limited.

Purse strings of all Malaysian house-
holds are being tugged the hardest by
hypermarkets, followed by supermarkets
and the traditional grocery store.

The pattern, however, differs among the
income groups. The low-income group,
categorised by household income of up to

RM1,500 per month spends most of their
money in supermarkets, followed by the
traditional grocery store.

The medium income group, where house-
hold income is between RM1,501 and
RM3,000 per month, spends most of their
money at hypermarkets, followed by super-
markets and the traditional grocery store.
That pattern of spending is emulated by the
high-income group, which has household
income of more than RM3,000 per month.

It would be interesting to see whether the
spending patterns do change with rising per
capita income of Malaysians. If it does, then
the smaller retailers could be under some
pressure from migrating spending habits.

MALAYSIA’S gross domestic prod-
uct (GDP) during the fourth quar ter
ended the year on a bright note with all
sectors of the economy posting positive
growth. This contributed to the economy
posting a growth of 5.6 per cent during the
fourth quarter and an overall growth of 4.2
per cent for the whole year.

While growth rates are in positive, three
of the five sectors of the economy posted
slower growth in the fourth quarter com-
pared with the third quarter. The sectors
that showed higher growth are mining,
thanks to petroleum, and services.

Economists wonder whether the growth
momentum, which has slowed slightly in
the fourth quarter, would be sufficient to
see the economy ride through the current
tough patch in the global economic envi-
ronment. Many say that growth in the first
half of the year may be compromised by
dismal global sentiment, but should pick
up in the second half with the
government’s fresh stimulus package
working its way through the economy.

INVESTMENT, whether we like it or
not, is a mainstay of the economy. It leads
to job and wealth creation, and provides the
economy with a base to grow in the future.

Gross fixed capital formation in Malay-
sia has gone through a rough ride over the
past two years. Investment figures have not
been encouraging, sluggish economic
growth and low capacity utilisation rates

both globally and domestically over the
past two years would have contributed to
companies holding back, or being more
cautious, on future investment plans.

Growth rates may have increased dur-
ing the fourth quarter but that was in part
due to the low base effect. With the gov-
ernment firmly pushing investments in
Malaysia, the next course would be for pri-
vate companies to raise investments; some-
thing not easily done considering much of
the world’s investment money is now flow-
ing into China.

Source :  The Star, 28 February 2003

Mdex Urges Remisiers to have
Dual Licence

The Malaysia Derivatives Exchange
(Mdex) is urging remisiers to expand their
trading capability by having a dual licence
for equities and derivatives, its executive
chairman Abdul Jabbar Abdul Majid said,
at the second Mdex-Persatuan Remisier
Bumiputera Malaysia (Pribumi) roadshow
in Kuala Lumpur recently.

He advised remisiers to take the neces-
sary steps to have a dual licence so that
they will be in a better position to better
serve the growing needs of their clients,
thus expanding their trading capability and
growing their client base. He said as of now
only 464 remisiers or nine per cent from
5,616 remisiers were holding the dual li-
cence, of which 99 were bumiputera
remisiers.

Stronger Growth in Private
Sector Financing :  Bank

Negara

4 Akauntan Nasional March 2003
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The low interest rate environment and
ample liquidity have led to stronger growth
in financing, especially to the private sector
in December 2002, according to Bank
Negara’s monthly statistical bulletin.

Loan disbursements by the banking sys-
tem rose significantly by 8.5 per cent to
RM36.4bil in December 2002. The dis-
bursements were broad-based and across
sectors with growth in the corporate sec-
tor outpacing individual loans.

In December, loan repayments also rose
by 9.6 per cent to RM36bil and came mainly
from the business sector.

For the whole of last year, loan disburse-
ments increased by 9.9 per cent or
RM36.9bil.

The bulk of it was channelled to the busi-
ness sector (66 per cent) :  mainly to manu-
facturing (26 per cent), wholesale and re-
tail trade, restaurants and hotels (16 per
cent) and the construction sector (7 per
cent).

Disbursements to individuals accounted
for 24 per cent of the total amount and were
channelled mainly for the purchase of resi-
dential property (7 per cent), passenger
cars (6 per cent) and credit card expendi-
ture (6 per cent).

According to the report, repayments in-
creased by 9.8 per cent or RM35.7bil in
2002.

However, total outstanding loans in-
creased by RM20.1bil or 4.3 per cent. In-
cluding the loan write-offs and conversions
during the year, outstanding loans would
have increased by RM32.5bil or 5 per cent.

Highlighted was the fact that small bor-
rowers were able to maintain access to fi-
nancing from the banking system.

Loans of RM500,000 and below in-
creased at a faster rate of 13.8 per cent in
2002.

Outstanding loans below RM100,000 and
between RM100,000 and RM500,000 ex-
panded by 15 and 12 per cent respectively
last year compared with 12 and 11 per cent
in 2001, while small loans extended to busi-
nesses below RM100,000 grew even faster
at 24.3 per cent.

The report said banking institutions
were placing greater emphasis on small
and medium enterprises (SMEs) over the
years.

While the share of loans granted to

SMEs over total loans was relatively stable
at 17 per cent, its share of business loans
extended by the banking system rose from
26 per cent in 1997 to 34 per cent at the
end of 2002.

On the performance of the ringgit, Bank
Negara said that between 1 and 24 January
this year, the ringgit continued to depreciate
against the major and regional currencies
as the US dollar weakened further.

As a result of the weakened dollar, the
ringgit depreciated against the euro, pound
sterling and Japanese yen by 2.7 per cent,
1.5 per cent and 0.5 per cent respectively.

The ringgit also depreciated by 0.3-1.4
per cent against all regional currencies
except the Philippine peso, against which
it appreciated by 0.9 per cent.

On the stock market, Bank Negara said
the KLSE Composite Index (CI) improved
in December, closing at 646.32 points
higher from end-November, following re-
newed buying interest, especially for index-
linked stocks.

However, for the whole year, the CI de-
clined by 7.1 per cent although overall
market capitalisation rose by 3.6 per cent.

As at 24 January, the CI was higher at
668.81 points, up 3.5 per cent since end-
December with market capitalisation at
RM501.87bil. The daily average turnover
was higher at 306.1 million units, compared
with 118.9 million in December and 224
million units in 2002.

The KLSE outperformed most of the
major regional markets during the New
Year until 24 January.

Bank Negara’s net international re-
ser ves increased to US$34.6bil or
RM131.5bil as at 31 December 2002.

Source :  Bank Negara

NAM Summit Scores Points
Even Before it is Over

The Non-Aligned Movement Summit in
Kuala Lumpur has been successful even
before it was over. And it scored on two
counts.

First, it was about the most successful
global-scale conference ever organised by
Malaysia. In terms of logistics and re-
sources, it was the most difficult to hold,
because we were not given much time.

Nothing comes close, not even the Com-
monwealth Heads of Government Meeting

(CHOGM) in 1989 or the Commonwealth
Games in 1998, in terms of organisational
expertise. We must say syabas to all who
helped organise this gargantuan gathering
of 116 nations.

It went smoothly, including the security
arrangements. The foreign media were
pleasantly surprised that food and drinks
were provided gratis, from dawn to late
night. Never before have they experienced
such hospitality. And last-minute media
registrations were accepted, unlike some
other conferences where they make you
apply for accreditation several times.

It was a very friendly world summit, not
only on the media front, but also from the
perspective of the leaders themselves.
They were not only enchanted by
Malaysia’s hospitality but also by the way
the host country led the way in discussing
and deciding on issues important to them.

Second, this NAM succeeded where pre-
vious ones dithered and see-sawed. Per-
haps it was the timing. It came at a time
when the world teetered on the brink of
war and not many people wanted war. Most
of humankind does not want war, not least
the 116 countries of NAM.

As host Prime Minister Datuk Seri Dr.
Mahathir Mohamad put it :  War should be
outlawed.

It was an astounding statement. No one
had been willing to say it. War has been
around since man arrived on the scene. It’s
unthinkable to not have war.

Just when everyone thought this NAM,
the 13th over 42 years, was going to be
another no-decision kind of shoptalk, the
members were galvanised into action.

Just as war or even the prospect of it
galvanises people into action one way or
another, Dr. Mahathir’s remark put the
NAM nations on track at a most opportune
moment.

In NAM’s case, the very prospect of a
military conflict — not just any conflict but
one that has global repercussions — has
forged a unity of purpose absent in the
movement for a long time.

Every delegation knew the importance
of this summit; some were prepared to let
other equally pressing issues — like HIV/
AIDS, poverty, disease, health — take a
backseat for the time being. They realised
these concerns are for the long haul. But

5Akauntan NasionalMarch 2003



6 Akauntan Nasional March 2003

N E W S  I N  B R I E F

6 Akauntan Nasional March 2003

particularly in the political, social,
cultural, economic and scientific
fields.

� Promote a more dynamic and co-op-
erative relationship with the devel-
oped and industrialised countries,
based on constructive engagement,
broad partnership and mutuality of
benefits.

� Strengthen the role of the chair, as
the spokesman of the movement,
through the establishment of appro-
priate mechanisms as part of the
necessary backup system.

Website to Help Weed Out
Bogus Datuks

In an effort to weed out bogus Datuks,
the Selangor Council of Datuks President,
Datuk Gan Kim Siong, in a recent press
interview has proposed for the setting up
of a website for the public to identify the
list of recipients of honours in the state.

He added that the move was proposed
to ensure that its recipients are account-
able to the public and to weed out bogus
Datuks who of late have misused the title
and misled members of the public. “With
such a website, members of the public
would automatically be able to check if a
person is actually a Datuk. This would also
negate the efforts of those bogus Datuks
who seek donations,” he said.

The Prime Minister’s Depar tment,
meanwhile, said the Malaysian Govern-
ment would only recognise titles conferred
by the governments of foreign countries
and not any other parties.

In a press report, an official was quoted
that the relevant ministries had been in-
formed about the government’s policy on
the conferment of foreign titles, in particu-
lar titles conferred by the Raja of Surakarta
Sultanate of Indonesia. The official said the
Government had decided that the so-called
Sultanate only existed as a Centre of Pro-
tection for Traditions and Cultures.

“It has no political powers and the award-
ing of the Darjah Paduka (II) Kanjeng
Raden Haryio Temenggong would not be
recognised as the title was not being
awarded by a head of a sovereign state and
is also not recognised by the Indonesian

Government,” he said.
The official cited a General Circular No.

5 of 1957, which states that foreign orders,
decorations and medals could not be worn
without the prior permission of the Yang
di-Pertuan Agong.

The validity of datukships conferred by
“foreign sultans” resurfaced recently when
it came to light that 26 Malaysians had re-
ceived their titles from the so-called royal
house of Solo in Indonesia.

Source :  The Star, 25 February 2003

PM :  Our Weather Keeps Us
Looking Young

The Malaysian weather helps to keep
one looking young, Datuk Seri Dr.
Mahathir Mohamad stated recently.

The Prime Minister said the high humid-
ity in the country kept the skin moist all
the time — something that helped Malay-
sians to look young.

“I would like people to know that Malay-
sia is a place where the people get (to look)
younger every day,” he said when open-
ing the Langkawi Lagoon Resort.

Dr. Mahathir said Malaysians have very
nice smooth skin compared with those in
Europe or other places where moisturising
cream had to be used to keep the skin
moist and to prevent wrinkles.

“We provide this free in Malaysia. No
cream but high humidity. Admittedly, it
is very uncomfortable at times. But the
high humidity keeps the skin moist all
the time.

On another matter, he said the Govern-
ment had tried some new technologies to
reduce the amount of mud and silt from
being carried out by the river into the sea
but has yet to find a really good solution.

He said the Government would continue
to make sure that the mud coming from
inland would not be carried by rivers into
the sea, which made the waters near the
shore murky.

“I think those who are developing land
along the coast must learn the technology
of making water clearer. I believe that can
be done if we think carefully about it. I be-
lieve that when we have crystal clear wa-
ter on the west coast, tourism will really
boom,” Dr. Mahathir said.

Source :  The Star, 1 March 2003

the threat of war is something else. War
would certainly disrupt efforts to make the
lives of their people better.

Much as the big powers are divided over
whether to wage war against Iraq, the di-
verse members of NAM are unified in op-
posing military aggression of any kind to
resolve conflicts between nations.

Some of the NAM members know this
well, having been embroiled in conflagra-
tions that brought much misery to their
people.  There have been more wars fought
in the 20th century and more people killed
than in all the previous epochs. Now the
world is on the edge of the first major one
in the new millennium. Old habits die hard.

In this new world, size counts. The big
powers will go to war no matter what the
rest say. Will sheer numbers prevail? If that
is the case, then the NAM countries, home
to more than half of humanity, ought to con-
tinue to pressure the warmongers. Their
cry for peace should drown out the cry for
war.

FAREWELL : Dr. Mahathir saying goodbye
to the delegates of the 13th NAM Summit.

Main points of the KL Declaration

� Enhance unity, based on common
interests and histor y of shared
struggles, and persevere with ef-
forts to ensure these interests are
continuously promoted and con-
cerns fully addressed.

� Uphold and adhere to the fundamen-
tal principles of the movement and
the Charter of the United Nations
in the preservation and promotion
of world peace through dialogue and
diplomacy among states and the
avoidance of the use of force to re-
solve conflicts.

� Enhance South-South co-operation, AN
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The purpose of any social
security scheme is to pro-
tect the public from social
and economic distress.
Each country has its own

plans to meet its social security needs, al-
though the objectives, principles and phi-
losophy maybe somewhat similar. Simi-
larly, Malaysia has a diverse set of largely
complementary social security schemes
and institutions varying in scope, size as
well as in underlying philosophy (Asher,
1996). While social insurance principles
are applied in the sickness, maternity, em-
ployment injury, and invalidity benefit
schemes for the workers administered by

the Social Security Organisation (SOCSO),
the dominant philosophy is that of state-
mandated individual provision for old age.
Accordingly, the Employees Provident
Fund (EPF) is the dominant social secu-
rity institution in Malaysia providing retire-
ment benefits for private sector employees
and the public sector employees who are
not in the Government Pension Scheme.

These social security agencies in Malay-
sia have played an important role in protect-
ing the people and contributing to economic
growth. As Malaysia entered into the 21st

Century, apart from economic prosperity and
better quality of life, increase in longevity and
changes in demography will have impacts on
the life of all Malaysians. As people live

longer, they will need additional resources
to finance the extra years of life after retire-
ment. Therefore, the question of adequacy
of retirement benefits is very crucial here.

In 2002, the government announced the
abolishment of withdrawals
from the EPF savings for the
purchase of computers. This
announcement should be
seen as moving a step closer
towards the primary objec-
tive of the EPF.  The EPF is
an institution primarily
charged with the provision of
protection in old age. It is a
forced savings mechanism

for individuals preparing
themselves financially for old
age where monthly contribu-
tions from employers and
employees at a pre-deter-
mined rate is credited into
their account and to which
dividend is added. On attain-
ing the withdrawal age at 55
years, members can with-
draw the accrued sum. How-
ever, the government has
been introducing more and
more pre-retirement with-
drawals, thus forgetting the
original intention of the
scheme. It is treated more

like a short-term savings scheme. The life
expectancy rate in Malaysia for males is 69.7
and 74.7 for females1 . This trend suggests
that Malaysia has an ageing population. This
is of concern to the EPF, because retirees

C O V E R
E M P L O Y E E S  P R OV I D E N T  F U N D

Survival After
Retirement
Will Employees Provident Funds’ (EPF) savings
be able to provide for a comfortable retirement?

By M. Fazilah Abdul Samad

“… the Employees Provident Fund (EPF) is the
dominant social security institution in Malaysia
providing retirement benefits for private sector

employees and the public sector employees who are
not in the Government Pension Scheme”.
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will require benefits for a longer period.
Thus this paper attempts to examine
whether the EPF provides adequate ben-
efits to its members to sustain them long
after their retirement.

Establishment of the EPF in
Malaysia

Historical Background
Prior to the establishment of the EPF in

1951, some large and small but well estab-
lished firms ran their own private provident
funds, which took care of their employees
welfare needs during old age. These provi-
dent funds played a very useful role in fos-
tering good employer and employee rela-
tionship. However, these provident funds
operated independently and there was no
uniformity either in the rates of contribu-
tions or the benefits provided by them. Even
though these private provident funds pro-
vided social security benefits for employees,
the coverage was limited to the workers of

specific industries and firms.
About 93 private provident funds existed

before the EPF was established in 19512 .
Since these private provident funds were
confined to specific industries and firms, it
became necessary to establish a provident
fund that could cater for the general
working population of the country. Hence,
the subject of a national compulsory savings
scheme was mooted by the Labour
Department in 1949. The result of this
deliberation was the establishment of the
EPF through the EPF Ordinance, No.21 of
1951 to provide some form of social secu-
rity for the lower wage earners3 .

Objectives and Functions
of the EPF

The primary purpose of the EPF is to
provide members with a measure of social
security protection for old age retirement
and during times of contingencies such as
death, incapacitation and leaving the coun-

try. The fund has three main functions.
Firstly, to receive and recover the contri-
butions for the benefit of members. Sec-
ondly, to invest and re-invest its monies to
obtain reasonable returns for the benefit
of the members. Thirdly, to meet all pay-
ments required to be paid under the provi-
sions of the EPF Act when the conditions
of withdrawals are satisfied.

Administration of the Fund
When the fund was first established in

1951, it operated as part of the Postal Depart-
ment, and the administration was handled by
the Post Master General as part of his du-
ties. All the staff employed at the fund were
recruited through the postal department. By
virtue of his position, the Post Master Gen-
eral was empowered to perform the duties
imposed by the Ordinance, as well as the
duties that the Board might assign to him.
At the time of the formation, the EPF Board
consisted of 18 members, of whom six were
people holding office of emolument under
the government of the Federation including
the Post Master General, six others repre-
senting employees from the trade unions and
another six representing employers all ap-
pointed by the High Commissioner in the
council4 . The first chairman of the Board was
the Financial Secretary to the Treasury, who
was elected by its members.

In 1958, the EPF was separated from the
Postal Department to operate as an autono-
mous body. Hence, the Post Master Gen-
eral ceased to manage the affairs of the
Fund. Therefore, the Board appointed a
General Manager to manage the opera-
tions of the Fund. Even though the Gen-
eral Manager was appointed, the Board
continued to play an important role in mak-
ing decisions on policy matters. The Gen-
eral Manager was directly answerable to
the Chairman of the Board. From the years
1960 to 1990, the Chairman of the Board
was the Secretary to the Treasury, who
was appointed by the Minister of Finance.

However in 1991 with the EPF Act
amendment, the Board appointed an Ex-
ecutive Chairman to run the day-to-day
activities of the Fund to cut red tape in the

1 Social Statistical Bulletin, 1998
2 Employees Provident Fund, Annual Report, 1952
3 et. al
4 et. al
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C O V E R

Savings Pattern of Members at 54
Years of Age

As at 31 December 1999

Savings Range Number % Cumulative
 (RM) percentage

Below 10,000 47,196 57.23

10,001 – 20,000 12,097 14.67 71.90

20,001 – 30,000 6,349 7.70 79.60

30,001 – 40,000 3,834 4.65 84.25

40,001 – 50,000 4,610 5.59 89.84

Above 50,000 8,383 10.16 100.00

Total 100.00

T A B L E  1 T A B L E  2

Overall Savings Pattern
of Members

As at 31 December 1999

Savings Range Number % Cumulative
 (RM) percentage

Below 10,000 5,752,850 60.28

10,001 – 20,000 1,502,263 15.74 76.02

20,001 – 30,000 828,995 8.69 84.71

30,001 – 40,000 451,706 4.73 89.44

40,001 – 50,000 269,614 2.83 92.27

Above 50,000 73,833 7.73 100.00

Total 9,543,761 100.00

Source :  EPF Computer Department, 2000

EPF Withdrawal Schemes
Initially, members of the scheme were per-

mitted to withdraw their savings either upon
attaining 55 years of age, leaving the coun-
try or being medically incapacitated. The
next-of-kin were allowed to withdraw upon
the demise of the member. However, the gov-
ernment started to introduce new schemes
from 1968, where members were allowed to
withdraw one-third of their savings upon
reaching 50 years of age. In 1977, the EPF
Act was further amended to allow contribu-
tors to withdraw up to RM10,000 of their sav-
ings for the purchase of low cost houses. In
1982, members were allowed to withdraw up

to 10 per cent of the purchase price of non-
low cost houses and this percentage was fur-
ther increased to 40 per cent in 1986.

Subsequently, the Act was amended
again in 1991 to allow members to with-
draw part of their savings to build a house,
to reduce or settle their housing loans at
intervals of five years, until the member
reached the age of 50 years. At the same
time members were also allowed to with-
draw to pay for their medical expenses. In
2000, two more withdrawal schemes were
introduced to enable members to withdraw
par t of their savings to finance their
children’s education and to purchase com-
puters for university going children.

Analysis of Savings Pattern of
Active Members6

This study attempts to analyse whether
the Employees Provident Fund (EPF) sav-

administration. This was because, in the past,
any important decision made by the General
Manager needed to have the prior approval
of the Chairman. Even though the leadership
and members of the Board have changed
since its inception, the main functions of the
Board still remain unchanged.

Scope and Coverage of the EPF
The provision for provident fund under

the Ordinance initially applied only to all
non-pensionable employees, aged 16 years
and above, in Peninsular Malaysia, and who
had worked for the same employer continu-
ously for a period of three months and

earned wages of not more than RM400 a
month. However, over time amendments
have been made to the Ordinance to
broaden the coverage of the benefits.

In 1963, employees earning up to RM500
a month in establishments with three or
more employees were covered. By 1964,
all establishments irrespective of size came
under the provision of the EPF. From De-
cember 1970, every wage earner irrespec-
tive of his wages was covered, while expa-
triate employees, domestic servants and
self-employed persons were allowed to con-
tribute on a voluntary basis.

With the expansion in coverage, the
growth of membership and employers in-
creased tremendously. At its inception, the
EPF covered only 500,000 members and reg-
istered employers were 12,000. In 1997 the
EPF had a membership of 9.5 million mem-
bers and 350,000 registered employers5 .

ings will be adequate to provide for a com-
for table retirement. Our method of
analysing is to assume that the savings the
active members receive upon retirement
will be reinvested in an annuity that will
provide a fixed monthly payment for 25
years after retirement.

We defined active members as members
who have attained the age of 54 as at 31
December 1999, and who are still contrib-
uting to the EPF. The total number of EPF
members on this particular date was 9.5
million and only 21,722 members attained
the age of 54 years and were actively con-
tributing to the fund. To measure the ad-

equacy of retirement benefits, we adopted
the principle stipulated by the International
Labour Organisation (ILO) Convention
No.1027  on retirement benefits, which is
as follows :

“A person should receive an annuity of not
less than 40 per cent of his last drawn sal-
ary per month, as minimum replacement
income8  upon retirement”

5 EPF Annual Report, 1998
6 This section is extracted from an MBA thesis by D.

Doraisamy, who completed his MBA thesis in 2000
entitled “EPF :  A study on the adequacy of ben-
efits provided to its members”, under the author’s
supervision.

7 International Labour Organisation (ILO), Interna-
tional Conference on Social Security Minimum Stan-
dards, No. 102, Geneva, 1952.

8 Minimum replacement income may be defined as
minimum income that would allow a person to main-
tain minimum living standards that he would be
comfortable in. A person may need 100 per cent of
his income to maintain his current living standards,
but he may be comfortable living with a certain
percentage of his income.
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1

2

The annuity payment was computed us-
ing an actuarial formula as follows :

Annuity = S x i x (1 + i)t

12  (1 + i)t – 1

Where S = the average savings at the age of 54;
i = dividend rate; and
t = length of payment.

This formula has incorporated several
assumptions as follows :

the real rate of dividend after inflation
is assumed at 3.5 per cent per annum;

the average life expectancy is 75 years,
thus the annuity payment is calculated
for 20 years after retirement at 55 years.

Table 1 shows the general savings pat-
tern of the overall members of the EPF.
More than half (60 per cent) of the mem-
bers have savings below RM10,000, while
15 per cent of members have savings be-
tween RM20,000 to RM30,000. We can ob-
serve that cumulatively, more than 90 per
cent of members (92.27 per cent) have less
than RM50,000 in their EPF savings. Nev-
ertheless, the age groups of members are
not reflected in this savings pattern, thus
it could well mean that the contributing
members belong to the younger age group.

Table 2 shows the savings pattern of total
members who have attained the age of 54
years as at 31 December 1999. This includes
those who are still contributing to the EPF
as well as those who have left the scheme,
i.e. either they have stopped working, they
are self-employed or they have joined the
government pension plan. Nevertheless, it

is alarming to note that more than half of the
members (57 per cent) have less than
RM10,000 in their savings, even though they
were one year away from retiring. Fifteen
per cent have between RM10,000 to
RM20,000, eight per cent have between
RM20,000 to RM30,000, five per cent have
between RM30,000 to RM40,000, slightly
more than five per cent have between
RM40,000 and RM50,000, and 10 per cent
have more than RM50,000 in their savings.
Thus, almost 90 per cent of the members who
have only one more year before retirement,
have less than RM50,000 in their savings.

Table 3 shows the savings pattern of active

members at 54 years
of age as at 31 De-
cember 1999, who
are still working and
contributing to EPF. The table indicates that
more than half of the active members (65 per
cent) have savings below RM50,000. About
20 per cent have below RM10,000, about 15
per cent have between RM10,000 and
RM20,000, 11 per cent have between
RM20,000 and RM30,000, nine per cent have
between RM30,000 and RM40,000, and eight
per cent have between RM40,000 and
RM50,000, while about one-third of the active
members have savings above RM50,000.

Table 4 presents a comparative analysis of
annuity payment and hardcore poverty lev-
els as well as the Malaysian poverty income
line based on the guidelines of the Malaysian
government. The hardcore poverty level is
where a household receives a monthly income

of RM230 and below for a family of four, while
the poverty line is estimated to be in the re-
gion of RM460 a month for a family of five.

The objective of this study is to determine
whether EPF savings will be sufficient to
provide for a comfortable retirement for its
members. In other words, we have to as-
sume that members will reinvest their sav-
ings upon retirement in an annuity that pro-
vides for a real dividend rate of 3.5 per cent,
and that will provide for a monthly payment
to meet their living expenses. Based on our
calculation using the formula for annuity
payment, we found that a member will only
live above the poverty line if his savings at

retirement is above RM80,000. Based on the
definition of the hardcore poverty level and
poverty income line, a member will be
categorised as being at the hardcore pov-
erty level if his EPF savings upon retirement
is RM30,000 and below, while he will be in
the poverty income line if his savings is be-
low RM70,000. Since our earlier analysis in
Table 3 indicates that more than half of the
members have below RM50,000 in their
savings, it may indicate that majority of
those approaching their retirement age will
live in poverty by the time they retire if they
do not have any other source of income.

Our next analysis is on minimum re-
placement of income. This is based on the
benchmark set by ILO Convention No. 102

Savings Pattern of Active Members
at 54 Years of Age

As at 31 December 1999

Savings Range Number % Cumulative
 (RM) percentage

Below 10,000 4,653 21.42

10,001 – 20,000 3,067 14.12 35.54

20,001 – 30,000 2,455 11.30 46.84

30,001 – 40,000 2,049 9.43 56.27

40,001 – 50,000 1,772 8.16 64.43

Above 50,000 7,726 35.57 100.00

Total 21,722 100.00

Source :  EPF Computer Department, 2000

Comparative Analysis of Annuity
Payment* and Poverty Level

Savings Annuity Hardcore Poverty
Payment  Poverty Income

RM Level Line

RM10,000 59 Below Below

RM20,000 117 Below Below

RM30,000 176 Below Below

RM40,000 235 Above Below

RM50,000 293 Above Below

RM60,000 352 Above Below

RM70,000 411 Above Below

RM80,000 470 Above Above

RM90,000 528 Above Above

RM100,000 586 Above Above

* The annuity payment is calculated using the actuarial formula for 20 years at a
real rate of dividend of 3.5 % per annum based on savings.

T A B L E  3 T A B L E  4
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regarding the replacement income upon re-
tirement, which indicated a replacement
rate of not less than 40 per cent of a person’s
last drawn salary. In other words, in order
for a person to maintain a minimum living
standard, which he finds comfortable, he
will need to earn at least 40 per cent of his
last drawn salary. This percentage may not
be sufficient if upon retirement, a member
is still deluged with mortgage and having
school or college-going children. Then
again, we have to make the assumption here
that the member may have made proper
planning for his retirement, in that he will
have no mortgage to pay upon retirement,
and have grown-up children who will not be
dependent on his income.

Table 5 shows an analysis of adequacy of
savings for members at 54 years of age. Our
analysis in Table 5 indicates that none of the
members would be able to obtain a replace-
ment of at least 40 per cent of their last
drawn salary. The replacement rate ranges
from a low of 16 per cent to a high of 26 per
cent, and the higher a person in the salary
range, the lower is his replacement rate.
Thus our analysis indicates that EPF mem-
bers’ savings will not be sufficient to pro-
vide them with the same lifestyle that they
have been enjoying prior to their retirement.

Our analysis of Table 5 may provide some
insights to us. Most of us may have more
than RM200,000 in our EPF savings account
by the time we retire. Thus, on a rather
crude calculation, we may be able to get
RM1,500 a month if we were to reinvest the
sum in an annuity that pays 3.5 per cent divi-

dends for the next 20 years. Will we be com-
fortable with that amount of money every
month for as long as we live, say another 20
years’ time? Do we have other sources of
income such as income from rental, shares,
and bonds as a supplement? Do we have
medical insurance since as we get older we
may have more unexpected medical ex-
penses? With cost of living escalating every
year, RM1,500 a month in today’s ringgit
may seem too small over the next 20 years.

Summary
This study attempts to analyse whether EPF

savings will be able to provide for a comfort-
able retirement. Our results present a rather
gloomy picture of our retirement years. Even
though we can point the finger at the various
government withdrawal schemes which have
more or less eroded the chances of a better
retirement for EPF members, since members
are actually more concerned about meeting
their own contingency needs rather than hav-
ing a comfortable retirement, the EPF con-
tributors must also realise that the govern-
ment and the corporations they worked for
over the years do not owe them a comfort-

C O V E R

T A B L E  5

able retirement. The corporations only owe
them a paycheck every month. EPF is a forced
savings for the members and forced contri-
butions from the corporations. Members may
argue that the EPF has not been too efficient
in managing their contributions, because of
the low returns credited to their accounts ev-
ery year. Would they have done better if they
were forced to put aside money on their own?
Thus the sole responsibility of a comfortable
retirement lies with the members themselves,
since to save and keep the money they make
is as important as making the money itself.

Note :  The writer is an Associate Professor at
the Department of Finance and Banking, Fac-
ulty of Business and Accountancy, University of
Malaya. The views of the writer do not neces-
sarily represent the views of the Malaysian In-
stitute of Accountants and her university. She
can be contacted at mfazilah@um.edu.my.

REFERENCES
Asher, M.G. (1998), “The Future of Retirement
Protection in Southeast Asia”, International Social
Security Review, Vol. No.51 (January), pp. 3-29.
Asher, M.G. (1996), “Financing Old Age in
Southeast Asia :  An Overview”, by Daljit Singh
and T.K. Liak (eds.),   1996, Singapore, Institute
of Southeast Asian Studies, pp. 72-100.
Doraisamy, D., (2000) Employees Provident
Fund :  A Study on the Adequacy of Benefits Pro-
vided to Its Members, unpublished MBA the-
sis, University of Malaya.
Employees Provident Fund Board, Annual Re-
port, Various Years.
Employees Provident Fund Board, Annual Sta-
tistical Bulletin, Various Years.
International Labour Organisation (1952), “In-
ternational Conference on Social Security Mini-
mum Standards No. 102”, Geneva.
Statistical Department Malaysia, Annual Statis-
tical Report, 1998, Kuala Lumpur.

Adequacy of Savings for Active Members at 54 years

Salary range Number % Ave. total Median Annuity Repl. rate
(per month) savings salary payment

Below 500 6,122 28.2 15,394 250 90 25.8

501 – 1,000 5,552 25.6 28,510 750 167 22.3

1,001 – 2,000 4,981 22.9 54,846 1,500 322 21.4

2,001 – 3,000 2,041 9.4 91,206 2,500 535 21.4

3,001 – 4,000 886 4.1 134,352 3,500 788 22.5

4,001 – 5,000 479 2.2 162,197 4,500 951 21.1

5,001 – 10,000 1,047 4.8 242,103 7,500 1,420 18.9

10,001 – 15,000 294 1.4 386,344 12,500 2,265 18.1

15,001 – 20,000 142 0.7 521,045 17,500 3,055 17.5

20,001 – 40,000 179 0.8 828,507 30,000 4,858 16.2

Total 21,722 100

Source :  EPF Computer Department, 2000

“… the sole responsibility of a
comfortable retirement lies

with the members themselves,
since to save and keep the

money they make is as
important as making the

money itself”.

AN
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B U S I N E S S  &  A C C O U N T I N G
C E O S

FROM CELEBRITY
CEOS to CREDIBLE
CEOS  By  Shamala Kandiah

Many of these CEOs
cowered in their
corporate shells
when they found
themselves subject

to constant media attention over account-
ing shenanigans. Not surprisingly stake-
holders have reacted unfavourably. They
had hoped for greater transparency and
better communication about the events
leading to the fall of these corporate giants.
Stakeholders also needed these CEOs to
come up with a game-plan that would save
their companies reputation. CEOs who
have had it easy during the good times
need to learn to manage CEO reputation
when the going gets tough.

The celebrity CEO may soon be extinct.
In its place a new animal is emerging. The
credible CEO. It is more important than
ever that today’s CEOs truly embody the
heart and mind of the company. Richard
Branson may still make the headlines and
win hearts for running through the waves
in the buff but once he’s out of the water
he must be able to back up his vibrant im-
age with hard figures that reflect the true
state of Virgin. CEO branding must in fu-
ture focus more on solid performance
measured in dollars and cents than on en-
tertaining television audiences.

Brand name CEOs whose reputations
are grounded in reality are one of a

In the last few months CEOs have been tumbling off their pedestals
at an alarming rate. Once soaring corporate captains like Enron’s
Chairman Kenneth Lay and CEO Jeff Skilling, Bernie Ebbers,
founder of WorldCom, Joseph Nacchio, boss of Qwest, and Samuel
Waksal, the ex-CEO of ImCLone have come crashing down.

company’s most persuasive means of dis-
tinguishing itself from its rivals. These
CEOs stamp their own personalities and
leadership style on the company while en-
suring the accuracy and completeness of
information provided to the public. Follow-
ing the corporate carnage created by re-
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cent scandals, CEOs who have a transpar-
ent business agenda will easily stand out
from the rabble.

As faith in American corporations de-
creases by the day the role of the CEO in
restoring corporate reputation becomes
ever more vital. The CEO can play a sig-
nificant role in determining how internal
and external audiences evaluate, respond
to and value a company. Positioning the
CEO as the positive personification of the
company to give it competitive advantage
is more than ever a sound investment.

In the 1990s the challenge for CEOs was
to transform sluggish corporate behe-
moths into nimble competitors. The chal-
lenge today is to create corporate cultures
that encourage and reward ethical
behaviour as much as creativity and entre-
preneurship. Integrity is emerging as the
most important quality for today’s CEO.

AN
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Stakeholders are hungry for a moral leader
who can restore corporate confidence.

CEOs need to be the moral compass that
points the way forward with a more trans-
parent corporate agenda. Given that integ-
rity is the bedrock upon which financial
markets are based, CEOs must re-set the
corporate compass towards socially re-

sponsible corporate
behaviour. No one can
legislate or mandate
ethical behaviour. If
integrity is to be the
foundation for competi-
tiveness then it must
come from the top. CEOs
must set the tone by
publicly taking respon-
sibility for shortcomings
be it an earnings shortfall,
product failure or a flawed
strategy. When this
happens a distinction will
emerge between CEOs
who walk the talk and
those who just talk.

For a company to gain
and retain an enviable
reputation with its
stakeholders its messages
should not have a hollow
ring. It is important that
the messages emanating
from a company reflect
the reality within. In the
final reckoning actual per-
formance is the key
determinant of the value
of a company. If a
company is already
delivering the goods then
using the CEO to get this

message across will certainly enhance the
company’s reputation.

How does this fit into CEO practices in
Asia? Asian cultural norms may dictate
that the CEO remain a low-key figure
rather than enter the public stage in the
promotion of the company. In countries
like the Philippines and Indonesia there
is a fear that high profile CEOs may put
their own safety at risk. Traditionally
Asian entrepreneurs have preferred to
remain back-stage, quietly building up
their business empires away from the
glare of the media. A good example in
Malaysia of this sort of CEO is Tan Sri
Syed Mokhtar Albukhary who is known
as the “myster y man” because he
completely avoids the media spotlight.

In an increasingly globalised world, how-
ever, Malaysian businesses cannot afford
not to change with the times. Today com-
panies in Malaysia may need to look be-
yond these shores when they seek to raise
capital. An international profile is therefore
important if they are to attract international
investors. The advent of the Internet and
satellite television has opened up a myriad
of global communications possibilities.
Companies like highflying Air Aisa and
YTL are in excellent positions to leverage
on their well-known CEOs. Ironically YTL
has just acquired UK’s Wessex Water from
Enron Europe.

In weathering the economic downturn
in Asia companies need dynamic CEOs
who can captain the company during
stormy times and steer it to calmer waters.
It is an opportune time for Asian compa-
nies to use their CEOs to gain competitive
advantage. It is by articulating both the fi-
nancial information and the company’s
underlying values skilfully that the cred-
ible CEO is able to attract investors, retain
valuable customers and keep its best
people.

What does it take to be a credible CEO?
To stand out from the celebrity crowd the
credible CEO needs to enunciate the
company’s ideals with passion and convic-
tion; provide ethical leadership in a crisis;
and show that making money is being done
in a socially responsible manner.

Note :  The writer is a Managing Partner with a
media consulting company. She can be
contacted at shamala@indigo media.com.sg

“The challenge today is to
create corporate cultures that
encourage and reward ethical

behaviour as much as creativity
and entrepreneurship.

Integrity is emerging as the
most important quality for

today’s CEO”.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○
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B U S I N E S S  &  A C C O U N T I N G
K L S E

DEMUTUALISATION
ON TRACK  By  Risen Jayaseelan

Recently, the Ministry of
Finance (MoF) gave its
approval to the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange
   (KLSE) to go ahead

with its planned demutualisation. Following
this, soon a bill to demutualise the KLSE
will be tabled in
Parliament.

So there is no
turning back now.
The plan is that
once the KLSE is
demutualised, the
exchange will then
be listed on its own
bourse by the end
of 2004.

To recap, de-
mutualisation sim-
ply means making
the transition from being a clublike
organisation to being a profit-making pub-
lic company owned by a variety of stock-
holders. Since the KLSE’s inception in
1973, the KLSE has been a mutual entity
whose members comprised of all the stock
broking companies in the country.

That old ownership structure is akin to
most exchanges around the world but in the
last couple of years, demutualisation has
been sweeping exchanges around the
world. According to the World Federation
of Exchanges, 85 per cent of the federation’s
59 member exchanges have demutualised
and the trend is catching on.

Exchanges typically demutualise to ensure
they remain competitive in an increasingly
dynamic global business environment. With
exchanges around the world competing for
international capital, a demutualised ex-
changed is seen as one which is in a better
position to be more customer-driven and
market-orientated. That’s because commer-
cial decisions affecting the exchange will now

be made by all stakeholders and not just one
group of people namely the stockbrokers.

Part of Broader Strategy to
Develop Capital Market

What is also interesting to note is that
demutualistion of the KLSE is part of a

larger plan
of the devel-

opment of the country’s capital market to
make it more competitive. A merger pro-
cess of exchanges in the country — which
once numbered five — had began several
years ago, with the culmination of the Ma-
laysian Exchange of Securities Dealing and
Automated Quotation (Mesdaq) coming
into the KLSE fold last year. The mergers
are aimed at creating synergistic and
economies of scale advantages so as to
strengthen the country’s capital market

A Fair Shareholding Structure
One challenge for the authorities however

was to come up with a shareholding struc-
ture that would be fair to the stockbrokers
and at the same time wide enough to include
new parties which would contribute to the
exchange’s development in a substantial way.

The following is the structure that the au-
thorities have decided on — 30 per cent of
the value of the demutualised exchange
would be allocated to stockbroking compa-

nies and 10 per cent to remisiers, giving the
securities industry a total of 40 per cent. An-
other 30 per cent would be allocated for the
setting up of a Capital Market Development
Fund (CMDF) and the remaining 30 per cent
to the Minister of Finance Inc (MoF Inc).

Initially, some quarters of the stock
broking industry voiced their displeasure,
saying that they had hoped to get as much
as a 70 per cent allocation. Their rationale
was that they were the ones who helped
create the exchange and therefore should
be entitled to a bigger chunk of the
demutualised exchange.
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However that argument, commentators
say, does not hold much water for a few rea-
sons. Firstly, brokers have not seen the ex-
change as a revenue source per se. Rather
the main advantage they derived from the
exchange was that it created a market for
their trades. In other words, it was neces-
sary to have the exchange in order for bro-
kers to earn their main source of income
from trading activities. Going by this view
then the fact that brokers are getting a 30
per cent stake in the exchange is a windfall
for them as they would be able to unlock
their value in the exchange when it is listed,
something that does not seem to have been
part of the original plan of the brokers.

Secondly, if the brokers were to be given
the lion’s share of the demutualised ex-
change, then that structure would exclude
the Government, which throughout the
history of the KLSE, has played a signifi-
cant role in the success and development
of the market. Therefore, it seems justified
that the MoF is getting a 30 per cent stake.

The shareholding structure is also
favourable to another section of the
broking community, namely the remisiers,
who have been playing the role of the all-
important intermediaries between the ex-
change and its retail players. It is therefore
a wise decision that remisiers be allocated
shares of the demutualised exchange.

What is also notewor thy about the
demutualised structure is the allocation to
the Capital Market Development Fund
(CMDF). This statutory trust fund will play
a big role as it is intended to facilitate the
development of an efficient, innovative and
internationally competitive Malaysian capi-
tal market. It would be funded by proceeds
from selling down the shares in the
demutualised exchange during its initial
public offering (IPO) and will be used in a
variety of different initiatives, all related to
enhancing the market.

Conflict of Interest,
a Main Worry

Another challenge of the KLSE is to con-
vince market participants that it will be able
to carry out its regulatory functions with-
out any change. The fear is that once it be-
comes a for-profit entity, the KLSE will be
prone to use its money in areas where it
will be able to see a more immediate re-

turn on investment for its shareholders.
But when money is put into regulatory-re-
lated initiatives, it may be difficult to see
such returns coming to the shareholders.
Also because of a desire to reduce costs
(to potentially increase profits) funding for
regulatory purposes may take a back seat.

Another worry is that the exchange may
relax its listing rules in order to garner
more listings, as that would translate into
more profits for the exchange. The ex-
change would also be less inclined to delist
errant companies as that would mean
“loss” of business.

However, another view is that the for-
profit and regulatory duties are mutually
exclusive, meaning that they can sit side
by side, despite the potential conflict of in-
terest. The KLSE’s official statement on
this matter is that this potential conflict of
interest is a major focus in their planning
for demutualisation. The exchange adds
that it would not serve any parties interest
to have a market that is not well and objec-
tively regulated as that would have a nega-
tive impact on investor confidence.

The view of the authorities on this matter
is that putting money to enhance the mar-
kets regulatory functions will bring the ex-
change more profits in the longer term. This
is because if the exchange is well regulated,
it is likely to attract more participants, in
the form of companies seeking to list as well
as investors intending to invest. Naturally,
this will translate into better earnings for
the exchange. Another point to note is that
if indeed the exchange makes more money,
it will be in a financially better position to
enhance its regulatory functions.

The exchange says it will be putting the
right controls to ensure that this conflict
does not become a problem. For example,
the regulatory unit will remain separate
from the business unit. The fact that the
board of the demutualised exchange will
have public interest directors is another
form of a check and balance.

A leaf could be drawn from the Singapore
and Hong Kong exchanges for example. In
the case of Singapore, power was granted
to the Monetary Authority of Singapore
(MAS) to give direction to the demutualised
exchange. Singapore also established a con-
flict committee that reports to MAS on any
conflicts that arise as a consequence of the

listing of the Singapore exchange.
In the case of Hong Kong, what is notable

is that the Securities and Futures Commis-
sion (the main regulatory body akin to
Malaysia’s Securities Commission) has a
veto power over the fees that the exchange
charges for the latter’s products and services.

On the local front, the Securities Com-
mission will maintain an oversight function
over the KLSE in all regulatory matters so
this acts as a good check and balance. In-
cidentally, it will be the SC that will be con-
ducting the due diligence on the KLSE
when it comes the time for the KLSE to
list on its own bourse.

IPO Looks Favourable
According to the KLSE, there seems to

be no dearth of interest in the KLSE’s even-
tual IPO, especially from foreign fund man-
agers. This is not surprising as an
exchange’s listing is seen as a good proxy
to any one market.

Exchanges which have successfully
demutualised and listed on their own
bourses, have held up well even during
these depressed market. Cases in point are
exchanges in London, Hong Kong and
Singapore, whose share prices have out-
performed their respective market indices.
More recently, the Chicago Merchantile
Exchange Holdings (which is the parent
company of the Chicago Merc futures mar-
ket) began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange in early December, enjoying a
US$4 premium over its offer price at open-
ing trade.

Recently, an official of the World Federa-
tion of Exchanges commented that the
KLSE is in a good position to demutualise
and to create value for the exchange. His
view is based on the fact that if you take
the market capitalisation of the exchange
as a percentage of the country’s gross do-
mestic product (GDP), Malaysia ranks
high, at about 130 per cent, which is higher
than the worldwide average of 90 per cent.
This means that Malaysia has a relatively
larger percentage of the economy listed on
the KLSE than the industry average, which
in itself is a measure of success. Judging
from that, the KLSE’s demutualisation and
subsequent listing should take the KLSE
(and thereby, Malaysia’s capital market) to
greater heights. AN
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B U S I N E S S  &  A C C O U N T I N G
F I N A N C I A L  R E P O RT I N G

Striving For
QUALITY
FINANCIAL
REPORTING

 By Wan Nordin Wan Hussin &
Mohammad Azhar Ibrahim

Introduction
In the wake of the Enron and WorldCom

scandals in late 2001 and early 2002, high
quality and transparent financial reporting

High quality financial reporting
is akin to the “beacon that

lights the way for investors”

is the de rigueur in the business world. The
capital markets need accurate and unbi-
ased financial reporting and auditing to
value securities correctly and instil inves-

tor confidence. High quality financial re-
porting is akin to the “beacon that lights
the way for investors” (Turner, 1999).

In the opening address at the recent
World Congress of Accountants gathering
held in Hong Kong, the outgoing Chinese
Premier warned accountants to avoid mak-
ing (and certifying, one may add) false ac-
counts (Newsweek, 2002).1  Quality financial
reporting is said to be lacking when com-
panies engage in fraudulent financial report-
ing, i.e. the preparation and dissemination
of audited financial statements with inten-
tional material misstatements or omissions.

Erosion in the quality of financial report-
ing is also perceived when companies re-
sort to opportunistic accruals-based earn-
ings management, i.e. deliberate steps taken
within the constraints of generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) to bring
about a desired level of reported earnings.
When earnings are managed by shifting
profits from one year to another through
accounting loopholes, “the reported num-
bers reflect the desires of management
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1 Newsweek, 2 December 2002, “I never felt so hand-
some”.

2 New Sunday Times, 30 June 2002, “Andersen sued
for RM350m”.

3 The Edge Malaysia, 28 October 2002, “Occurrences
of fictitious invoicing”.

4 Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange, Press Release, 14
December 2002.

5 For details, please see The Edge Malaysia, 5 Novem-
ber 2001, Questions aplenty at Tat Sang and 24 June
2002, Cover story :  “Crumbling profit promises”.

rather than the underlying financial perfor-
mance of the company” (Levitt, 1998). Lobo
and Zhou (2001) show there is a negative
relationship between corporate disclosure
quality and earnings management.

Another important dimension in assess-
ing the quality of financial reporting is the
occurrence of financial statement restate-
ments as a result of previous misstate-
ments. Investors generally view restated
financial statements due to inaccurate, in-
complete or misleading disclosures in the
previously issued financial statements as
lacking credibility and of relatively lower
quality. Anderson and Yohn (2002) demon-
strate that investors react negatively to re-
statement announcements especially those
stemming from revenue recognition prob-
lems.

Fraudulent financial reporting, earnings
restatements and earnings management
raise concerns about the credibility of the
financial reporting process and call into
question the roles of accountants, auditors,
regulators, and analysts in the financial

reporting process. In Malaysia, quality fi-
nancial reporting was put under the spot-
light recently following the revelations of
at least five high profile corporate
misconducts or alleged misconducts.

The first involved a RM350 million legal
suit against Arthur Andersen for negligent
auditing of CSM Corporation (formerly
Cold Storage Malaysia).2  The second was
related to a police report lodged by Celcom
(formerly Technology Resources Indus-
tries) against its former directors who are
alleged to have siphoned off RM260 million
through fictitious invoices.3  The third in-
volved a fine imposed by the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange (KLSE) on FA Peninsular
for failing to prepare its audited accounts in
accordance with the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board (MASB) approved ac-
counting standards. FA Peninsular was also
required to restate the erroneous financial
statements.4  The last two were related to
“false or misleading” IPO profit forecasts by
Tat Sang and Time dotCom.5

Reasonable investors who provided capi-
tal to the companies frequently rely on
management’s representations and the
auditor’s opinion that a company’s financial
statements fairly reflect the financial posi-
tion, results of operations and cash flow of
a company. Financial information that is in-
complete, opaque and lacks integrity fosters
uncertainty about the real situation facing
the company, places management’s trust-
worthiness under stress and erodes inves-
tor confidence. This uncertainty translates
into more risk for investors, who demand a
higher rate of return from the company’s
securities which in turn creates a higher
cost of capital for the company, as well as
discounted security prices.

An award winning paper by Botosan
(1997) provides empirical evidence of a
negative association between cost of equity
capital and voluntary disclosure provided
in the annual report for firms that attract a
low analyst following. However, no such
association is found for firms that attract a

greater number of analysts, reflecting that
substantial information is already dissemi-
nated to the market via financial analysts
who receive and process information for
investors. From the debt financing perspec-
tive, Sengupta (1998) documents that
timely and detailed disclosures reduce
creditors’ perception of the default risk for
the disclosing firms, thereby reducing
their cost of debt.

To make informed decisions whether to
buy, hold or sell securities, it is crucial for
investors and financial analysts (who influ-
ence the capital allocation decisions
through their stock recommendations) to
identify public-listed companies (PLCs)
that strive for transparency and high qual-
ity in their financial statement disclosures.
What are the company-specific factors that
contribute to the quality of the financial
disclosure made by the PLCs? What macro-
level initiatives have been instituted to cur-
tail financial misreporting in Malaysia?

This article serves three purposes :

it highlights the major initiatives taken
in recent years to promote sound finan-
cial reporting practices in Malaysia;

it surveys previous research to identify
company-specific factors that drive the
quality of financial reporting; and

it describes a research currently under-
taken to evaluate the efficacy of some
of the recommended corporate gover-
nance reforms and explore the role of
analysts and the provision of non-audit
services by incumbent auditors in in-
fluencing financial reporting in the Ma-
laysian context.

“Financial information that is incomplete, opaque and lacks
integrity fosters uncertainty about the real situation facing
the company, places management’s trustworthiness under

stress and erodes investor confidence”.

1

2

3
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Efforts to Foster Credible
Financial Reporting in the
Malaysian Capital Market

Good corporate governance, of which hon-
esty in accounts is the by-product, is para-
mount to engender confidence in investors
that a company is well-run in the best inter-
ests of its shareholders and free from corpo-
rate misdemeanour. The mechanisms to en-
hance corporate governance in Malaysia and
develop the capital market were put in place
before the Asian financial crisis of 1997-1998
reared its ugly head, although the crisis fast
tracked the corporate governance reforms.

The efforts began in March 1993 with
the establishment of the Securities Com-
mission (SC) as a one-stop market watch-
dog to improve the legal and regulatory
framework governing the capital market.
The SC absorbed the functions of three
agencies, namely, the Capital Issues Com-
mittee, the Panel on Takeovers and Merg-
ers and some functions of the Registrar of
Companies (ROC).6

Effective from 1 September 1993, in line
with the stock exchanges in the US and
Singapore and to encourage high standards
of corporate disclosure to protect the invest-
ing public, companies seeking admissions
to the KLSE were required to establish au-
dit committees of at least three people com-
prising a majority of independent directors
and whose chairman is a non-executive di-
rector. For companies already listed on the
KLSE, they were given until 31 August 1994
to set up audit committees. As it turned out,
four companies out of 439 failed to meet the
deadline and were given until 1 October
1994 to establish audit committees.

In 1996, the SC decided to gradually shift
from a merit-based regime of regulating new
equity issues to a disclosure-based regime
(DBR). This policy shift was necessary to
inculcate higher standards of disclosure, due
diligence, corporate governance and ac-
countability by the PLCs and their advisers.
Under a DBR system, the role of the SC is
no longer to evaluate the relative merits of
the issuer and its securities but rather to
regulate the quality of information disclosed
whilst the onus of assessing the investment
merits based on complete and reliable infor-
mation is restored to investors. The first
phase of the move towards DBR commenced
in January 1996 with flexibilities given by the

SC for issuers and underwriters to decide
on their own IPO (initial public offering) pric-
ing as opposed to intervention by the SC in
the past by prescribing the price-earnings
multiples to be used.

In March 1997, Malaysia became the first
country in Asia to set up an independent and
statutorily incorporated accounting stan-
dard-setting body with the establishment of
the MASB under the Financial Reporting
Act. The Financial Reporting Foundation
(FRF) supervises the operations of MASB.
Under the new framework, standard setting
is undertaken by MASB pursuant to an ex-

tensive due process involving consultation
with all relevant parties including the ac-
counting profession, the business commu-
nity, users, preparers, auditors and regula-
tors. This arrangement safeguards the im-
partiality and integrity of the standards set
by the board. With the establishment of the
FRF and MASB, the KLSE requires its listed
companies to comply with all the MASB
approved accounting standards. According
to our analysis based on the KLSE press
releases, at the time of writing two compa-
nies have been sanctioned by the KLSE for
not complying with the approved account-
ing standards although anecdotal evidence
abounds that many more companies have
been privately cautioned for their slackness
in complying with accounting standards.

In March 1998, at the height of the Asian
financial crisis and when discontent with the
UEM-Renong debacle was brewing, the
then Minister of Finance announced the
formation of a high level Finance Commit-
tee on Corporate Governance comprising
both government and industry representa-
tives, with the SC acting as the secretariat,
to establish a framework for corporate gov-

ernance and setting best practices for the
industry.7  In March 1999, the Finance Com-
mittee released a 275-page Report on Cor-
porate Governance comprising 70 recom-
mendations and a proposed Malaysian Code
on Corporate Governance which, among
others, sought to strengthen the influence
of minority shareholders, enhance the role
of boards of PLCs, strengthen regulatory
enforcement and promote high standards
of corporate governance through training
and education. As elaborated below, some
of the recommendations made have been
implemented to promote investor confi-
dence in the Malaysian capital market.

In 1999, the Security Industry (Compli-
ance with Approved Accounting Standards)
Regulation 1999 was enacted with the aim
of achieving quality financial reporting. Pur-
suant to this regulation, the SC through its
Financial Reporting Surveillance and Com-
pliance Department carries out surveillance
on PLCs by conducting reviews on compli-
ance with approved accounting standards
and other financial reporting “best practice”
requirements. Following the reviews, the
common reporting deficiencies and ac-
counting issues observed in the reviews
were made known in order to educate and
create awareness among PLCs on the need
to comply with approved accounting stan-
dards and to address the deficiencies in
their subsequent financial statements.8

Another significant measure taken to im-
prove the quality of financial reporting
through greater corporate disclosure in
content and frequency was the introduction
of on-line quarterly reporting for PLCs by
the KLSE, effective from the quarter ended
31 July 1999. According to the statistics pro-
vided by the KLSE, out of 3,067 quarterly
reports for quarters ended from 31 July
1999 to 30 June 2000, only 31 quarterly re-
ports were submitted after the due date,
giving a compliance rate of 99 percent. The
latest rule on quarterly reports prescribes
that for quarterly reports ended/ending on
or after 30 September 2002, the PLCs must
include a condensed cash flow statement

6 Now renamed Companies Commission of Malay-
sia (CCM).

7 For details on the UEM-Renong debacle, see for
example, Business Week, 8 June 1998, “The Deal
Smelled Rotten — and it was”.

8 For survey results on compliance with MASB 1 and
MASB 5, please see Securities Commission Annual
Report 2001.
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In March 1997, Malaysia be-
came the first country in Asia
to set up an independent and
statutorily incorporated ac-

counting standard-setting body
with the establishment of the

MASB under the Financial
Reporting Act.
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and also comply with MASB 26 :  Interim
Financial Reporting requirements.

In March 2000, a year after the issuance
of the Finance Committee’s Report on Cor-
porate Governance, the amended Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance was re-
leased. Among the recommendations incor-
porated in the code pertaining to corporate
governance are mandating disclosure on the
application of the principles and compliance
with best practices of the code, requiring di-
rectors to make statements on the state of
internal controls, enhancing the role of the
audit committee, and clarifying and enhanc-
ing the definition of independent director.

Up until the middle of 2000, although the
SC, which is answerable to the Minister of
Finance, administers the fund raising activi-
ties, it had no power to administer the pro-
spectus requirements. The requirements
with respect to the contents of prospectuses
were contained in the Companies Act 1965,
administered by the ROC, which is account-
able to the Minister of Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs. In 2000, the regulatory
framework was further streamlined to en-
able the SC to take a full view of the fund
raising proposals and position itself as the
single regulator of all fund raising activities,
by amending the Securities Commission

Act 1993 and the Companies Act 1965. Ef-
fective from 1 July 2000, the SC became the
approving and registering authority for IPO
prospectuses in place of the ROC, which is
now responsible for lodgement of prospec-
tuses after registration by the SC.

Concurrent with this regulatory change,
new prospectus disclosure requirements
were introduced. The present minimum dis-
closure requirements as prescribed by the
SC’s Guidelines on Contents of Prospec-
tuses for IPOs include new and enhanced
disclosures such as segmental analysis of
revenue and operating profits over the past
five years or from the date of incorporation,
a more detailed statement of borrowings
with breakdown on long term and short
term, interest-bearing and non-interest bear-
ing, directors’ analysis of profit estimates/
forecasts/projections and commentary on
their achievability, time frame for the full
utilisation of the IPO proceeds and the fi-
nancial impact from the proceeds utilisation,
directorships and substantial shareholdings
of the major shareholders and promoters
in all other public corporations over the past
two years, aggregate remuneration and ben-
efits of directors for the last financial year
and proposed for the current financial year
and identities of non-executive directors. No
doubt these improved disclosures are to be
more in line with the “best disclosure prac-
tice” in more advanced countries.

In January 2001, the voluntary Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance was brought
into full effect with the amendments to the
KLSE’s Listing Requirements. Under the
new requirement, PLCs with financial year
ended after 30 June 2001 onwards were re-
quired to state in their annual reports the
extent to which they had complied with the
code and the reasons for any non-compliance
with the code. And those PLCs issuing finan-
cial statements for periods beyond 31 Decem-
ber 2001 have to also include a statement on
internal control. In Februar y 2001, a
taskforce on internal controls established by
the KLSE in May 2000 issued a guidance
“Statement on Internal Control :  Guidance
for Directors of Public-Listed Companies” to
assist directors of PLCs in making disclo-
sures in their company’s annual report on
the state of internal control in accordance
with the Listing Requirements of the KLSE.
As emphasised in the Malaysian Code on
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Corporate Governance, a sound system of
internal control is necessary to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the company’s
assets.

The new Listing Requirements further
enhance the role of the audit committee by
stipulating that at least one member of the
audit committee must be a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants or have
relevant accounting background. The List-
ing Requirements also state that one of the
main functions of the audit committee is to
review the financial statements focusing par-
ticularly on significant changes in account-
ing policies and practices, significant and
unusual events and compliance with account-
ing standards and other legal requirements.9

All listed companies are required to disclose
the audit committee report in their annual
reports containing, among others, the audit
committee composition, frequency of meet-
ings and attendance of each member, terms
of reference, a summary of activities and in-
formation on internal audit.

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Gover-
nance also advocated shareholder activism.
Accordingly, in July 2001, the Minority Share-
holder Watchdog Group (MSWG) which
comprises the largest institutional funds in
the country was established in order to en-
courage greater institutional investor partici-
pation in corporate governance and minimise
abuses by insiders against minority share-
holders, thus promoting shareholder value.
Since its inception, the MSWG has been able
to flex its muscle and establish a reputation
as a force to be reckoned with when it played
a leading role in aborting an attempted ac-
quisition of Malaysian Merchant Marine by
Maruichi for RM99 million, a deal many
viewed to be detrimental to the minority
shareholders of Maruichi.10

Given that the directors who directly man-
age the company and set the tone from the
top are important agents for corporate gover-
nance reform, the KLSE’s new Listing Re-
quirements also contain a provision requiring
directors of PLCs to attend prescribed train-
ing programmes as a prerequisite to contin-
ued listing, aimed at enhancing the compe-
tency and professionalism of company direc-
tors. According to the KLSE press release, be-
tween April 2001 (when the programme
started) and November 2001, over 3,000 PLC
directors have attended the Directors’ Man-
datory Accreditation Programme.

And finally, in a bold move announced
in January 2003, the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants is implementing the Practice
Review Programme for all auditors in pub-
lic practice where the standards and pro-
cedures of a member’s auditing practice
are assessed by an independent member
in the same profession. It is hoped that with
this long-overdue quest for a high quality
audit, the risk that the accounting profes-
sion is smeared by weak and less rigorous
auditing will be minimised.

To sum up, constructive efforts have
been made by the regulators and the ac-
counting profession to improve financial
reporting and disclosure and strengthen
the capital market in Malaysia. These con-
tinuous efforts will no doubt benefit the
PLCs, directors, major shareholders and
minority investors alike and contribute to
a more conducive environment for invest-
ment and raising capital in Malaysia.

Factors Influencing the
Quality of Financial Reporting —

Theory and Evidence
Prior studies, mostly in the US, have

unravelled the motives that drive fraudulent
financial reporting, identified the accounts
susceptible for manipulation and determined
factors that may enhance financial disclo-
sures or deter actual or perceived financial
misstatements. In 1987, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) in the US con-
ducted a study on both alleged and proven
instances of fraudulent financial reporting
during 1981 to 1986. The study reveals that
the common incentives for fraudulent finan-
cial reporting are to obtain a higher price
from a stock or debt offering, to meet the
expectations of investors, to avoid violating
restrictive debt covenants and for personal
gain via bonus compensation or avoiding
penalty for poor performance.

In a 1999 follow up study by the Commit-
tee of Sponsoring Organisations (COSO), an
alliance comprising the AICPA, AAA, FEI, IIA
and IMA,11  the findings show that over half
the frauds between 1987 and 1997 involved
overstating revenues by recording revenues
prematurely or fictitiously and about half the
frauds also involved overstating assets by un-
derstating allowances for receivables, over-
stating the value of inventory, property, plant
and equipment and other tangible assets, and
recording assets that did not exist.

Among the factors that have been found
to be significant in influencing the quality of
financial reporting are board and audit com-
mittee characteristics, ownership structure,
provision of non-audit fees and analysts cov-
erage. All of these factors are discussed next.

Board Characteristics

The corporate board is an important in-
ternal governance mechanism (Fama,
1980). Proponents of good corporate gov-
ernance advocate that board characteristics
such as board size, composition and lead-
ership structure affect the effectiveness of
board monitoring of management to protect
shareholders’ interests (Fama and Jensen,
1983; Molz, 1988; Rosenstein and Wyatt,
1990; Forker, 1992; Jensen, 1993).

An award winning paper by Beasley (1996)
provides evidence that poor board gover-
nance and earnings management are posi-
tively related. Comparing a sample of 75
fraud companies against non-fraud compa-
nies, his results indicate that non-fraud com-
panies generally have a higher percentage
of outside directors. He also shows that mul-
tiple directorships by outside directors in-
crease the likelihood of fraud, consistent with
the view that outside directors who hold di-
rectorships in multiple companies are inca-
pable of effectively monitoring the manage-
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9 There are some differences between the functions of
the audit committee as spelt out in the Malaysian Code
on Corporate Governance and the Listing Require-
ments. In the Code, the audit committee is required
to consider significant audit adjustments and the ap-
propriateness of the going concern assumption when
reviewing the financial statements, whereas in the
Listing Requirement both these items are subsumed
vaguely under “significant and unusual events”.

10 See The New Straits Times, 5 January 2003, “Handle
Other People’s Money with Care” and The Edge Ma-
laysia, 27 December 2002, “Taking Stock :  Minori-
ties show their wrath”.

11 The abbreviations refer to American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, American Account-
ing Association, Financial Executives Institute, In-
stitute of Internal Auditors and Institute of Manage-
ment Auditors respectively.
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ment of so many companies. He also finds
that as board size increases the likelihood of
fraud increases, consistent with Jensen’s
(1993) view that a large board functions less
effectively and is easier for the CEO to con-
trol. Xie et al. (2003) show that a lower level
of earnings management is associated with
greater independent outside representation
on the board and more active boards.

In the Asian context, Chau and Gray (2002)
and Ho and Wong (2001) demonstrate that
in Hong Kong, the board, which is dominated
by family members, is less forthcoming in
making voluntary disclosures. Ho and Wong
(2001) also investigate whether Chairman-
cum-CEO duality affects the extent of volun-
tary disclosure and they obtain positive but
insignificant coefficient at the conventional
level. In another study using Hong Kong
data, Chen and Jaggi (2000) find a positive
relationship between the proportion of
independent directors and quality/extent of
disclosure and this association appears to be
weaker for family-controlled firms compared
to non-family controlled firms.

Audit Committee
Composition and Activities

One of the important roles of the audit
committee is to oversee the financial report-
ing process through regular meetings with
the external auditors and financial executives
to review the corporation’s financial state-
ments, audit process, and internal account-
ing controls. In the event of disagreement
between the external auditor and manage-
ment on how to best apply GAAP, the audit
committee intervenes to produce a balanced
and more accurate accounting statement. In
order to play the role as financial monitor
effectively, the Blue Ribbon Committee on
Improving the Effectiveness of Corporate
Audit Committees in the US recommends
that members of the audit committee must
exercise their duty free from pressure and
possess financial literacy and expertise.

Xie et al. (2003) find that active audit com-
mittees and the financial sophistication of the
audit committee members are important fac-
tors in constraining earnings management.
Razman and Iskandar (2002) find that simi-
lar audit committee characteristics contrib-
ute significantly towards enhancing the qual-
ity of financial reporting. In addition, Klein
(2002) found that earnings management is
more pronounced for firms with an audit
committee comprising of less than a major-
ity of independent directors. She also finds
that firms that change the boards and/or
audit committees from majority-independent
to minority-independent have significantly
larger increases in abnormal accruals vis-à-
vis their counterparts.

Abbott et al. (2002) find that the inde-
pendent and active audit committees
(where the committee meets at least four
times per year) exhibits a significant and
negative association with financial mis-
statements arising from fraud or aggres-
sive application of GAAP. In addition, they
also showed that the audit committee that
lacks a member with financial expertise
leads to higher incidence of restatements.

Ownership Structure

Managerial ownership and external
blockholder ownership are two major gov-
ernance mechanisms (Jensen and Meckling,
1976; Kaplan and Minton, 1994; Shleifer and
Vishny, 1997). When share ownership is con-
centrated among insiders, the potential for
conflicts between principal and agent is lower
than in widely held companies. As a result
information disclosure is likely to be less
comprehensive in closely held companies.

Hossain et al. (1994) document that con-
centrated ownership (based on
shareholdings by ten largest shareholders)
is negatively related to the level of informa-
tion voluntarily disclosed by listed Malay-
sian companies. Owusu-Ansah (1998) exam-
ines the relationship between insider own-
ership and mandatory disclosure in Zimba-

bwe and finds a positive association, which
is at odds with the theoretical prediction.
The author suggests that the implications
of the agency theory are more relevant for
voluntary disclosure rather than mandatory
disclosure. In tandem with Hossain et al.
(1994), the latest study by Chau and Gray
(2002) also shows that the extent of outside
ownership (proportion of equity not owned
by directors and dominant shareholders) is
positively associated with voluntary disclo-
sures in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Institutional investors as blockholders are
said to have the resources, expertise and
stronger incentive to effectively monitor the
actions of management. Their presence can
inhibit managers from pursuing opportunis-
tic earnings management for their own pri-
vate gains. Chung et al. (2002) find that the
presence of large institutional shareholdings
constrain managers from increasing or de-
creasing reported profits towards the man-
agers’ desired level or range of profits.

Non-audit Fees

Evidence in the US unambiguously
shows that there has been a dramatic in-
crease in the proportion of fee revenue
auditors derive from non-audit services
(Levitt, 1999). In 1981, management con-
sulting services for traditional audit firms
represented approximately 15 per cent of
their total revenue. By the late 1990s, its
share stood at 45 per cent with revenues
from auditing services dropping to approxi-
mately a third of total revenues.

Firth (1997) argues that the provision of
non-audit services by the incumbent audi-
tor strengthens the auditor’s economic
bond with the client and adversely affects
auditor independence, thereby increasing
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the auditor’s incentive to acquiesce to cli-
ent pressure.12  Frankel et al. (2002) docu-
ment that the purchase of non-audit services
is positively associated with earnings man-
agement, consistent with Firth’s (1997) ar-
gument that the provision of non-audit ser-
vices impairs auditor independence.

Analysts Following

The financial analyst is an important capi-
tal market intermediary who receives and
processes information for investors. An
analyst’s activities include producing corpo-
rate earnings forecasts, writing reports on
individual companies, performing industry
and sector analyses and issuing stock recom-
mendations which represents an analyst’s
“professional” judgment on the expected price
appreciation (or depreciation) of a given stock
in the near future (Krische and Lee, 2000).

Studies have shown that analysts help in-
vestors to value securities more accurately
(Schipper, 1991; Brown, 2000), their recom-
mendations affect stock prices and trading
volume at the time of release (Stickel, 1995;
Barber et al., 2000) as well as have predic-
tive power for subsequent returns (Womack,
1996; Barber et al. 2000). Lang and Lundholm
(1996) and Healy et al. (1999) provide evi-
dence that analysts following tends to be
positively related to the degree of informa-
tion disclosure by a company.

Research Opportunities :  An
Academic Viewpoint

In Malaysia, the road map to corporate gov-
ernance reforms in order to foster accurate
and unbiased financial reporting has been laid
out. From an academic viewpoint, these de-
velopments provide many fruitful research
areas. One empirical issue is whether certain
of the recommendations advocated by the
capital market regulators on independent di-
rectors, Chairman/CEO duality and account-
ing literacy of audit committee members en-
hance financial reporting and disclosure.

There are numerous studies that investi-

gate factors, typically internal corporate gov-
ernance characteristics, which are likely to
be associated with aggressive and decep-
tive financial reporting (the latest studies
include Klein, 2002; Chung et al., 2002;
Abbott et al., 2002; Xie et al., 2003). But the
main problem with most of these studies is
in detecting whether earnings management
has or has not taken place. The studies im-
ply the existence of earnings management
by using a research construct known as
abnormal or discretionary accruals. But
several researchers have cautioned about
the presence of measurement error in the
discretionary accrual models (Dechow et
al., 1995; Guay et al., 1996; McNicholls and
Wilson, 1998; Hansen, 1999; Healy and
Wahlen, 1999; Dechow and Dichev, 2001).

To overcome the imprecision in using dis-
cretionary accrual as a proxy for earnings
management, researchers have also used a
more direct measure of financial reporting
quality. Wright (1997) uses two financial report-
ing quality measures namely the analysts’ pub-
lished evaluations of corporate disclosure prac-
tices and the existence of the SEC Accounting
and Auditing Enforcement Release (AAER)
against the company or its auditor. In the
Singapore context, Thompson and Yeung
(2002) initiated a study that investigates the de-
terminants of corporate transparency for
Singapore listed companies using a newly in-
troduced Corporate Transparency Index (CTI)
developed by the Singapore Business Times,
a financial daily. In Malaysia, Razman and
Iskandar (2002) use finalists for the National
Annual Corporate Reports Award or NACRA
to indicate high quality financial reporting.

We are currently undertaking a study
which attempts to explore the determinants
of quality financial reporting in Malaysia.
Our study dif fers from Razman and
Iskandar (2002) on several fronts. Firstly we
use different proxies to measure the qual-
ity of financial reporting. The first proxy is
what we refer to as the Kuala Lumpur Stock
Exchange’s (KLSE) disclosure quality indi-
cator. Companies that won the KLSE Cor-
porate Awards for exemplary corporate con-
duct in complying with the KLSE’s Listing
Requirements and demonstrating high stan-
dards of corporate governance, disclosure
and transparency coupled with proactive in-
vestor relations efforts were considered
“high” quality.13  Whereas companies that
breached the KLSE’s Listing Requirements

including late submission of annual audited
accounts/reports and non-compliance with
accounting standards were deemed “low”
quality.14  The second proxy is to use the
Standard & Poor’s Global Transparency and
Disclosure ranking of the corporate report-
ing practices of the largest companies in Ma-
laysia. We also extend the Razman and
Iskandar (2002) study by investigating fac-
tors other than audit committee character-
istics such as the provision of non-audit ser-
vices and analysts following on the quality
of financial reporting in Malaysia.

The study can be extended in the future
to include a larger sample. To do so, a self-
constructed accounting and corporate disclo-
sure index incorporating all KLSE-listed com-
panies needs to be developed. This indepen-
dently-developed index may also serve as a
validation check on the KLSE disclosure
quality indicator or other corporate disclo-
sure rankings. The findings of this study may
be of interest to the capital market regula-
tors, investors, auditors, analysts and last but
not least, the PLCs, by encouraging them to
be more transparent and accountable and
make the Malaysian capital market more at-
tractive to domestic and foreign investors
alike. We welcome any constructive feedback
from readers to strengthen our research.

12 For a counter argument, see Antle et al. (1997).

13 The list of winners in 2000, 2001 and 2002 can be
viewed at http://www.klse.com.my/website/list-
ing/corpawards.

14 The full details on the sanctions imposed since 1998
can be viewed at http://www.klse.com.my/
website/news/pr/reprimands.htm.
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It’s Not
BEHIND YOU

F I N A N C E  &  M A N A G E M E N T
M E A S U R E M E N T

By David Allen

Literature advocating the old
“command and compliance”
style of management was
peppered with the word
“measure”. Mantras such as

“if you can’t measure it, you can’t control
it” and “you get what you measure” were
rife.

In too many cases, one single measure -
the profit shown in the accounts - was all
that was deemed necessary to manage a
business. It is, however, possible to take
actions that increase profits in the short-
or medium-term at the expense of the long-
term health of the business. The easiest
way to do this is to cut back on investments
accounted for as costs, such as research,
development, marketing and training.

Quality is another area in which the ac-
counting model can point in the wrong di-
rection. Reducing the cost of a branded
product - for example, by specifying lower
quality raw materials - enhances short-
term profit. For a while, customers will
buy the product assuming that it has not
changed. But once they discover the
poorer quality, they will lose confidence
in the brand and its market share will de-
cline. Such actions amount to trading a
long-term volume opportunity for a short-
term cost reduction.

Recognising the limitations of the ac-
counting model, therefore, many accoun-
tants have grasped the opportunity to take
responsibility for a broader range of mea-
surements. Our monthly accounts show us
what we have sold, but what about our
market share? If we lost share, who gained
it? What appears to lie behind our loss?
Have we got a problem with our reputa-
tion? Have we failed to respond to chang-

ing customer needs?
Predictably, some academics and con-

sultants have put together proprietary ap-
proaches for this wider approach. Probably
the best known are those based on the
balanced scorecard measurement system,
which looks at customers processes and
innovation and learning, as well as the fi-
nancial aspects of a business.

I may have been unlucky, but I have not
yet come across one that includes guidance
on how to balance the different measure-
ments. All those I have seen are multiple
scoreboards, not balanced ones. While the
inclusion of more outward-looking mea-
surements should be applauded, it needs
to be recognised that they are still back-
ward-looking. By definition, you can’t mea-
sure anything until after it has happened
(by which time it is too late to change it).

Many academics and consultants make
the preposterous claim that, if you spend
enough time looking backwards through
their balanced scorecard measurement
system, you will see the future. Having
demonstrated that the future is not a func-
tion of the past as summarised in the ac-
counting numbers, they impertinently as-
sert that it is a function of the past as por-
trayed by multiplicity of measurements.

The reality is that the future is not a func-
tion of the past. The key input to a deci-
sion is not a measurement of past perfor-
mance, but an assessment of future poten-
tial. Measurement is not a waste of time,
but its rightful place is as part of the pro-
cess of monitoring the progress of the busi-
ness. Progress encompasses two compo-
nents: measuring performance (which is
relatively easy and is being steadily del-
egated to computers and technicians) and

assessing the change in potential (which
is more difficult, and calls for a higher level
of skill).

The assessment of the potential (in other
words, the value) of the business is a ho-
listic rather than a reductionist process. It
calls for the right-brain skill of synthesis,
not the left-brain one of analysis. Whereas
the balance sheet shows a summary of the
costs of unconsumed assets, the value of a
business is the product of the interaction
of the various dimensions of strategy.

For example, consider a strategy involv-
ing an investment in product development
followed, if successful, by an investment
in marketing. The idea is to get the best
product in the market and to tell potential
customers about it. At some point we may
measure the outlay on development, but
that is no guarantee that it will result in
the best product in the market. Even if the
development programme is successful,
there is still no guarantee that it will en-
hance the value of the business. That de-
pends on the investment in marketing go-
ing ahead and succeeding, on effective
cost control and on the right selling price
policy.

For those in real business situations, the
idea of balancing backward-looking mea-
sures is irrelevant. What must be balanced,
or optimised, are various possible futures,
as summed up in the individual dimensions
of strategy. For that, there is only one
meaningful question: “What combination
do we believe will maximise the net present
value of the business as a whole?”

Note :  This article was written by David Allen
CBE, a Past President of CIMA and it first ap-
peared in Financial Management, a magazine
published by CIMA, UK.

Analysing past performance has its place, but assessing future
potential is far more important and will also reap much greater
rewards. David Allen challenges the focus on backward-looking
measurements.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

AN



26 Akauntan Nasional March 2003

Expensing of
SHARE OPTIONS
on the horizon

F I N A N C E  &  M A N A G E M E N T
S H A R E  O P T I O N S

By Paul ThompsonIntroduction
In the 1990s employee share options were

the rage in many economies including Ma-
laysia. More recently though these options
have been the subject of a raging debate in
the US. A debate which looks set to become
global. A debate as to how to treat them in
company accounts. A debate which many
Malaysian companies can ill afford to ignore,
especially those with large and generous
Employee Share Option Schemes (ESOS).

A growing band of accountants, investors
and other users of financial statements are
keen to start seeing them expensed in the
profit and loss. And, in the US at least, the
accountants appear to be winning the argu-
ment. The US accounting standards setter,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), is pressing hard for expensing to
become required, rather than just recom-
mended, practice. Several major US compa-
nies — Ford being one of the most recent
converts — have already conceded defeat in
voluntarily agreeing to expense them in an-
ticipation that expensing them will become
mandatory in the not so distant future.

What is the significance of this
debate to Malaysian companies?
Perhaps of more significance to Malay-

sia are the recently published proposals of
the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). The IASB, a body which is-
sues global accounting standards, standards
which Malaysia is increasingly adhering to,
published exposure draft ED2 Share Based
Payment. ED2 recommends the expensing
in the profit and loss statement of the fair
value of employee share options.

Not surprisingly many companies are re-
luctant to expense employee share options.
Many US companies — including corporate
big shots such as Microsoft — have waged
an anti-expense campaign for years now. Ex-
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used to galvanise staff loyalty and motivate
staff to work harder. More recently they have
been systematically used as an alternative to
monetary compensation like salary. And given
that they do not, as yet, have to be expensed
that means employee share options enable
many companies to record lower employee
expenses and in turn fatter profits.

What is an
employee share option?

Employee share options are granted to
employees free of charge. Employees hold-
ing them have the right, but are not obligated,
to buy shares in their employer at a pre-deter-
mined price (called the exercise price) at some
future date. At the point the options are
granted employees do not have to pay a dime.

Take Telekom Malaysia Bhd (TM). Details
of its ESOS is available in the note pertaining
to share capital on page 204 of its annual re-
port for the year 2001 (see Table 1). In the
year to 31 December 2001 it granted
89,536,000 options at an average exercise price
of RM8.53. The option period runs to 15 April
2002, less than four months after the year-end
(in fact at the time of writing this article the
period had already expired!). Hence, anytime
up until 15 April 2002 participating employees
had the right to acquire shares equal to the
number of options they’ve were granted at the
cost of RM8.53 per share. A look at TM’s his-
torical share price data courtesy of the KLSE
reveals that one TM ordinary share was trad-
ing around RM9.50 at the end of 2001 and
peaked at RM10.40 in the first quarter of 2002.

Now imagine you are a TM employee who
has the right to buy a share that is selling
for RM9.50 for an outlay of just RM8.53. This
means you pay RM8.53 for something that
you can sell straight away for RM9.50,
thereby netting a gain of RM0.97. In effect
a RM0.97 risk free instant profit! What then
would you be prepared to pay for this right
(option)? This is the fair value of the option.

Determining the fair value — in layman’s
terms the ‘true worth’ — of share options is
normally difficult. The higher the share price
goes, or is expected to go, the more valuable
the options become. And the longer the exer-
cise period the greater the chance the share
price will increase substantially from what it
is now. Fortunately there are valuation mod-
els available — most notably Black Scholes
(BS) — which enables one to estimate the fair

pensing would severely diminish their re-
ported profits. Indeed Sir David Tweedie,
Chairman of the IASB recently predicted
that operating profits could fall by around
12 per cent in the US and by about four per
cent in Europe if companies were to ex-
pense share options. Especially hard hit
would be the zealots of share options. Take
Yahoo. Had Yahoo expensed share options
in its 2000 accounts then its operating profit
of US$21 million would have become a gap-
ing loss of US$1.9 billion.

So what is the upshot of all this for Ma-

laysian companies? Well if the IASB’s pro-
posals get implemented then in a few years
time companies operating ESOS may have
to start expensing the value of these op-
tions. That may reduce their reported prof-
its. In some cases by a rather large amount,
amounts not dissimilar to those quoted by
the IASB’s Chairman.

What’s the rationale behind
employee share options?

Employee share options, such as those
granted under ESOS, have traditionally been
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value with some degree of accuracy.
While we do not have access to the BS

valuation for TM’s share options (TM does
not disclose it) one can still make a reason-
able approximation of their fair value. This
is because their exercise period expired so
soon after its 31 December 2001 year-end,
which means that the fair value per option
is roughly the difference between the year-
end share price and the exercise price. Tak-
ing RM9.50 as the year-end share price
gives a fair value of about RM1 per option.

What is the existing accounting
treatment for employee share options?

Present Malaysian accounting rules dic-
tate that the likes of TM do not have to
expense the value of these options in the
profit and loss. At the moment listed com-
panies in Malaysia simply have to disclose

in the notes to the accounts the number of
options granted, exercised and outstand-
ing for a particular financial year, together
with summary details of the conditions —
exercise price, exercise period, etc. This
may all change if the IASB’s proposals get
the thumbs-up and it becomes the global
norm to expense employee share options.

What exactly does the IASB have in
mind for employee share options?

The driving principle behind ED2 is to
ensure that when an entity receives ser-
vices in exchange for share-based payment
then companies should recognise this as
an expense. It would appear that ESOS,
which are a form of share-based payment
given in exchange for services rendered
by an employee, fit this scenario. ED2 rec-
ommends that the expense be determined

TA B L E  1

by reference to fair value and that the ex-
pense be recognised over the period in
which the services involved are rendered.

Will expensing become the norm
here in Malaysia?

All the signs suggest it will. The Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (MASB) has
taken big steps towards harmonising account-
ing practices here in Malaysia with those of
the IASB. This can be evidenced from the raft
of new and revised MASB standards, most of
which are based on the IASB’s International
Accounting Standards (IAS). There is every
reason to expect that if ED2 becomes an IAS
then MASB will champion its implementation
in Malaysia by way of an MASB standard.

The IASB continues to grow in influence
and its IAS — now re-branded International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) —
are rapidly becoming the global currency
in the market for accounting rules. Down
the road in Singapore IAS have already
been adopted ‘lock, stock and barrel’.

What would profits of Malaysian
companies using ESOS look like

were they to expense share
options?

To get an idea let’s continue with the TM
illustration introduced earlier. You will re-
call that the fair value of each share option
was estimated to be around RM1. Extrapo-
lating across all 89.5 million options granted
in 2001 yields a total fair value of almost
RM90 million. If TM had expensed this sum
in 2001 then it would have reported a profit
before tax of RM2,353.6 million in 2001
(verses an actual repor ted profit of
RM2,443.6 million). That is, TM’s profits
would have been almost four per cent lower.

Conclusion
If the IASB’s ED2 gets the seal of approval

— and given the trend in the US there is
every reason to expect it will — then the
expensing of employee share options stands
to become the global norm in the foresee-
able future. Those companies that operate
large and generous ESOS may witness a
sharp drop in profits as a result.

Note :  The writer is the Assistant Professor of Ac-
counting and Finance, Nottingham University Busi-
ness School Malaysia Campus. He can be contacted
at Paul.Thompson@unim.nottingham.ac.uk.
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ESOS DISCLOSURE

9. SHARE CAPITAL

(c) ESOS

The existing Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS 2) of the Company was

approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28

March 1997. On 6 October 1997, options to subscribe for 2,782,000 and

217,704,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each at the exercise price of RM7.80 and

RM10.50 per share respectively were granted to eligible Executives and Non-

Executives (referred to as ESOS 2, phase 1). The unexercised options with exer-

cise price of RM7.80 per share have lapsed in November 1999.

On 31 July 2001, options to subscribe for 89,536,000 ordinary shares of RM1

each under ESOS 2 were granted to eligible Executives and Non-Executives at an

exercise price of RM8.53 per share (referred to as ESOS 2, phase 2).

The principal features of ESOS 2 are summarised in paragraph 6 of the Direc-

tors’ Report.

The movement during the year in the number of options over the shares of the

Company are as follows :

                       Phase 2 Phase 1

2001 2001 2000
The Company Million Million Million

At 1 January — 128.6 190.9

Offered 89.5 — —

Exercised (14.7) (1.5) (59.1)

Lapsed — — (3.2)

At 31 December 74.8 127.1 128.6

At 31 December 2001, options to subscribe for 127,080,000 and 74,827,000

ordinary shares of RM1 each at the option price of RM10.50 and RM8.53 per

share respectively under ESOS 2 remained unexercised. These options remain in

force until 15 April 2002. These options do not confer any right to participate in

any share issue of any other company.

Source :  Telekom Malaysia Bhd, Annual Report 2001
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T E C H N O L O G Y
E - B U S I N E S S

The aim of this paper is to introduce the concept of the virtual corporation. First
this article defines the virtual corporation, then lists down the benefits and
limitations of virtual corporations and discusses some critical factors that may
contribute to their success. Finally it touches on the relationship  between virtual
corporations and innovation.

The VIRTUAL
CORPORATION :
Virtual Success or Failure
By Noridah Ibrahim, LECTURER, UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOLOGI MARA, ARAU CAMPUS, PERLIS
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“A virtual corporation is defined as ‘a
group of business partners who have

agreed to extend the walls of their
own organisations to collaborate and
engage in commerce with each other

via e-business technologies”

Introduction
Organisational theorist have ar-

gued that companies in the 21st Cen-
tur y will have to redesign their
organisations in order to be more
competitive in the global market
(Fitzpatrick and Burke, 2000). These
new designs will have to balance a
variety of control issues and require-
ments for strategic flexibility in the
global markets (Daft, 1991 & Christie and
Levary, 1998). The virtual organisation has
often been cited as capable of meeting
these competitive needs (Bleecker, 1994,
& Davidow and Malone, 1992).

The concept of virtual corporation was
first popularised by Davidow and Malone
(1992) in their book, Structuring and
Revitalising the Corporation for the 21st Cen-
tury. The authors presented the virtual
corporation as one that enabled companies
to efficiently provide better products and
services since unique expertise was ap-
plied at every step in the process.

What is a Virtual Corporation?
A virtual corporation is defined as ‘ a

group of business par tners who have
agreed to extend the walls of their own
organisations to collaborate and engage
in commerce with each other via e-busi-
ness technologies. These partners have
complementary or identical goods and
services, related business goals and often
belong to the same supply chain
(Kernohan, 1999).

A virtual corporation can also be defined
as a large company that chooses to
outsource many of its important functions
such as manufacturing or distribution. This
may be done through joint ventures with
suppliers or by partnering with other com-
panies that specialise in particular areas.
This allows the company to focus on what
it does best (Chutchian-Ferranti, 1999).

An example of a company that practised
the concept of virtual corporation is MIPS
Technologies Inc., the maker of micropro-
cessors. It designed microprocessors that
were made by different manufacturers and
sold by yet other companies. Even though
the chips are known as MIPS processors,
MIPS did none of the hands-on work ex-
cept the design and the development of the
MIPS brand (Binstock, 2000).

Attributes of a Virtual Corporation
Davidow and Malone (1992) charact-

erised the virtual corporation as the post-
modern organisation, mercurial and inno-
vative in nature. It is driven by advanced
information technologies. This new breed
of organisation will offer virtual products.
These products will be produced instanta-
neously, will continually be changing to
customer needs and will be shaped based
on continuing interaction with customers.
According to these authors, the virtual
corporation will have few layers of manage-
ment, workers with greater decision-mak-
ing powers and will frequently work as part
of the teams. Managers will have much
broader spans of control, often with hun-
dreds of workers.

Christie and Levary (1998) noted that
information technology plays a central
role in the development, functioning and
success of virtual corporations. It enables
teams from participating companies to
work concurrently rather than sequen-
tially using computer networks in real
time thus saving the time needed to pro-
duce a product. The incredible advance-
ments in telecommunications and com-
puter technology such as local area net-
work (LAN), e-mail, EDI and video-
conferencing make virtual corporations
popular both in the service as well as the
manufacturing sectors.

Numerous advantages have been attrib-
uted to these types of organisations. First,
the use of information technologies per-
mits the organisations to leverage and in-
tegrate specialised knowledge, creative
capabilities and resources across sub-con-
tractors and outsourcers (Goldman, 1998).
Secondly, the partners gain strategic ad-
vantage through rapid and flexible changes
in the product design, supply chain and
distribution management activities
(Davidow and Malone, 1992).

Thirdly the virtual corporations
serve to enhance global competitive-
ness, increase workforce flexibility,
develop inter organisational syner-
gies in key organisational functions
and reduce administrative overheads
(Daft, 1991; Christie and Levary,
1998). They also provide operation
flexibility since par tners can be
changed readily. Fur thermore,

organisations can be involved in many alli-
ances since partnerships are not long-last-
ing and these alliances come to an end as
soon as the intended objectives are attained
(Christie and Levary, 1998).

However there are serious limitations to
virtual corporations. First, participating
partners have access to each other’s trade
secrets, technology and data (Christie and
Levary, 1998) and overtime coordination
among parties through the market place
may become more and more difficult be-
cause each partner may act in its own self-
interest resulting in an advantage to some
par ties and a disadvantage to others
(Chesbrough and Teece, 1996).

Secondly, virtual corporations may result
in the participating company losing hands-
on control (Daft, 1991). Daft also noted that
virtual corporations may result in reduced
organisational participation and weakened
employee loyalty. Furthermore, dif fer-
ences and the corporate cultures of the
participating companies can be obstacles
(Christie and Levary, 1998).

Because of these limitations and the
complexity of the partnerships, not all vir-
tual corporations are successful.

Virtual Success Factors
Given the above limitations, what differ-

entiates the virtual corporation that is suc-
cessful from those that fail? From the analy-
sis of successful and unsuccessful virtual
corporations, Christie and Levary (1998)
identified nine factors that may contribute
significantly to the success of virtual cor-
porations:

Focus on customer needs —  The virtual
corporation should be highly focused on
the customer. It should arise from the re-
sponse to customer needs and the objec-
tive should be the fulfilment of that need.
In today’s fast-paced and volatile economy,
organisations that intelligently forecast and

T E C H N O L O G Y
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… continued on page 36
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7

“… a virtual corporation needs to have a sophisticated
information network that gathers data on markets and

customer needs, combining it with the newest design
methods and computer-integrated production processes

and operating the systems with an integrated network that
consists of highly skilled employees, suppliers and distributors,

and retailers and customers”

discern customer needs and meet them
in a timely manner will be successful.

Choice of right partners with right core
competencies — Core competencies form
the fundamental nucleus of virtual corpo-
rations and represent the most important
factor in success or failure. Virtual corpo-
rations should focus only on those core
competencies that create value and give
competitive advantage. Core competen-
cies should be something that is dif ficult
for competitors to replicate. Partners who
are trustworthy, open, cooperative and
who enjoy certain competitive advantages
in the market place are vital ingredients
to the success of virtual corporations. Ef-
fort and careful consideration is needed
to find such partners.

Win-win outcome for all participating
organisations — The success of virtual
corporations depends on the degree of
collaborations and cooperation between
the participating partners and as such the
goal of the vir tual corporations must
merge the interests of all partners. Exploi-
tation and bullying will result in failure of
the alliance.

Trust — Trust is essential in a virtual
corporation. Participating organisations
must have total trust in each other’s abil-
ity to contribute successfully to the virtual
corporation. While these participating
organisations may be competitors or ri-
vals in other areas of business, there must
be complete collaboration within the ven-
ture. This relationship is strengthened by
constant and open two-way communica-
tion. Besides that, there must also be trust
at all levels of workers — trust between
management and employees, manage-
ment and managers, employees and em-
ployees, and customers and organisation.
This trust requires a new breed of lead-
ers who can trust employees and employ-
ees who can be trusted. In virtual corpo-
rations, the challenge is to manage people
who cannot be seen.

Communication and power of informa-
tion — In virtual corporations, the flow of
communication is essential because it
binds all those involved in achieving the
goals of the virtual corporation. Therefore
a virtual corporation needs to have a ‘so-

phisticated information network that gath-
ers data on markets and customer needs,
combining it with the newest design meth-
ods and computer-integrated production
processes and operating the systems with
an integrated network that consists of
highly skilled employees, suppliers and
distributors, and retailers and customers’
(Davidow and Malone, 1992). The use of
modern real-time communication tech-
nologies will enhance the power of infor-
mation of virtual corporations and will
contribute to the success of the
organisations.

Protection of company’s proprietary in-
formation — In a virtual corporation, the
sharing of information regarding custom-
ers, suppliers and technology between
partners is inevitable. Total restriction of
access to information would defeat the
purpose of virtual corporations. As such,
companies should be able to quickly es-
tablish information technology with one
another and just as quickly disconnect
once the alliance is disbanded to protect
the proprietary information. To survive,
a company must secure its sensitive in-
formation, trade secrets and intellectual
properties against duplication. Because of
the crucial nature of this challenge, par-
ticipating companies must protect its pro-
prietary information, for example by hir-
ing an outside agency to develop informa-
tion protection policies.

A new kind of organisation structure —
Virtual corporations should be lean and
flexible in order to respond to the needs
of the customers. The middle manage-
ment who acts as a channel of communi-
cation in the traditional organisation is
replaced by information technology. In
this flattened organisation, managers

have a broader span of control and must
have expertise in communicating via the
electronic media.

Need for new breed of leader — In a vir-
tual corporation, the manager’s role be-
comes one of facilitating and supporting
rather than dictating orders. Managers
function as communication nodes among
employees, work teams, departments and
partnering companies.

Decentralisation and empowerment are
important to the success of virtual corpo-
rations. They need to decentralise and
give adequate autonomy to different units
and teams. Thus employees can make
quick decisions on the floor that are es-
sential in any virtual corporation.

A new breed of worker — There is a
need for highly motivated, self-directed,
educated, highly skilled and reliable em-
ployees. Employees must also be com-
puter literate. Employees must be willing
to learn in order to acquire skills and ex-
pertise needed in the production of vir-
tual products and services. Continuous
learning will dif ferentiate those who sur-
vive and those who do not. Employees
must also be capable of working in teams
since teamwork is one of the factors that
contribute to the success of virtual cor-
porations. Workers should also have a
high sense of autonomy, require minimal
supervision and direction since they are
likely to be geographically dispersed.

Virtual Corporation and
Innovation

When should companies decide to go
vir tual? According to Chesbrough and
Teece (1996) the decision to go virtual or
not would depend on the innovation be-
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MATCHING ORGANISATION TO INNOVATION
F I G U R E  1

Source :  HBR, January-February, 1996, pp. 71

The capabilities
you need …

… exist 
    outside

… must be 
    created

Type of Innovation 

autonomous systemic

GO VIRTUAL ALLY WITH CAUTION

ALLY OR BRING IN-HOUSE BRING IN-HOUSE

AN

ing pursued by the company in question.
Chesbrough and Teece distinguished

between two types of innovation, autonomous
and systemic. Autonomous innovations can
be carried out independently from other
innovations. For example, a new turbocharger
to increase horsepower in an automobile
engine can be developed without complete
redesign of the engine or the rest of the car.
For systemic innovations, the benefits can
only be realised in conjunction with related,
complementary innovations. For example, to
profit from instant photography, Polaroid
needed to develop both new film technology
and new camera technology.

The reason why the two types of inno-
vations call for dif ferent organisational
strategies is because of the information
flow essential to innovation. Information
about new products and technologies of-
ten develop over time as a result of re-
search and development activities, early
products experiments and initial customer
feedback. To carry out innovation, a tre-
mendous amount of knowledge must be
gathered.

For autonomous innovation, the task of
gathering the information will be some-

what easier because the information
needed to carry out this innovation is usu-
ally well understood and may be codified
in industry standards. Codified informa-
tion is easily transferable from one com-
pany to another and it can be easily dupli-
cated.

The information needed for systemic
innovation, on the other hand consists
mainly of tacit knowledge. Tacit knowledge
is knowledge that is implicitly used and has
not been fully articulated. Transfer of in-
formation tends to be slow and only with
effort and transfer of people.

Systemic innovation, because of their
very nature requires information sharing
and coordinated adjustment throughout an
entire product system. This is where the
virtual type of organisation will get into
trouble. Unaf filiated companies linked
through arm’s-length contact often cannot
achieve sufficient coordination. Each com-
pany wants the other to do more, while
each is also looking for ways to gain the
most from the innovation. Information
sharing can be reduced or is biased, as
each seeks to profit the most at the other’s
expense.

According to Chesbrough and Teece,
few companies that are successful have
outsourced everything. Rather, these com-
panies have carefully nur tured and
guarded the internal capabilities essential
for competitive advantage. They also invest
considerable resources to maintain and
develop their core competencies internally.
Without these unique competencies, their
survival in the industry would be short-
lived.

Today few companies can afford to de-
velop internally all the technologies that
might provide an advantage in the future.
Chesbrough and Teece noted that in ev-
ery company they have studied, they found
a mix of approaches :  some technologies
were purchased from other companies,
some were acquired through partnerships
and alliances and the more critical tech-
nologies were developed internally. Get-
ting the right balance is crucial to the sur-
vival of the companies. (See figure 1)

Conclusion
Although vir tual corporations of fer

many advantages, there are also serious
limitations that may result in the failure
of such organisations. However factors
such as customer focus, right choice of
partners, trust, open communication etc.
may contribute to the success of virtual
corporations. The type of innovation must
also be considered in making decisions
whether to go virtual. When innovations
are autonomous the virtual corporation
can manage the development and coordi-
nation of technology quite well. On the
other hand, when innovations are sys-
temic, the decision to go virtual must be
made with caution.
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PRAISING
EMPLOYEES

M A N A G E M E N T
P R A I S E

By G. Wordsworth

Why Praise Employees?
Being recognised and appreciated — for

the quality of their work by the boss — is
fulfilment. It’s a basic reason, as the em-
ployee isn’t working for the salary alone.
Job satisfaction is a major factor, as employ-
ees of today expect that their consistent job
efficiency is duly noted. If you praise them
when they do a good job, they continue to
maintain those high standards. In today’s
business world loyalty is an extremely hard
commodity to come by, so if praises are one
way of encouraging the employee to stay
on then it should be encouraged.

The particular question of why you, the
Manager, should praise your employees
really … “A company is often known and
judged by the way it treats its employees.”

Interest on the Individual
There is so much good chemistry when the

manager takes an active and continuous in-
terest in the individual. Whilst the team usu-
ally get recognised, the individual person who
has contributed more, consistently there, has
to be singled out for particular praise. A good
way is to publicly announce through the no-
tice board and at meetings in front of his/her
colleagues. Small tokens like presenting cer-
tificates or plaques for the “best worker of the
month” does wonders to improving relation-
ship and promoting company pride.

Praise is Acceptance
Praise is the tonic of acceptance — the con-

firmation to their search for assurance to
know they are received well by the company
and approved by their colleagues and supe-

riors. Whilst the craving for praise can vary
among people, there is no denying if an em-
ployee is completely ignored or isolated, de-
spite his/her good work, that individual will
start to look for greener pastures. Always
keep in mind when others express approval
and acceptance of individuals, these individu-
als start to have greater belief in themselves
and their ability to perform improves even
further. Praise instils confidence and the
Manager should never cite busy schedules
to ignore allocation of time to praise his staff.

Praise is Another Form of Motivation
Which efficient manager does not use mo-

tivation every day? Yes, the right and enthusi-
astic use of praise certainly motivates employ-
ees to strive for higher levels of excellence. If
it has been shown scientifically that even
plants respond in growth to “talking and warm
praises”, Managers need never doubt the in-
fluence praise has on employees.

Praise is a
Dominant Human Need

All human beings need praise as a domi-
nant want or need. When sometimes we are
depressed or anxious, if someone comes
along and praises you for something you have
done, you instantly get a surging uplift. It has
a positive effect and wards off the moody blues!

You needn’t look too far for the effects of
praise — just study the reaction of musicians,
singers, show troopers, artistes, and stage
actors for example when they are cheered
and wildly acclaimed by their audience! The
delight and approval are registered on their
faces — it means everything to them!

Praise Helps Form
Good Attitudes in Employees

Praise goes a long way towards develop-
ing a positive mental attitude, which is vital
to success in any pursuit. When praise nur-
tures self-development your positive
thoughts are clearly directed, your emotions
are under control and you are able to better
focus on your destiny. You can keep your
mind trained on things you want and not
wander or drift off to things you do not wish
for. A positive mental attitude is healthy and
it makes you happy. Praise does help form
a positive mental attitude in employees.

A Suggested Plan of Praise
for use by Managers

� Praise those employees you manage —
frequently, as and when they deserve.

� Seek out reasons to offer praise — be alert
for any and every opportunity to recognise
your employee who has acquitted himself/
herself well. The key points are dedication,
quality of work and co-operation.

� Watch for suitable forums and opportu-
nities to praise the individual employees
in front of others.

� Verbal praise of an employee must be fol-
lowed up with a letter of commendation.

� When worthy or useful ideas and sugges-
tions come from your employees acknowl-
edge them with praise for their contribu-
tion. Some organisations do top up with
cash rewards when they praise someone.

The type of management that includes
“plenty of praise” in its organisational
policy, will be a more harmonious and suc-
cessful one. Their employees will remem-
ber the praise and will be motivated to sup-
port the Manager who appreciates them
and lets them know this!

Praise has six powerful letters that make
the word dynamic, remember the pneu-
monic :  Praise Rewards Awareness In
Special Efforts.

Praise of employees has a rollover effect and sets of acclaim and
notice — just like applause. Praise is empowerment as it throws
open doors, hitherto only slightly ajar, and you are able to tap into
more effective management and supervision, and much improved
productivity. The quiet, almost unnoticed, worker is suddenly
transformed into a valued worker and that is magic!

AN
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Let’s be clear about one thing
— the amendments initially
introduced to Section 75(1) of
the Malaysian Income Tax
Act 1967 (Act 53) (ITA) by

Section 6 of the Finance Act 2002 (Act 619)
(hereinafter referred to as “the first amend-
ment”) did not have the effect of imposing
“personal liability” upon directors, company
secretaries and other officers of companies
and bodies of persons (hereinafter referred
to collectively as “office bearers”) for the
non-payment of tax by such company or
body of persons. The first amendment only
reinforced the vicarious responsibilities2  (as
distinct from vicarious chargeability3 , or
even “personal liability”) of office bearers4 .

Regrettably, the first amendment had been
misconstrued as having the draconian ef-
fect of holding office bearers “personally li-
able” for the non-payment of taxes by a com-
pany or other body of persons, without proof
of culpability or scienter on the part of such
office bearers (hereinafter referred to as
“the draconian view”). In my first article I
had argued that this could not have been
the intention of Parliament or, even if there
had been a darker agenda, the language of
the first amendment was inadequate and had
misfired to an incurable degree. Conversely,
the proponents of the draconian view ap-
peared to take the position that the inten-
tion of Parliament was clear, and that the
language of the first amendment was ad-
equate, for the purpose of imposing per-
sonal liability upon office bearers.

If indeed the first amendment had such a
draconian effect, there would be no need
for the authorities5  to repeal6  it in favour
of a new Section 75A ITA7  (hereinafter re-
ferred to collectively as “the second amend-
ment”) less than a year later, i.e. in the very

next Budget8 . If the authorities felt
strongly that the draconian view was the
better view, that would have been the end
of the story and there would be no need
for the second amendment. In light of the
foregoing, there can be but one conclusion
– the second amendment strikes down the
draconian view in one fell swoop.

The first amendment – Section 75
The first amendment came into force on

8 February 2002 and (until the second
amendment came into force on 27 Decem-
ber 2002) Section 75(1) read as follows (the
first amendment is shown in bold) :

“(1) Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary to this Act or any other
written law, the responsibility for do-
ing all acts and things required to be
done by or on behalf of a company or
body of persons for the purposes of this
Act including the payment of tax
shall lie jointly and severally :

a) in the case of a company, with :
i. the manager or other principal of-

ficer in Malaysia;
ii. the directors;
iii. the secretary; and
iv. any person (however styled) exercis-

ing the functions of any of the per-
sons mentioned in the foregoing sub-
paragraphs; and

b) in the case of a body of persons, with
i. the manager;
ii. the treasurer;
iii. the secretary; and
iv. the members of its controlling au-

thority.”

To summarise the arguments contained
in my first article, the draconian view of
the first amendment was untenable for hav-

ing violated the following critical principles
of statutory interpretation :

� clear words must be used by Parliament
to hold office bearers vicariously charge-
able or even “personally liable” for the
taxes of a company or other body — this
could not be achieved by a contrived pro-
cess of inference and implied assertion
(hereinafter referred to as the “clarity
principle”).

� ambiguities in taxing/penal statutes are
to be construed in favour of the individual.

� ut res magis valeat quam pereat — every
word in a statute must be given meaning
and cannot be treated as dead letter —
regard must be had to Parliament’s reten-
tion of the less onerous concept of “re-
sponsibility” in preference to other more
onerous concepts such as “liability”, “vi-
carious chargeability” or even “joint and

TA X AT I O N
S E C T I O N  7 5 A

Section 75A and
Shipwrecks on
our shores1 By Anand Raj

ADVOCATE AND SOLICITOR

1 This article was first published in the 4th Quarter
2002 issue of the Malaysian Institute of Taxation’s
Tax Nasional.  This article is also a sequel to my
earlier article entitled “Of sidewinds and botched
experiments :  Section 75 is not a tax on office bear-
ers” which appeared as the main feature article in
the 1st Quarter 2002 issue of Tax Nasional.  That
article was subsequently republished in the July/
August 2002 issue of the Asia Pacific Tax Bulletin
(International Bureau of Fiscal Documentation) and
the August 2002 issue of Akauntan Nasional (Ma-
laysian Institute of Accountants). As it would be
unnecessarily repetitive to reproduce the authori-
ties previously considered, the present ar ticle
should be read in light of the earlier one.

2 i.e. under Section 67(4) ITA.
3 i.e. under Section 67(3) ITA.
4 See my first article, the section entitled “The omis-

sion of the statutory formula of “assessable and
chargeable” and reading Part IV ITA as a whole —
what does the amended Section 75(1) really mean?”

5 As it appears that the Treasury and the Revenue
have acted as de facto “promoters” of both amend-
ments, they will be referred to collectively as “the
authorities”.

6 Section 14 of the Finance Act (No. 2) 2002 (Act 624).
7 Section 15 of the Finance Act (No. 2) 2002 (Act 624).
8 Budget 2003, which was presented on 20 Septem-

ber 2002.
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several liability” (hereinafter referred to
as “the alternative formulations”).

� statutes must be read as a whole — Part IV
ITA should be read in a coherent fashion.

� expressio unius est exclusio alterius – “ex-
press enactment shuts the door to fur-
ther implication” — the express provi-
sions of Sections 66 — 74 and 76 pre-
clude any implication of vicarious
chargeability under Section 75(1).

� substantial changes in law cannot be ca-
sually inferred to arise by a sidewind.

� statutes should not be read so as to re-
sult in absurdity.

From a reading of Income Tax Commis-
sioner v Chatani [1983] STC 477, a Ja-
maican appeal to the Judicial Committee of
the Privy Council (JCPC), as well as other
authorities, it was abundantly clear that
the first amendment could not have a dra-
conian effect as that would violate the
clarity principle. In Chatani, Revenue Ja-
maica purported to rely upon Section 52 of
the Jamaican Income Tax Act in attempting
to hold Chatani, a director of the delinquent
taxpayer company, “personally liable” for the
taxes of the company. The JCPC rejected this
and held that the company was chargeable
to and liable for its own taxes and that the
statutory provision in question (which only
provided that the director was “answerable”
for the company’s taxes) was not sufficiently
clear to hold Chatani jointly and severally li-
able with the company. The JCPC held fur-
ther that any intention on the part of the
legislature to hold a director jointly and
severally liable with the company had to
be expressed in clear language. Most
importantly, the JCPC specifically found
that “answerable” only meant “respon-
sible” and that neither meant “person-
ally liable”. This is the clearest possible
rejection of the draconian view that one
can expect to find.

As every Malaysian lawyer knows, the
clarity principle, which is an ancient and trite
principle of common law jurisprudence, has
been part of Malaysian legal philosophy
at least from the 19th Century. The clarity
principle has found practical application in
Malaysian Revenue legislation by impel-
ling Parliament to specifically incorporate
the “joint and several liability” formulation
(in regard to certain individuals) under Sec-

tion 17 of the Service Tax Act 1975 (Act 151)
and Section 26 of the Sales Tax Act 1972
(Act 64)9 . (Another analogous example
would be Section 46 of the Employees Provi-
dent Fund (“EPF”) Act 1991 (Act 452).) Had
the first amendment been designed to im-
pose joint and several liability or vicarious
chargeability upon office bearers, Parlia-
ment could have adopted any one of the al-
ternative formulations it had previously
used for this purpose.

If the draconian view were tenable, it
would mean that the clarity principle could
be wantonly disregarded and that the sec-
ond amendment would be unnecessary. On
the contrary, it is only now with the second
amendment that we find that the authorities
have elected to adopt one of the alternative
formulations by introducing the concept of
“joint and several liability” vide Section 75A.

Some Problems with
the First Amendment

In my first article, the following absurdi-
ties were identified as likely to ensue by a
sidewind, should the draconian view of the
first amendment be upheld :

� Parliament intended even independent
non-executive directors sitting on the
boards of public-listed companies to put
their personal assets at stake.

� Parliament intended to introduce an un-
limited “personal liability” concept which
would go much further than the exist-
ing vicarious chargeability and vicarious
responsibility concepts comprehensively
set out in Part IV ITA by creating a dif-
ferent and more onerous obligation
within Part IV ITA without amending the
general principle in Section 66.

� Parliament intended to impose vicarious
chargeability (or even “personal liability”)
upon office bearers without the Section
67 safeguards10  (or any other safe-
guards) applicable to “representatives”
who were vicariously chargeable on be-
half of various “principals” identified in
Part IV ITA.

� Parliament intended to impose vicarious
chargeability upon office bearers over
and above the “accessible moneys” of the
principal and in the absence of any cul-
pability or scienter on the part of such
office bearers.

� the concept of limited liability of compa-
nies would have to be reconfigured for
income tax purposes.

� the corporate veil may be lifted without
any special circumstances or just rea-
sons for so doing.

As will be seen, the second amendment ad-
dresses some of the foregoing concerns.
Unfortunately however, this comes at a price.
We now have to face new interpretative prob-
lems, some of which are discussed below.

The Second Amendment
Following extensive lobbying by a broad

range of interest groups, the authorities
promulgated the second amendment (effec-
tive from 27 December 2002) which repeals
the first amendment in its entirety and re-
places it with a new Section 75A, which
reads as follows :

“75A. (1) Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary to this Act or any other writ-
ten law, where any tax is due and pay-
able under this Act by a company, any
person who is a director of that company
during the period in which that tax is
liable to be paid, shall be jointly and sev-
erally liable for such tax that is due and
payable and shall be recoverable under
Section 106 from that person.

(2) In this section, “director” means any
person who :
a) is occupying the position of director
(by whatever name called), including
any person who is concerned in the man-
agement of the company’s business; and
b) is, either on his own or with one or
more associates within the meaning of

9 Although some commentators have suggested that
companies and office bearers might be in a “fidu-
ciary position” under such Acts, such observations
are erroneous as there are fundamental differences
between statutory obligations, duties and liabilities
under such Acts and the existence of a “fiduciary
relationship” under Malaysian law.

10 e.g. payments of tax etc. are restricted to “acces-
sible moneys” of the principal, the representative
is indemnified for acting in such capacity and, for
the avoidance of doubt, cannot be prosecuted for
offences committed by the principal in which he
had no part.  For completeness, “accessible mon-
eys” means “… any moneys (including any pension
and any salary, wages or other remuneration) which
— (a) from time to time are due from the represen-
tative to the principal or are held by the represen-
tative in his custody and control on behalf of the
principal; or (b) being then moneys of or due to the
principal, are obtainable on demand by the repre-
sentative.” — see Section 67(7) ITA.
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subsection 139(7)11 , the owner of, or able
directly or through the medium of other
companies or by any other indirect means
to control, more than fifty per cent of the
ordinary share capital of the company
(“ordinary share capital” here having the
same meaning as in the definition of “di-
rector” in Section 2).” (emphasis added)

Section 75A(1) clearly imposes “joint and
several liability” upon a “director” as de-
fined under Section 75A(2), which is ma-
terially different from the interpretation of
“director” under Section 2 ITA (i.e. the
applicable interpretation everywhere else
in the ITA). For completeness, the inter-
pretation of “director” in Section 2 ITA is
as follows (the underlined language is dif-
ferent or missing from Section 75A(2)) :

““director”, in relation to a company, in-
cludes  any person occupying the position
of director (by whatever name called),
any person in accordance with whose di-
rections or instructions the directors are
accustomed to act and any person who :

a) is a manager of the company or oth-
erwise concerned in the management of
the company’s business;

b) is remunerated out of the funds of
that business; and

c) is, either on his own or with one or
more associates within the meaning of
Section 139(7), the beneficial owner of
(or able directly or through the medium
of other companies or by any other indi-
rect means to control) twenty per cent
or more of the ordinary share capital of
the company (“ordinary share capital”
here meaning all the issued share capi-
tal of the company, by whatever name
called, other than capital the holders
whereof have a right to a dividend at a
fixed rate but have no other right to
share in the profits of the company).”

Whilst the Section 2 interpretation of “di-
rector” is broad and non-exhaustive, the Sec-
tion 75A(2) definition is exhaustive and has
a more limited scope12 . The Section 2 inter-
pretation covers, amongst others, all direc-
tors (by whatever name called, and includ-
ing persons concerned in the management
of the company’s business), whether or not
such director owns or controls any share

capital of the company concerned and
whether or not that company is a private,
public or public-listed company. In contrast,
the Section 75A(2) definition only covers
persons occupying the position of director
(by whatever name called, and including
persons concerned in the management of the
company’s business) who, either on their
own or with one or more associates, directly
or indirectly own or control more than 50 per
cent of the ordinary share capital of the com-
pany (hereinafter referred to as a “control-
ling director”). Though the definition of “di-
rector” under Section 75A(2) could, in
theory, cover directors of public or public
listed companies, in practice it is only likely
to cover directors of family owned, or other
tightly knit, private companies. Having said
that, it is not immediately clear why the Sec-
tion 75A(2) definition of a controlling direc-
tor should exclude “any person in accordance
with whose directions or instructions the di-
rectors are accustomed to act”.

The Second Amendment — Some
New Ambiguities and Problems13

Although the second amendment does pre-
serve the dichotomy of vicarious chargeability
and vicarious responsibility in Part IV ITA, we
now have to contend with a new Section 75A
which expressly enacts the “joint and several
liability” of controlling directors. Turning to
the language of the second amendment, the
more one deliberates upon Section 75A the
more interpretative problems one tends to
notice — here are but some examples :

a) “Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
to this Act or any other written law” :
i. the underlined “to” should probably be
“in” and is probably a drafting or typo-
graphical error;
ii. regardless of the imperative nature of
the language used, there are likely to be
problems with this in practice. It is conceiv-
able that some of the harsher effects of the
second amendment may be mitigated by ju-
dicial decisions. (See also the discussion in
sub-paragraph (c) below)

b) “any person who is a director during the
period in which the tax is liable to be paid” :
i. this could have extremely iniquitous
consequences as there are no express safe-
guards whatsoever for a controlling direc-
tor14 . Under Malaysian law, time to collect

taxes (which have already been assessed)
by civil proceedings does not run against
the Government of Malaysia. Accordingly,
the Revenue may attempt to sue a former
controlling director under this section for
unpaid taxes of the company dating back
10, 20 or even 30 years and even after the
company is wound up and/or its documents
lost or destroyed. Even assuming there is
some mistake, e.g. the tax in question has
already been paid or is not even payable,
the director would have difficulty in prov-
ing it or in defending himself as the relevant
documents may have been destroyed, or
may be inaccessible to him e.g. if he has
ceased to be a director of the company.

c) “shall be jointly and severally liable for
such tax that is due and payable and shall
be recoverable under Section 10615  from that
person” :

i. Well here’s the rub. The foregoing statu-
tory words pay lip service to the clarity prin-
ciple but, regrettably, fall far short of the stan-
dards of reasonableness taxpayers should be

TA X AT I O N

11 Section 139(7) of the ITA — an “associate” means,
in relation to a person :

a) a person in any of the following relationships to that
person, that is to say, husband or wife, parent or
remoter forebear, child or remoter issue, brother,
sister and partner;

b) the trustee or trustees of a settlement in relation to
which that person is, or any such relative of his (liv-
ing or dead) as is mentioned in paragraph (a) of
this definition is or was, a settlor (“settlement” and
“settlor” here having the same meaning as in Sec-
tion 65);

c) where that person is interested in any shares or
obligations of a company which are subject to any
trust or are part of the estate of a deceased person,
any other person interested therein.

12 Contrast the use of the word “includes” in the Sec-
tion 2 interpretation with the use of the word
“means” in the Section 75A(2) definition.  It should
also be noted that Section 2 is an interpretation sec-
tion with the opening words “In this Act, unless the
context otherwise requires – ”.  If it was intended
that “director” should have the broader Section 2
interpretation, Section 75A(2) would be wholly un-
necessary – per Foo Loke Ying [1985] 2 MLJ
35.

13 This is not, nor is it intended to be, an exhaustive
list of ambiguities/problems and proposed interpre-
tations/solutions.  This section of the article only
contains my preliminary observations as at the time
of writing.

14 It may be possible to argue that certain procedural
and/or substantive safeguards should be implied
under Malaysian law.  However, constraints of time
and space do not permit a fuller discussion of such
matters here.

15 The material words of which are as follows — Sec-
tion 106(1) — “Tax due and payable may be recov-
ered by the Government by civil proceedings as a debt
due to the Government.” and Section 106(3) — “In
any proceedings under this section the court shall not
entertain any plea that the amount of tax sought to
be recovered is excessive, incorrectly assessed, under
appeal or incorrectly increased under Section 103 …”
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entitled to expect of the authorities.

ii. A controlling director is held to be “jointly
and severally liable” without any express re-
quirement to prove culpability or scienter16

on the part of such director. In other words,
the Revenue could seek to argue that even
an “honest” controlling director who had fully
complied with his statutory and fiduciary du-
ties, and who had no intention to cause the
company to evade the payment of its taxes,
would be jointly and severally liable for the
unpaid taxes of the company merely because
the company did not have the money to pay
e.g. due to a drop in business, negative eco-
nomic conditions or some other factor be-
yond the controlling director’s control.

iii. The second amendment introduces a de
facto constraint upon the discharge of a con-
trolling director’s fiduciary and statutory
duties to the company. Some controlling di-
rectors may become so concerned with
avoiding personal liability that their judge-
ment and impartiality in decision making
are adversely affected. The interests of the
company, and that of minority shareholders,
are unlikely to be served in such cases.

iv. There is no express requirement for the
Government to exhaust its remedies against
the company before a controlling director
can be sued for the unpaid taxes. The Rev-
enue would probably argue that it may elect
to commence civil proceedings against the
controlling director, the company or both17 .

v. What if the controlling director (e.g.
wishing to avoid litigation, out of fear or
for some other reason) pays first, even
though the company has appealed against
the assessments in question? If the
company’s appeal is subsequently allowed,
what is the applicable refund procedure?
Would the Revenue refund the taxes to the
company or to the director (who may no
longer be with the company)?

vi. The second amendment may well be a
roundabout way of the Revenue trying to
overcome the lack of priority accorded to
federal taxes under the Companies Act
1965. e.g. the sales tax case of Director of
Customs Federal Territor y v. Ler
Cheng Chye (Liquidator of Castwell
Sdn Bhd (in Liquidation)) [1995] 3
CLJ 316 is instructive. In this winding up
matter, the Supreme Court held that fed-
eral taxes could only be given priority in

accordance with Section 292(1) of the Com-
panies Act 1965 (Act 125), whereunder fed-
eral taxes are ranked sixth as a preferred
debt, but only just ahead of unsecured
debts generally. The Supreme Court ap-
plied the principle of generalia specialibus
non derogant and held that the provisions
of the Companies Act 1965, being specific
legislation on priorities amongst creditors
in winding up matters, would prevail over
the general language of the Sales Tax Act
1972 and the Government Proceedings Act
1956. The Court of Appeal in the recent
case of Carah Enterprise Sdn Bhd18  has
applied this principle in the context of re-
ceivership proceedings under Section 191
of the Companies Act 1965, in regard to a
claim for income tax.
vii. With the second amendment, the Revenue
may now target controlling directors in cases
where the Revenue felt the priority rules
under the Companies Act 1965 could make
it difficult to collect outstanding taxes directly
from the company. The Revenue may even
purport to suggest that they have a general
discretion to target controlling directors.
viii.While the foregoing problems will have
to be resolved in time to come, I believe that
the authorities are likely to meet with some
disappointments along the way as Malaysian
courts are likely to find ways to mitigate
some of the harsher effects of the second
amendment e.g. it is possible that an “hon-
est” director who acts in full compliance with
his statutory and fiduciary duties etc. may
be afforded some form of procedural and/
or substantive protection or relief.

Where Do We Go From Here?
I have never been in favour of imposing

any form of personal liability upon direc-
tors or office bearers. I’m still against it as
it’s likely to lead to unnecessary confusion
and conflict between tax law and company
law. In some situations, Section 75A may
well interfere with the proper discharge of
a director’s duties. To make matters worse,
Section 75A does not expressly require any
element of culpability or scienter19  for the
imposition of joint and several liability.

Although the first amendment did not have
a draconian effect, it was open to misinter-
pretation (and possible abuse) by persons
beholden to a draconian view of it. All man-
ners of iniquitous and absurd results would

have been occasioned by a draconian inter-
pretation of the first amendment. Fortunately,
the second amendment takes us beyond such
concerns20 . However, while it is heartening
to see that the authorities are trying to be
sensitive to private sector and investor con-
cerns, and the second amendment is an im-
provement (of sorts) on the first amendment,
Section 75A is still far from reasonable.

The introduction of the second amendment
now requires us to focus our concerns on a
smaller class of persons i.e. controlling di-
rectors (rather than office bearers of com-
panies and other bodies of persons, irrespec-
tive of whether such office bearers have “con-
trol” or not). Nevertheless, the numerous
lacunas, ambiguities, and even absurdities
inherent within this limited class will still
have to be adjudicated upon, on a case by
case basis. This doesn’t mean that I’m against
further legislative refinement of Section 75A
to address its obvious weaknesses. It’s just
that, given all that’s happened, it seems un-
likely that the authorities would admit that
the second amendment is flawed. Either that
or the “flaws” are deliberate.

Note :  The writer is a Partner, in the Tax and
Revenue Practice Group of Messrs. Shearn
Delamore & Co. The views of the author do not
necessarily represent the views of his firm or
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Nothing
herein contained should be construed as legal
advice on the applicability of any provision of
law to a given set of facts.

16 It may be possible to argue that the requirement
for some degree of culpability or scienter should be
implied under Malaysian law.

17 As alluded to earlier, it may be possible for control-
ling directors to argue that certain procedural and/
or substantive safeguards should be implied under
Malaysian law.  Additionally, this may be con-
trasted with the slightly more favourable position
under Section 26 of the Sales Tax Act 1972, Section
17 Service Tax Act 1975 and Section 22C of the
Customs Act 1967 which specifically restrict the
joint and several liabilities of directors (and other
office bearers) in winding up cases.  In such cases,
directors and office bearers are only liable where
the assets of the company are insufficient to meet
the amount due to Customs after distribution in
accordance with the priorities set out under the
Companies Act 1965.  No similar restrictions were
enacted vide the second amendment, (2002) 4MLJ
603.

18 See The Star, 7 November 2002, “Income tax not a
priority debt for receivership firms”.

19 As alluded to above, it may still be possible to ar-
gue that the requirement for some degree of culpa-
bility or scienter should be implied under Malay-
sian law.

20 Recent shipwrecks on our shores bear witness to
the r unning aground of ships manned by
Draconians (being persons in habitual occupation of
the land of Draconia) due to an inability to safely
drop anchor in Malaysian waters.
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M O N E Y  T R E E
F I N A N C I A L  P L A N N I N G

Independence
and your Financial
Planning
Practice By Yap Ming Hui

Since the launching of the Financial Advisors Entrepreneurship
Programme (FAEP), I have received many inquiries from CFP gradu-
ates and students about ways to start-up their financial planning prac-
tice. One of the most frequently asked questions is about the inde-
pendence of their financial planning practice. The graduates and stu-
dents are very concerned about being ethical and professional in their
advice. As such, they would like to know more on how they can achieve
this independence in their respective practices.

1

D
ue to the fact that many
graduates and students
are accountants by educa-
tion, I would like to ad-
dress some issues on inde-

pendence and financial planning practices
in this article. Why is independent finan-
cial planning important to the client? How
do we define an independent financial plan-
ner? What are the different perspectives
of independent financial planning? How do
we know the level of independence for your
financial planning service?

Why is Independent

Financial Planning Important to

the Client?

Lets put yourself in the client’s shoes. If
you are going to disclose your entire finan-
cial details, including your objectives, val-
ues, assets and liabilities, income and ex-
penses — and delegate the development
and execution of a customised financial
plan — you want to work with someone you
can trust. Someone you know who will put
your interest above his or hers. You want
to have a financial advisor who is indepen-
dent and objective in giving his advice.
Someone who wants more than just sell-
ing you a unit trust, an insurance policy, or
share trading services. Someone you can
count on to keep the big picture in mind,
the needs of your loved ones foremost. As
a professional, you know that you will want
to look for independent financial planning
services.

Who is an Independent

Financial Planner?

Until now, there is no clear regulatory
definition as to who an independent finan-
cial planner in Malaysia is. However, we
can make some reference to Singapore. Ac-
cording to the recently released draft of the
Singapore Financial Advisers Regulations
2002, the independent financial advisor is
defined as an advisor who :

Does not receive any commission and
other benefits from product providers
which may tend to create a product
bias;
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Operates free from any direct or indi-
rect restrictions relating to the product
recommended; and

Operates without any conflict of inter-
ests created by any connection to or
association with product providers.

The Three Perspectives of

Independent Financial Planning

There are three categories of indepen-
dent financial planning that you may use
to measure the level of independence of
your financial planning practice, i.e. multi-
products, multi-companies and multi-pro-
fessional.

Multi-Products
Just like there is no one medicine that

will cure all diseases, there is no single fi-
nancial product that will best address all
the financial concerns of a person. An in-
dependent financial planner must be some-
one who is able to recommend different
financial solutions for different financial cir-
cumstances. He or she must not limit the
recommendation to only one financial
product, be it insurance, unit trust or oth-
ers. He or she must be able to package a
combination of financial products to pro-
vide the innovative solutions to achieve
different financial goals. Even though, it
may not be as serious as the statement “A
medicine for a person could be poison for
another”. There is somehow opportunity
cost in using various financial products as
a recommendation. As financial planners,
we are expected to help the clients explore
alternatives of financial solutions, evaluate
the advantages and disadvantages of the
alternatives and propose innovative solu-
tions for different financial concerns. As
such, an independent financial planner
must have knowledge and access to a wide
and comprehensive range of financial prod-
ucts, available to him or her to prescribe,
as and when required. Only then can the
client expect good innovation and value-
adding in the recommended solution you
make. If you are only familiar with one fi-
nancial product, it is very unreasonable for
the client to expect much level of innova-

tion from the advice due to the limitation
of alternatives.

Multi-Company
As professionals we know that different

financial institutions have dif ferent
strengths and weaknesses in financial
products and services offered. In reality,
it is almost impossible to expect any finan-
cial institution to be able to provide the best
products in all ranges of financial products
and services. For example, there is no one
single company that can provide the top
quality unit trust in all categories of funds.
There are some unit trust companies that
perform better in the growth fund cat-
egory. There are different companies that
perform better than the rest in the income
fund category. In order to meet our client’s
different financial needs, we must be able
to provide recommendations based on a
soundly researched view of financial solu-
tions provided by different companies. The
financial planner must constantly update
himself/herself with that information. If
you claim yourself to be independent, your
recommendation of financial solutions
must not be limited to only one or two fi-
nancial institutions.

A discerned consumer wants to be sure
that the financial planner is taking care of
his or her interest rather than the interest
of the company he/she represents. In or-
der for a consumer to benefit from a finan-
cial planner’s advice, it is important that
the financial planner be not locked into any
one financial institution. His recommenda-
tion must not be limited to any particular
company. Only then, can the client trust
that the advice given by you will be truly
independent.

Multi-Professionals
Even though I provide financial planning

services almost everyday, I still do not
know everything about financial planning.
In reality, it is almost impossible to know
everything about financial planning. Finan-
cial planning is a discipline that will involve
not only financial planning expertise. Other
professional expertise like legal, invest-

AN
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ment, tax, accounting and real estate ex-
pertise are also very crucial in developing
and implementing a successful financial
plan. An effective financial plan must be
truly a team-approach.

If you do not have all the knowledge and
do not work in a team of multi-profession-
als, chances are your financial planning
advice is not complete. As a normal human
being, the way we see the world is pretty
much limited to our experience and knowl-
edge of the world. A financial planner from
the insurance background will be likely to
be more biased to insurance products ir-
respective of the compensation. Likewise,
if you are from the accounting background,
it will also be natural that your recommen-
dation will be more biased towards ac-
counting and tax. Since it is almost impos-
sible for one to know everything, one vi-
able way to reduce the bias and increase
objectivity is by having your practice sup-
ported by multi-discipline professional
teams.

How Do We Tell If We Are

Independent Financial Planners?

In order to assess your level of indepen-
dence, you can ask the following questions
about your financial planning practice :

Are my recommendations only limited
to one type of financial service and
product?

Are my recommendations only limited
to one company’s financial services and
products only?

Do I work alone to develop the recom-
mendations or do I work with a team
of multi-disciplinary professionals?

By getting proper answers to these ques-
tion, you would be able to identify the level
of independence for your financial planning
service. If you feel that you would like to
increase the level of independent advice,
you may take necessary actions accord-
ingly to ensure that your advice is in your
client’s best interests.

Note :  The writer is the Managing Director of
Whitman Independent Advisors Sdn Bhd. He
can be contacted via e-mail at yapmh@whit-
manindependent.com

2
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Small Business Ways to
Multiply

B E T T E R  L I F E
I N N OVAT I O N

By Chris Read

Today, focus is on the need for small
to medium enterprises to be the
businesses ingredient for developing
nations. A number of third-world developing
nations in the region have conducted extensive,
domestic, studies and research, to determine and document
their individual success, failure and vulnerability.

1

2

3

The Australian Bureau of Industry
Economics conducted an in-depth
study of business on :

The question of innovation in business.

How much money was spent on inno-
vation.

The achievements and returns re-
ceived on such investment.

Of 1,305 companies (62 per
cent of whom were small
to medium enterprises)
spread across the coun-
try that were examined,
some surprising results
emerged and provided a
valuable benchmark for the fu-
ture of small business in Austra-
lia. It was revealed that the sur-
veyed firms spent some 19 per cent of
their annual expenditure on business in-
novation. And this included new and im-
proved products, value added services to
the company, and measures to satisfy cus-
tomers.

The survey interestingly also revealed
that for every US$1 spent by these firms,
the smaller companies generated about
US$3 in sales whilst the larger companies
benefited US$14 in generated sales. This
thus showed that smaller firms faced im-
pediments in getting greater returns for
their investment.
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What Can Firms Derive
From Innovation?

In most situations it is projected that 50
per cent of total sales come from innova-
tions introduced over the preceding three-
year period. If the time period is extended
to five years than the total sales figure in-
creases to some 80 per cent. Innovation
gives firms a greater platform of competi-
tiveness through :

� Improved quality or service;

� Increased customer satisfaction;

� Significant extension of product range;

� Increased profits;

� Reduced production costs; and

� Greater production flexibility.

Financial and resource constraints often
force smaller firms to avoid competing on
price with larger firms. They prefer to distin-
guish their product or service on quality, and
this is where the ability to innovate will give
the small businesses the distinct advantage.

Innovation in Small Firms
The general “rule-of-thumb” is that

1:10:100 represents the ratio of research :
development : commercialisation. However
this proved incorrect in the Australian sur-
vey and could also be the trend elsewhere
in developing nations. Smaller firms are
now spending proportionately more on
research and development — closer to the
1:2:2 ratio, while larger firms could be av-
eraging 1:4:4 ratio — expenses on
commercialisation are therefore being
greatly reduced.

Where Do Ideas of
Innovation Stem From?

Companies, small and large, obtain most
of their ideas from internal sources :

� management

� marketing

� finance

� production

They also source externally from :

�  feedback from customers

� universities

� research institutions

� competitors

Lack of
Management Resources

The Australian study highlighted lack of
management resources as having contrib-
uted significantly to why innovation re-
turns (300 per cent) in small companies
compared poorly against those returns
(1,400 per cent) from larger companies.

In smaller companies the traditional ap-
proach of equipping managers with skills
through training and advice only enjoyed
very limited success as they were greatly
constrained by time and opportunity, for
managers were pushed to get on with the
daily tasks and preferred to finish those

business matters first.
Access to management advice, is a more

worthwhile policy strategy that smaller
companies can adopt to help implement
innovation. They can then reduce the need
to access direct management training.
Companies could possibly look at mini
“Management Mentor” programmes as an
alternate resource too.

Lack of Finance
Lack of finance has been acknowledged

as the other major impediment for small
business, in that potential investors are few
and far in between. Consequently some
firms have resorted to an alternate option
— that of entering into an alliance or pact
with another firm. These alliances form
linkages to perform more intense innova-
tion through pool-resource than either of
the companies could accomplish on its own
merits.

By building on this foundation and ex-
tending similar links with distributors,
marketers, and agencies the smaller firms
can spread their innovations further and
deeper into the market place.

Drawing Conclusions
From the experiences elsewhere in the

region and taking into account the revela-
tions of the Australian study, it is clear that
innovation is rewarding and a positive in-
fluence on business development. Small
businesses certainly need to invest in it to
garner greater success.

Whilst it is recognised that shortfall of
finance and lack of proper management
skills are an industry’s problem, the avail-
ability of networking measures do provide
some relief to overcome impediments to
the greater profits that await the resilient
small businesses. Any investment in inno-
vation still remains one of the most profit-
able activities you, as well as your business,
can involve in.

Through innovation, small businesses
can multiply sales of goods and services;
extend their areas of business operations;
and be more competitive. Today’s move to
get Asia Pacific Economic Communities to
galvanise the activities of the “small and
medium enterprises” adds further testi-
mony that the success of business does
depend on innovation! AN
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B E T T E R  L I F E
E F F E C T I V E  L E A D E R S H I P

Being That

Effective Leader
By Shiv PrasadGetting someone to say, “Yes”, reflects your leadership ability to

handle objections effectively. Within every organisation there
may be a number of people who do not have enough authority to
say “Yes”, but they do have the power or freedom to refuse, to say
“No”. If not handled well, this negativity can effectively kill what-
ever you are proposing.

Fielding Objections
Firstly discover who those “NO” people

are; the next step is a longer process —
getting them to support you! (Remember
a “No” is a “No” until it’s a “Yes”!)

Then set about finding what are the ob-
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Objections
The common grounds for objections can

be classified into two categories :  emo-
tional and factual.

� Emotional objections appear neither logi-
cal nor based on facts, they are triggered
by emotional response — very often a
smokescreen or an excuse to be just
plain difficult. If analysed carefully even
those that sound remotely logical, even-
tually do not make proper sense.

� Factual Objections are based on logical
and factual reasoning. It can be consid-
ered a valid objection, as the person rais-
ing it sees it from his perspective – the
way the facts appear to him. And even if
the person’s facts may be incorrect,
based on unsubstantiated information or
even on the strength of a rumour or false
innuendo, it has still to be entertained
as a valid objection for discussion.

Factual objections can be discussed in
detail, as you will be analysing the facts of
a situation. The incorrect perceptions may
also be dealt with during healthy discus-
sions.

Techniques for Overcoming
Objections

Flush out all the objections — bring
them to the surface- before you tackle them
individually, commencing with the most
important ones. The use of techniques can
make your work a lot easier.

� Answer a question with a question
When you are asked a question, you

needn’t respond with a direct answer. Try
instead to question him/her further on the
point raised. You then control the conver-
sation somewhat.

� Allow others to speak
 Encourage people to talk about their

likes and dislikes, their wants and turn-offs,
their needs and discards. Don’t interrupt
when they are talking – listen instead. You
will learn a lot about them.

� Acknowledge good points raised
It is OK to say, “That point that you raised

was a good one.” This does not mean you
agree to the objection, but just that you
acknowledge their concern. This is a soft
approach to engage them in a positive man-
ner whilst you may not agree with them.

jections. You have to be patient and encour-
age people to open up as to why they don’t
like the product, service or idea that you
are trying to sell them. Encourage them
to be frank and open and even get them to
indicate what they would like instead. Thus
you will be able to have a full and compre-
hensive list of all the reasons for the objec-
tions, and be in a position to deal with each
objection separately, and explain to them
why it would be in their individual interest
to say, “Yes”.

Objections are somewhat like a
minefield- if you do not locate, uncover and
clear them, one by one, you will simply be
blown away! Here are some tips on deal-
ing with objections :

� When you are about to present a pro-
posal at a meeting, place yourself in the
shoes of the others in the audience and
make a list of all the possible objections
that you think they might raise. Write
down an appropriate answer or best re-
sponse against each of these possible
objections.

� There is no reason to fear objections. An
objection could well indicate sincere in-
terest on the topic by certain people- the
objection merely notes that they aren’t
in agreement with you at this particular
moment with your specific proposal.

� Do not make the mistake of dealing with
each objection the moment they are
raised. By responding to each and every-
one in this manner, you will disrupt your
presentation or find yourself drifting
from the main topic in your efforts to
deal with these individual queries. You
also run the risk of giving more weight
or importance to the objections than they
actually deserve, not to mention the valu-
able time allocated to you being wasted.
It’s good practice to take questions at the
end of your presentation and deal by dis-
cussing the important ones first, as time
could be a constraint.

� The absence of a response, after your
presentation and discussion, means
that most objections have simply been
laid to rest. The important objections
raised earlier could be brought up
again and it would merit you to keep
them in view.

By saying opening statements such as :

• “I can understand your feelings”

• “You’ve brought up a good point”

• “I can see why that would be of concern to
you”

you avoid negative feelings and improve
your chance of changing the ‘No’ to ‘Yes’.

� Clarify those statements made
When seeking more background infor-

mation on a particular statement being
made, clarify by asking :

• “How did you arrive at that conclusion?”

• “It appears you have a strong reason for
that statement. Would you mind telling me
what the reason is?”

• “What is it that prompts you to feel that
way?”

� Identify all the important points
The more you are able to get the other

people to talk, the easier it becomes for you
to realise and isolate their major points. To
encourage the discourse, you may want to
follow these leads for example :
• “Is there anything else that you are con-

cerned about?”
• “Are there any additional points you feel

need to be addressed?”

� Provide feedback statements
Always confirm what you heard is what

was actually meant by using feedback state-
ments such as ‘If I understood you correctly
you said…’, ‘If I read you correctly, you are
concerned about...’ ‘If I note your statement
correctly, you believe…’

� Eliminate confrontation
No matter what, especially if they get

excited, try your best not to get dragged
into an argument that deteriorates into a
confrontation. Even if you win the argu-
ment, you are not likely to reverse the
other’s ‘No’. Defuse the situation by being
more diplomatic in your choice of words
e.g. “I can understand why you feel that way;
however…”

� Isolate the most important objection
Whatever it may be that you are attempt-

ing to put across: selling or a new proposal,
always isolate the most important objection
from a jumble of other points brought out.
If you are able to deal with this main objec-
tion raised, then you could find the person
ready to drop the other. AN
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Use Your
Competitive
            Edge

at Work

B E T T E R  L I F E
B U S I N E S S

By Chris Read

Does your attitude towards
competition af fect your
opportunity for advance-
ment? Do your feelings
about competitors mar the

success of your business? In effect they all
really do, more so than you might realise.

There are two basic responses to com-
petition. One is a reaction of anger, tension
and anxiety. From this viewpoint, competi-
tion (whoever or whatever it consists of)
is seen as a threat. This attitude sometimes
finds expression in the following ways: “It’s
him or me”; “One of us has to go.” “There
isn’t enough room in the town for both our
companies.” “She is highly competitive.”
“He will just cut these prices to the bone
to grab the business.”

In other words, one reaction to competi-
tion is negative. People who have this pes-
simistic view usually are unhappy, with
those who characterise negative attitude.
Such people end up doing poorly: in run-
ning their business; or when they chase
after a job, prize, sale, award, promotion,
new account. (The list is endless.) They
come out on the short end because of their
negativity or ill feelings regarding compe-
tition. Their attitude may do much to short-
circuit what might have been a winning
performance or work. Inner resentment
and even bitterness toward competition
may turn out to be destructive for them and
prevent them from doing their best.

A Positive Frame of Mind is
Essential to Dispel Negative

Elements
The other, positive, reaction to reputa-

tion is certainly healthier. In this response,
any and all competition is viewed with the
attitude reflected in these statements:
“May the best person win.” “The company
that can deliver more will get the business.
“I do not fear any competition because I
know I have got the best product (or ser-
vice) for the money.” The spirit of compe-
tition is alive and well.” “My competitive
edge brings out my best,”

In other words, competition is seen as
an incentive, which keeps a person on his
or her toes. If there were no competition,
if everything in life was cut and dry, it
would be awfully dull!

Lack of competition or rivalry will stag-
nate growth and development, which are
vital to real success. Depending on what is
being sought and size (viz., the nature of
the prize, amount of money, sale, job pro-
motion, company takeover, etc.,) a burn-
ing desire to attain it — which means a will-
ingness to compete — might be absolutely
essential.

Few people really go places, or climb the
ladder of success quickly, by just occasion-
ally thinking about what they may want or
by doing so only when the spirit moves them
on.

It’s when what you want becomes a burn-
ing desire, when you get no peace until you
have it, that events really shape out - start
to happen.

 As the old saying goes :  “If you want
something badly enough and think about
it hard enough, you are likely to get it -as-
suming of course, that you have taken the
right steps to attain it”

 All these mean welcoming competition

and viewing it as something that will keep
you sharp, working and producing at your
best; and seeing it as a catalyst to give it all
you got, turning in your maximum perfor-
mance for what you want — whatever it
may be.

Look into your past for work values and
other criteria as they unfold many a true
picture, not a series of accidents! By care-
ful analysis you could identify likes and
dislikes, and differentiate your particular
strengths and weaknesses. The ideal
mindset has to be a synergy of all of these
elements and you have to nurture the right
attitude to enjoy the workplace.

The choice of language also
characterises the individual and gives him
a competitive edge. Ask yourself, “Do I like
the language at my workplace?” Very of-
ten despite successful job portfolios, you
are not happy with the type of language or
communication used. Unless you are able
to have a shared value system and similar
ethics, you could have a problem that is
not about to ‘go away’. Whilst you may not
lose the job, by not being comfortable with
the language spoken, you lose your com-
petitive skills — you are not likely to thrive
or advance in your career!

 Your self-image is of paramount impor-
tance in your career growth. To fulfil your
true potential you have to question your
own self-esteem, your vulnerability – just
as much as what is revealed in your bio-
data about your experiences and qualifica-
tions.

“How you value yourself and how you
feel about yourself are reflected in how
others see you too!”

You have to shoulder the responsibility
in projecting your correct self-image. Dis-
placed modesty about your ability is just
as bad as negative self-image as they do
not reflect a true you! Your self-esteem is
the foundation of the image you project to
others and you have to constantly work on
it by taking stock of your skills and appre-
ciating your competence. Accept compli-
ments gracefully and never self efface or
put yourself down!

The true professionals in life, whatever
their field, adore competition and thrive on
it. Competition adds more flavour, chal-
lenge, excitement and gusto to life! AN
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How do you feel about dogs at
work? Not about bringing in
your smelly, hairy pets — a

notion that was cool for five minutes at the
height of Internet madness. I want to know
how you feel about those colleagues who
are neither smart nor hardworking nor
able to aquip themselves well at anything
they do.

According to the con-
sulting firm Hay Group,
“weak performers” are a
serious management prob-
lem. They are a burden on
their colleagues and are a
cause of resentment and
strife. So much so that they
are one of the main rea-
sons why good employees
leave. The smart company,
says Hay, should devote
more time to hunting out
these dogs and firing them.

The consultant has re-
cently prepared a paper
called “The Retention Di-
lemma” in which it un-
earths the shocking fact
that more than half of all
companies take no action
at all over their dogs. “Read
that again,” says the re-
port. “It’s an astonishing
figure.” I have read it again
— but still fail to be aston-
ished.

Part of the reason why

W E A K  P E R F O R M E R S

I N S I D E  T R A C K

Weak performers
are part of a healthy,
natural mix in any
organisation

By Lucy Kellaway

“Part of the reason why
companies tolerate dogs is
 that they have to. The law

makes it very difficult to fire
someone just because they
are not particularly good”.

companies tolerate dogs is that they have
to. The law makes it very difficult to fire
someone just because they are not particu-
larly good. Even if it were easier to fire
underperformers, I am not sure it would be
desirable. It is all a matter of balance. How-
ever good your recruitment methods, you
are always going to hire a few dogs. If you
have masses and masses of them, some-
thing has gone badly wrong at your com-
pany and the chances are that it will not
survive for long. But if you have only a few,
say one or two in every department, all is
as it should be.

Far from resenting the dogs, I’ve always
quite liked them. However poorly I am
doing, it is a comfort to know that there
are a few who are still doing worse.

Dogs are part of a healthy, natural mix in
any organisation in which
most people are medium, a
few are excellent and a few
poor.

Any company that ruth-
lessly fired all its dogs might
find moral a lot worse as a re-
sult. If I see a manager firing
a colleague who happens not
to be that good, it doesn’t
make me feel empowered as
someone who is really pull-
ing her weight in a success-
ful organisation. It makes me
feel uneasy.

The managerial task with
dogs is not to get rid of them,
unless they turn rabid. A dog
that is not just a dog but also
a nasty one with a bad atti-
tude may have to go. But for
the rest, it is pointless wast-
ing too much management
time on tr ying to improve
performance. Instead, it is a
matter of damage limitation.
Find a job for them where
they are not doing any harm
and then leave well alone. AN
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T R AV E L  A N D  L E I S U R E

The Damai Laut Golf and
Country Club adjoins the Swiss
Garden Resort Damai Laut and
combined, they present a great
golfing and relaxing weekend
by the Straits of Malacca.

T
he par 72 Damai Laut
course opened in June
1998 and in its four years
existence has carved out
a creditable reputation

amongst Malaysian golfers. The course itself
has been skilfully carved amongst coastal for-
ests on the seaside just north of the port
settlement of Lumut. Remnant stands of
rainforest still form out of bound areas here
and the palm trees on the fringe of the for-
ests make for a very picturesque course.

The landscaping on the fairways is slowly
establishing and in a few years, the some-
what open fairways will be a little more dif-
ficult to play. The first thing golfers will no-
tice is that the course is surrounded by the
tranquil waters of the Straits of Malacca.

The Ronald Fream designed champion-
ship course is divided into the first nine
known as the Lake Nine and the second
nine, or Hill Nine. The front nine is domi-
nated by several constructed lakes, which
serve as challenging obstacles to avoid and
irrigation for the fairways and greens dur-
ing periods of low rainfall.

The back nine has its share of lakes too
but it also tends to have a little more up and
down play and a forested hill to play around.

Golfers get a gentle introduction to the
course with the first hole being the third easi-
est on the course. This 330-metre, par 4 hole
features wide fairways and is typical of many
subsequent holes. The hole slopes off to the
right but the lack of bunkers makes it an easy
introduction for all levels of golfers. The
green is elevated and the view of the water
off in the distance is a good distraction for
those who may have dropped a few shots.

The second hole is the first introduction
to one of several dog-legs on the course.
This hole has two dog-legs around a pond
and the ambitious ones will drive straight
off the tee across the pond. The more
sheepish, will play safe and hit left and then

Golf Besides
the Straits

By David Bowden

Relax after a round of golf

The clubhouse offers excellent facilities
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play up towards the hidden pin. Many golf-
ers tend to hit an eagle here but those who
play safely will be happy with par.

The third hole is a short 150-metre, par
3 and an easy one to play but a sliced ball
will end up in yet another pond. The flat
fourth hole plays alongside an elongated
pond with the hole obscured behind the
pond and accessible via a dog-leg right.

With the sea behind you, and a favourable
wind, a wood drive from the fifth tee should
enable a good lie for this dog-leg fairway.
The green requires a skilful approach with
forest behind and bunkers in front.

The sixth hole is a long par 4 and is an
easy hole with wide fairways and few ob-
stacles. The seventh is similar and while it
is a straight hole, there is a drain to avoid
in the middle of the fairway. This is one of
two holes on the course where a hole in
one is not unusual.

Playing safe with an iron tee-off is the
preferred approach to the eighth hole. Yet,
another dog-leg requires a little caution
with out of bound areas to the left. The
green is fast here and the uphill approach
means that many golfers see their ball run
beyond the green.

The last hole on the front nine is an easy
hole for single handicappers with many
golfers reaching the green with their drive.
The pond and extensive bunkers will
present problems for beginners.

The first of the Hill Nine is a good
straight hole played directly towards the
dominant lighthouse on the horizon. More
dog-legs and lakes are confronted on the
11th. Be bold here and drive straight over
the aquatic obstacle.

This is the extent of the course and the
12th fairway heads back towards the club-
house. More dog-legs, pond and a few
nasty bunkers to contend with here. A
fenced area adjoining the fairway houses
some deer imported from New Caledonia.

The par 3, 13th is one of the most popu-
lar on the course despite the green being
surrounded by bunkers. The island green
is popular with those brave enough to seek
a hole in one.

The 14th is equally challenging with ex-
tensive forests on the right and a lake to
the left. Playing safe and straight is essen-
tial on this hole.

The main road is crossed for the signature
15th hole. The fairway takes a dog-leg to the
right and plays downslope. The green be-
comes visible, as does Lumut in the distance
behind the green that sits close to the water’s
edge. A large bunker is located to the left
and palm-dominated forest to the right.

Driving from the 16th tee is straight and
then a dog-leg right. The green here is
undulating and one of only a few on the
course. The par 3, 17th is straight but with
a drain, forest and a large bunker to the

left of the green. In the 2002, “Thommo
Masters” a golfer hit a hole in one on this
hole and won an apartment at the Resort’s
apartment complex.

The 18th hole features an obscured green
and several dog-legs and another pond to
avoid to the right of the green.

The clubhouse and or resort are a wel-
comed sight at the end of a challenging but
hot game of golf.

The course has many advantages includ-
ing an annual subscription that includes
accommodation packages at hotels and
resorts within the Swiss Garden Group.

The adjoining resort is dominated by a
pool and landscaped tropical gardens. The
pool here is one of those drop off struc-
tures that blends into the forested and
coastal horizon.

The Swiss Garden Resort Damai Laut is a
very pleasant discovery for anyone used to
bypassing Lumut in their rush to reach
Pangkor Island. You may as well be on an is-
land as Damai Laut has a spectacular view of
the water with the added attraction that you
can drive directly to the resort and you don’t
have to unload your luggage to get on a ferry.

There are few quality resorts so close to
Kuala Lumpur and the relaxed drive to Lumut
makes the Swiss Garden Resort Damai Laut
an excellent location for a weekend escape.
Why not stay a few days and really unwind —
this is certainly the place to do it. AN

The signature 15th hole The 11th hole leads to a lighthouse

The sea is never far
away from any hole

The Swiss Garden Damai
Laut Resort adjoins the course
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Securing the
Deal in
RUSSIA

R U S S I A

B U S I N E S S  W AT C H

Russian negotiating teams
are often made up of ex-
perienced managers whose
negotiation style reminds
    one of a “chess” game

in which they plan their moves well in ad-
vance. In contrast to southern negotiators,
a Russian negotiator may not show much
flexibility regarding sudden changes or
new ideas.

Career pressure on a Russian business
partner to secure a successful outcome in
a negotiation may mean that there is strong
emphasis on business security and that the
deal should be sustainable under currently
applicable Russian rules and regulations.
Although the political circumstances have
changed dramatically in the last 10 years,
some traditional patterns of thought and

The role of the consultant as a
chartered accountant, or any
other professional, is not
identical all over the world.
Despite this fact and despite all
efforts to move closer to a single
global set of accounting
standards, the necessary
communication with the
international client is still and
will also remain subject to a
different set of rules. This is the
final part of the article on Russia.

By Sergey Frank

get that in order to structure a negotiating
process an agenda is always helpful. In a
nutshell, all the helpful devices which
make negotiations easier and more trans-
parent are useful, taking also into account
that unexpected issues frequently crop up
during the negotiation.

Do not forget that negotiations in Rus-
sia are detailed and may take some time.
Bazaar techniques are not as openly dis-
played as, for example, in southern Europe.
Even so, you should have enough room for
concessions in your offer. Negotiations are
tough and can turn out to be very emo-
tional :  Russian negotiators still may bang
their fist on the table and your business
partner could possibly temporarily leave
the room. One must accept all these tac-
tics with patience and calmness! Always
keep in mind that such tactics may be ap-
plied to induce you to grant concessions
possibly because of your expected impa-
tience and uncertainty in reaction to such
robust methods.

The disposition to make compromises
may be interpreted as a sign of weakness.
Consequently negotiations may come to a
standstill. In this case you are well advised
to keep your stamina and your patience and
just continue the negotiating process.

Although a team may consist of many
members, the Russian team will usually
hold just one opinion. The head of the ne-
gotiating team may dominate the negotia-
tion and may be willing to make conces-
sions only if he can expect you to make

behaviour still remain.
Unlike southern Europe, where consider-
able flexibility exists, despite many rules
and regulations, a Russian partner may still
focus on existing rules. Perhaps your busi-
ness partner may not accept pragmatic so-
lutions easily, which are not covered by ex-
isting rules and regulations. So it will be
essential to convince him or her prior to
winning his trust.

On technical issues, your business part-
ner is likely to be very professional and in-
formed and technological co-operation is of-
ten successful. For example, many institutes
of the well-known Academy of Science are
looking for new partners in the west in the
technical-scientific field. Compared to many
of the countries of eastern Europe, an even
higher demand for training exists in areas
such as marketing, sales and controlling. A
potential deficit of expertise on commercial
issues in those fields could possibly also in-
fluence the outcome of a negotiation.

Try to describe complex subjects in a
transparent manner, although this may be
difficult. In this context, simple helpful
tools such as flip charts or blackboards are
very helpful. Furthermore, you will be well
advised to define in advance any key terms
of the project within, for example, a tech-
nological collaboration such as “scope of
technology”, “grant back”, “improve-
ments”. Any key concepts should be
summarised on one or two pages and will
effectively help to minimise any concep-
tional misunderstanding during the course
of the negotiation. In addition, do not for-
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Note :  The ideas put forward in the articles apply
for the actual international consultation regardless
where it is taking place. The articles aim to educate
on different ways of doing business in different
countries. This is important since it helps to
understand international business. And this
conclusion is vital because nowhere in business,
especially in international consulting, can so much
be gained and lost so quickly as in international
transactions and projects. The articles were first
published in Accounting & Business, ACCA’s
monthly publication.

concessions in return.
Be aware that whilst making small con-

cessions, your counterpart may expect you
to grant bigger concessions from your side!
Thus, it may be helpful to include some
items in the first contract draft which can
be traded as concessions during the nego-
tiating process. Be prepared initially to be
asked to disclose your point of view so that
your negotiation counterpart can reply.
Concessions, which are easily achieved,
may make your counterpart distrustful and
suspicious, since his approach may still
derive from the culture within the former
Soviet Union where everything was rather

complex and difficult to achieve.
Some, but not necessarily all of the con-

siderations above may also apply to the
generation of the new business people in
Russia who may have gained an MBA or
similar qualification in the west and also to
the new generation of dot.com people.
They are primarily encountered in Moscow
and in St. Petersburg, but rather rarely in
the countryside or in other countries of the
CIS. Nevertheless, those modern entrepre-
neurs and businessmen still remain Rus-
sians with a long-standing tradition and
mentality.

The following considerations should
help to improve your relations with Rus-
sian business people :
� Even if you have strong arguments to

underline your point-of-view, do not
overemphasise them.

� Moreover you will be well advised to dis-
tinguish between the behaviour of your
business partner during and outside the
negotiations. Impatience, toughness and
emotional release during the negotiations
should be borne with calmness, patience
and consistency, whereas outside the ne-
gotiating process you can show affection
and personal sympathy. Western profes-
sionalism paired with personal interest
and sympathy as well as individual con-
sistency in one’s argumentation during
negotiations is the combination of char-

acteristics, which help throughout the ne-
gotiating process in Russia.

Who Has Authority?
It is advisable to clarify the scope of the

authority of your counterpart in order to
negotiate prior to or at the beginning of the
negotiations. Are they permitted to make
a deal or just gather information? Will they
be replaced after the first negotiation round
and someone else will finally sign the con-
tract? Decisions frequently are reserved
either to the CEO or the director still, be-
cause of the hierarchical structure of com-
pany organisations. This could possibly
delay the whole negotiating process.

Furthermore, perhaps provisions once
agreed will also be revived and discussed

Note :  Sergey Frank is a partner of Kienbaum
Executive Consultants and Managing Director
of Kienbaum Ltd., the London office of the
Kienbaum Group. He is a worldwide acknowl-
edged author and speaker on international com-
munication issues. www.kienbaum.co.uk

AN

afresh by your counterpart. A kind of “con-
tract constance” or obligation to abide by
agreements does not always exist. So, all
the negotiation results should be written
down as minutes, regardless of whether
the agreement has finally been discussed
yet. A verbal consent usually cannot be
taken too seriously.

The vagaries of Russian accounting and
taxation must not be overlooked as they
contain unwelcome surprises for the poorly
briefed investor. In the years immediately
following the collapse of the Soviet Union,
the fiscal policy of the new Russian Fed-
eration was confused and opaque. Matters

are improving — but slowly. Wilful
tax evasion by Russian businesses
exists, but companies with western
participation can be seen by the tax
authorities as easy targets for inves-
tigation and the imposition of penal-
ties. There are aspects of tax regula-
tions that may strike western busi-
nessmen as perverse, such as limi-
tations on business deductions that
would be allowed elsewhere. Sound
professional advice can be expensive
to obtain in Russia, but it is a false
economy to attempt business with-
out it.

The character of the business, pri-
marily its intensity, the climate and
the Russian mentality demand a high
requirement of management re-
sources as well as time. With a rather
relaxed attitude you will have little
chance of success in Russia.
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T E C H N I C A L  N E W S

I N T E R N AT I O N A L

IFAC Paper on Modernising Government
Accounting in France Focuses on

Shift to Accrual Accounting

T
he International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) has

issued a new paper on Modernisation of Government Ac-

counting in France that highlights some of the key argu-

ments which influenced the decision of the French Government

to move from the current system to an accrual basis for financial

reporting in France.

The paper traces the development and implementation of ac-

crual accounting since 1999 in the central government financial

statements and the evolution of the public sector information

system and institutional arrangements to adapt to the new sys-

tem.

The paper emphasises that the modernisation of the

government’s financial information system is being undertaken

with the primary goal of “making government transactions more

transparent.”

Occasional Paper 6, Modernisation of Government Accounting in France,
may be downloaded at no charge from the IFAC website by going to
www.ifac.org/store. Visitors may also download all International Public
Sector Accounting Standards and other guidance at no charge from this
area of the website. Print copies of Occasional Paper 6 may be ordered
through the online bookstore or by calling IFAC’s Publications Depart-
ment at +1-212-286-9344, ext. 103. The fee for the print copy is US$25 plus
shipping.
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IT Competencies for Accountants
Focus of New IFAC Guidance

T
he International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) has

released guidance to assist accountancy bodies in prepar-

ing professional accountants to work in the information

technology environment. International Education Guideline

(IEG) 11, Information Technology for Professional Accountants,

describes the knowledge and competences required in the IT

environment and includes examples of tasks that a competent

professional accountant should be able to perform in the work-

place.

“IT is one of the core competencies of professional accoun-

tants and requires special attention due to its explosive growth

and its rapid rate of change,” emphasises Warren Allen, chair-

man of IFAC’s Education Committee, which developed the guide-

line. “Professional and academic accountancy bodies through-

out the world are grappling with the need to define the body of

knowledge and the competencies that their members must pos-

sess with respect to IT. This guideline is intended to help them

AN

IFAC’s International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board

Adopts an Action Plan to Promote
High Quality Standards

T
he International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board

(IAASB) of the International Federation of Accountants

(IFAC) has released its action plan for 2003 and

2004. In establishing its priorities, the IAASB considered re-

cent changes in the environment in which assurance services

are provided, including the impact of technology, regulatory

developments, and the growing demand for audits conducted in

accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) for

cross-border filings.

High on the IAASB’s list of priorities is completing its audit

risk project, a comprehensive review and update of its core audit-

ing standards, and developing quality control standards for both

audit firms and audit engagements. In addition, the IAASB short-

term project list includes plans to issue revised standards on the

auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud during the audit process,

revised guidance on the auditor’s report on financial statements

and on the subject of auditing accounting estimates involving

measurement uncertainty, and new guidance on reviews of in-

terim financial information.

To achieve convergence of auditing standards on a worldwide

basis, the IAASB is working closely with IFAC member bodies on

joint projects and seeking the input of experienced standard set-

ters, international and national regulators, and regional accoun-

tancy organisations.

“The current environment makes it imperative that the IAASB

moves ahead quickly on its work program, following a rigorous

due process that takes into account the views of those affected by

its guidance,” states Dietz Mertin, IAASB chair. “The IAASB

recognises that need for extensive consultation and for an ongo-

by outlining how they can include coverage of important IT

knowledge and competency areas in pre-qualification education

programs, pre-qualification work experience and post-qualifica-

tion professional education in both general work domains and

speciality areas.

IEG 11 was first issued in 1995 and was revised in 1998. A fur-

ther revision of IEG 11 was exposed for comment in 2001. IFAC’s

Education Committee reviewed the comments made by IFAC

member organisations, academics and others and made changes

to include a competence-based approach to IT for accounting pro-

fessionals.
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New International Standard for
Governments Addresses

Financial Reporting Under the
Cash Basis of Accounting

N
ew guidance is now available to governments worldwide

operating under the cash basis of accounting. The In-

ternational Federation of Accountants (IFAC’s) Public

Sector Accounting Committee has released a new International

Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) entitled “Financial

Reporting under the Cash Basis of Accounting.” An exposure draft

on the topic had been issued in 2000 and was revised to address

issues raised by respondents.

The IPSAS includes requirements for a government and gov-

ernment entity to report all cash receipts, payments and balances

that it controls and to disclose information about amounts settled

on its behalf by third parties. It allows more flexibility in report-

ing format than was proposed in the exposure draft, and encour-

ages note disclosure of additional information about, for example,

assets, liabilities, transactions administered on behalf of others

and whether budgeted amounts have been exceeded.

“Compliance with this standard will enhance the transparency and

comprehensiveness of financial reporting under the cash basis,”

states Ian Mackintosh, Public Sector Committee Chair. “The cash

basis of accounting is adopted by many jurisdictions around the world.

Prior to the issuance of this IPSAS, there was not an international

standard on financial reporting under the cash basis and the quality

of financial reporting was at best variable and often poor.”

The release of this standard is par t of a broader IFAC

programme to develop accounting standards that enhance ac-

countability and transparency in financial reporting by public sec-

tor entities adopting the cash and accrual basis of accounting. In

addition to this comprehensive standard on the cash basis of ac-

counting, IFAC’s Public Sector Committee has issued approxi-

mately 20 standards for application when the accrual basis of ac-

counting is adopted. These are all accessible through the IFAC

website (www.ifac.org/PublicSector/) AN
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ing exchange of views with its stakeholders to promote transpar-

ency and to enhance its consultative process.”

The IAASB Action Plan for 2003-2004 may be viewed on the IFAC website
by going to www.iaasb.org. The IAASB remains aware of the need to be
flexible in its planning process so that it may effectively respond to new
events and circumstances and alter its action plan to address new priori-
ties. Accordingly, comments on the plan are welcome and should be
e-mailed to the IAASB Technical Director at jimsylph@ifac.org, faxed to
Jim Sylph’s attention at 1-212-286-9570 or mailed to his attention at IFAC,
535 Fifth Avenue, 26th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

Global Views on Risk Management
Presented in New IFAC Publication

M
anaging Risk to Enhance Stakeholder Value” is the title

of a new book released jointly by the International Fed-

eration of Accountants (IFAC) Financial and Manage-

ment Accounting Committee (FMAC) and the Chartered Insti-

tute of Management Accountants (CIMA) in London.

The book includes articles and case studies from around the

world presenting a variety of perspectives from professional ac-

countants in business together with risk managers, internal audi-

tors, professional association leaders, and others in more than a

dozen countries. Its release comes at a time when companies are

challenged by volatile markets, increased shareholder concerns,

and a competitive and unpredictable global environment.

“Effectively managing risks is vital to serving the needs of the

public,” states Bill Connell, chairman of IFAC’s Financial and

Management Accounting Committee (FMAC). “Both public and

private enterprises have a responsibility to serve their stakehold-

ers by delivering value. That value can be impacted both posi-

tively and negatively by the risk management strategies of an

organisation.”

Like other recent FMAC publications, including The Role of

the Chief Financial Officer in 2010 and A Profession Transform-

ing: From Accounting to Management (Study 11), the book is

aimed at executives and senior finance professionals who are re-

sponsible for leading their organisations forward. It addresses

cutting-edge issues, exploring both the traditional review of the

financial risks of a company and the emerging application of risk

management techniques in the areas of strategy, reputation and

people. Topics covered include the following :

� Understanding risk management in the context of corporate

governance;

� Reporting risk to shareholders and others;

� Striking a balance between too much and too little disclosure;

� Risk management challenges in the public sector;

� How to integrate risk management in the corporate planning

process;

� Developing risk profiles;

� Changing internal audit processes; and

� Business continuity planning.

Managing Risk to Enhance Stakeholder Value and other FMAC publica-
tions may be downloaded at no charge from IFAC’s website by going to
www.ifac.org/store and visiting the Financial and Management Account-
ing section of the bookstore. Print copies are also available for a fee of
US$25. They may be ordered through the online bookstore or by calling
+1-212-286-9344.
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The Compliance Committee meeting
in Kuala Lumpur was attended by the
Committee’s Chairman, Wim de

Bruijn, the IFAC Compliance Director,
Peter Johnston and the Committee’s vari-
ous representatives (some of whom were
accompanied by their respective Techni-
cal Advisers) from Brazil, France, Hong
Kong, Hungary, India, Italy, Jamaica, Ma-
laysia, Turkey, the UK and the US. The
Institute and Malaysia were represented
at the Compliance Committee meeting by
the Registrar, Mohammad Abdullah, who
is a representative to the Compliance
Committee. Council Members Dato’
Nordin Baharuddin and Lam Kee Soon
also attended the meeting as Technical
Advisers.

The principal objective of the Compli-
ance Committee is to ensure greater compliance by the mem-
ber bodies of IFAC. The Compliance Committee works with
member bodies and outside agencies to encourage greater com-
pliance with the standards, ethical codes and other pronounce-
ments of IFAC and of the International Audit and Assurance Stan-
dards Board (IAASB). The Compliance Committee also works
closely with members of the Transnational Audit Committee
(TAC) and the IFAC Forum of Firms (FOF) in carrying out its
objectives.

Prior to the IFAC Compliance Committee meeting, the Insti-
tute took the opportunity to organise a Dialogue with the Chair-
man of the Compliance Committee Wim de Bruijn and the IFAC
Compliance Director, Peter Johnston, on 15 January 2003. This
Dialogue was attended by MIA Council Members and invited
guests from the Securities Commission, the Kuala Lumpur Stock
Exchange, Auditor-General’s office, Accountant-General’s office,
Companies Commission of Malaysia, and the Malaysian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants which is also a member body of
IFAC. (See sidebar on the Dialogue.)

The two day meeting in Kuala Lumpur from 16-17 January 2003
was intense and comprehensive, as the Compliance Committee
had a very heavy agenda to complete, including the review and
approval of various Statements of Membership Obligations
(SMOs) which will be tabled for approval to the IFAC Board in
March 2003. These SMOs cover membership obligations relat-
ing to Quality Assurance (SMO 1), Accounting Education Stan-
dards (SMO 2), International Standards on Auditing (SMO 3),
IFAC Code of Ethics (SMO 4), Public Sector Accounting Stan-
dards (SMO 5), Investigation and Discipline (SMO 6), and Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (SMO 8). The Compliance

IFAC’s Compliance Committee Meets in Kuala Lumpur
In January 2003, the Institute played host to the IFAC Compliance Committee, which held its first meet-
ing for 2003 in Kuala Lumpur, from 16 to 17 January.

Gathering of IFAC Compliance Committee Members … Members of the IFAC Compliance
Committee at the group photo session on the second day of the meeting at the Mandarin
Oriental Hotel in Kuala Lumpur

Token of Appreciation … De Bruijn presenting a memento to Abdul
Samad as a mark of appreciation for the assistance rendered by the
Institute

Experts meet… MIA President, Abdul Samad Haji Alias (centre)
with IFAC Compliance Committee Chairman, Wim de Bruijn
(right) and IFAC Compliance Director, Peter Johnston (left)
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IFAC Paper on Modernising Government
Accounting in France Focuses on

Shift to Accrual Accounting

T
he International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) has

issued a new paper on Modernisation of Government Ac-

counting in France that highlights some of the key argu-

ments which influenced the decision of the French Government

to move from the current system to an accrual basis for financial

reporting in France.

The paper traces the development and implementation of ac-

crual accounting since 1999 in the central government financial

statements and the evolution of the public sector information

system and institutional arrangements to adapt to the new sys-

tem.

The paper emphasises that the modernisation of the

government’s financial information system is being undertaken

with the primary goal of “making government transactions more

transparent.”

Occasional Paper 6, Modernisation of Government Accounting in France,
may be downloaded at no charge from the IFAC website by going to
www.ifac.org/store. Visitors may also download all International Public
Sector Accounting Standards and other guidance at no charge from this
area of the website. Print copies of Occasional Paper 6 may be ordered
through the online bookstore or by calling IFAC’s Publications Depart-
ment at +1-212-286-9344, ext. 103. The fee for the print copy is US$25 plus
shipping.
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IT Competencies for Accountants
Focus of New IFAC Guidance

T
he International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) has

released guidance to assist accountancy bodies in prepar-

ing professional accountants to work in the information

technology environment. International Education Guideline

(IEG) 11, Information Technology for Professional Accountants,

describes the knowledge and competences required in the IT

environment and includes examples of tasks that a competent

professional accountant should be able to perform in the work-

place.

“IT is one of the core competencies of professional accoun-

tants and requires special attention due to its explosive growth

and its rapid rate of change,” emphasises Warren Allen, chair-

man of IFAC’s Education Committee, which developed the guide-

line. “Professional and academic accountancy bodies through-

out the world are grappling with the need to define the body of

knowledge and the competencies that their members must pos-

sess with respect to IT. This guideline is intended to help them

AN

IFAC’s International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board

Adopts an Action Plan to Promote
High Quality Standards

T
he International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board

(IAASB) of the International Federation of Accountants

(IFAC) has released its action plan for 2003 and

2004. In establishing its priorities, the IAASB considered re-

cent changes in the environment in which assurance services

are provided, including the impact of technology, regulatory

developments, and the growing demand for audits conducted in

accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) for

cross-border filings.

High on the IAASB’s list of priorities is completing its audit

risk project, a comprehensive review and update of its core audit-

ing standards, and developing quality control standards for both

audit firms and audit engagements. In addition, the IAASB short-

term project list includes plans to issue revised standards on the

auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud during the audit process,

revised guidance on the auditor’s report on financial statements

and on the subject of auditing accounting estimates involving

measurement uncertainty, and new guidance on reviews of in-

terim financial information.

To achieve convergence of auditing standards on a worldwide

basis, the IAASB is working closely with IFAC member bodies on

joint projects and seeking the input of experienced standard set-

ters, international and national regulators, and regional accoun-

tancy organisations.

“The current environment makes it imperative that the IAASB

moves ahead quickly on its work program, following a rigorous

due process that takes into account the views of those affected by

its guidance,” states Dietz Mertin, IAASB chair. “The IAASB

recognises that need for extensive consultation and for an ongo-

by outlining how they can include coverage of important IT

knowledge and competency areas in pre-qualification education

programs, pre-qualification work experience and post-qualifica-

tion professional education in both general work domains and

speciality areas.

IEG 11 was first issued in 1995 and was revised in 1998. A fur-

ther revision of IEG 11 was exposed for comment in 2001. IFAC’s

Education Committee reviewed the comments made by IFAC

member organisations, academics and others and made changes

to include a competence-based approach to IT for accounting pro-

fessionals.
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New International Standard for
Governments Addresses

Financial Reporting Under the
Cash Basis of Accounting

N
ew guidance is now available to governments worldwide

operating under the cash basis of accounting. The In-

ternational Federation of Accountants (IFAC’s) Public

Sector Accounting Committee has released a new International

Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) entitled “Financial

Reporting under the Cash Basis of Accounting.” An exposure draft

on the topic had been issued in 2000 and was revised to address

issues raised by respondents.

The IPSAS includes requirements for a government and gov-

ernment entity to report all cash receipts, payments and balances

that it controls and to disclose information about amounts settled

on its behalf by third parties. It allows more flexibility in report-

ing format than was proposed in the exposure draft, and encour-

ages note disclosure of additional information about, for example,

assets, liabilities, transactions administered on behalf of others

and whether budgeted amounts have been exceeded.

“Compliance with this standard will enhance the transparency and

comprehensiveness of financial reporting under the cash basis,”

states Ian Mackintosh, Public Sector Committee Chair. “The cash

basis of accounting is adopted by many jurisdictions around the world.

Prior to the issuance of this IPSAS, there was not an international

standard on financial reporting under the cash basis and the quality

of financial reporting was at best variable and often poor.”

The release of this standard is par t of a broader IFAC

programme to develop accounting standards that enhance ac-

countability and transparency in financial reporting by public sec-

tor entities adopting the cash and accrual basis of accounting. In

addition to this comprehensive standard on the cash basis of ac-

counting, IFAC’s Public Sector Committee has issued approxi-

mately 20 standards for application when the accrual basis of ac-

counting is adopted. These are all accessible through the IFAC

website (www.ifac.org/PublicSector/) AN
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ing exchange of views with its stakeholders to promote transpar-

ency and to enhance its consultative process.”

The IAASB Action Plan for 2003-2004 may be viewed on the IFAC website
by going to www.iaasb.org. The IAASB remains aware of the need to be
flexible in its planning process so that it may effectively respond to new
events and circumstances and alter its action plan to address new priori-
ties. Accordingly, comments on the plan are welcome and should be
e-mailed to the IAASB Technical Director at jimsylph@ifac.org, faxed to
Jim Sylph’s attention at 1-212-286-9570 or mailed to his attention at IFAC,
535 Fifth Avenue, 26th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

Global Views on Risk Management
Presented in New IFAC Publication

M
anaging Risk to Enhance Stakeholder Value” is the title

of a new book released jointly by the International Fed-

eration of Accountants (IFAC) Financial and Manage-

ment Accounting Committee (FMAC) and the Chartered Insti-

tute of Management Accountants (CIMA) in London.

The book includes articles and case studies from around the

world presenting a variety of perspectives from professional ac-

countants in business together with risk managers, internal audi-

tors, professional association leaders, and others in more than a

dozen countries. Its release comes at a time when companies are

challenged by volatile markets, increased shareholder concerns,

and a competitive and unpredictable global environment.

“Effectively managing risks is vital to serving the needs of the

public,” states Bill Connell, chairman of IFAC’s Financial and

Management Accounting Committee (FMAC). “Both public and

private enterprises have a responsibility to serve their stakehold-

ers by delivering value. That value can be impacted both posi-

tively and negatively by the risk management strategies of an

organisation.”

Like other recent FMAC publications, including The Role of

the Chief Financial Officer in 2010 and A Profession Transform-

ing: From Accounting to Management (Study 11), the book is

aimed at executives and senior finance professionals who are re-

sponsible for leading their organisations forward. It addresses

cutting-edge issues, exploring both the traditional review of the

financial risks of a company and the emerging application of risk

management techniques in the areas of strategy, reputation and

people. Topics covered include the following :

� Understanding risk management in the context of corporate

governance;

� Reporting risk to shareholders and others;

� Striking a balance between too much and too little disclosure;

� Risk management challenges in the public sector;

� How to integrate risk management in the corporate planning

process;

� Developing risk profiles;

� Changing internal audit processes; and

� Business continuity planning.

Managing Risk to Enhance Stakeholder Value and other FMAC publica-
tions may be downloaded at no charge from IFAC’s website by going to
www.ifac.org/store and visiting the Financial and Management Account-
ing section of the bookstore. Print copies are also available for a fee of
US$25. They may be ordered through the online bookstore or by calling
+1-212-286-9344.
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All Smiles … IFAC Compliance Committee Members, together
with MIA Council Members, invited guests and secretariat staff

Committee also reviewed a number of
questionnaires and work programmes in
connection with these SMOs, which will
also be tabled for approval by the IFAC
Board. Once approved by the IFAC Board,
these documents will be issued by IFAC
as exposure drafts for comment and fur-
ther discussion.

At the meeting held in Kuala Lumpur,
the Compliance Committee also deliber-
ated upon and made various recommenda-
tions on a proposed compliance regime for
IFAC. The objectives, methodology and
scope of the proposed compliance regime
is currently under review by IFAC and
more information will be forthcoming once
a formal decision thereon has been made
by the IFAC Board.

As hosts, the Institute sought to ensure
that the members of the IFAC Compliance
Committee were also able to relax and en-
joy a small part of Malaysia’s cultural heri-
tage and diversity during their visit to Ma-
laysia. For many of the members, this was
their first visit to Kuala Lumpur. Hence, on

15 January 2003, the Institute hosted the
members of the Compliance Committee to
an informal dinner at Saloma’s Theatre
Restaurant, where they had the opportu-
nity to sample some of Malaysia’s famous
and distinctive cuisine, as well as view the
cultural performances which showcased
Malaysia’s diverse and colourful heritage.
These performances were enjoyed by all
the members of the Compliance Commit-
tee, some of whom enthusiastically joined
in the performances.

The Institute also hosted a more formal
dinner on 16 January 2003 at the Shangri-
La Hotel to welcome the members of the
Compliance Committee and to introduce
them to the Council Members of the Insti-
tute and various representatives of the
regulatory authorities who keenly follow
the progress and initiatives of the Compli-
ance Committee. In addition to the mem-
bers of the Compliance Committee and
Council Members of the Institute, this din-
ner was graced by the presence of Y.Bhg
Datuk Siti Maslamah Osman, Accountant-

General of Malaysia and Y.Bhg Datuk Dr
Hadenan Bin Abdul Jalil, Auditor-General
of Malaysia, as well as representatives from
Bank Negara Malaysia, the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange, the Accountant-General’s
Office, the Malaysian Accounting Stan-
dards Board, and the various professional
accountancy bodies. The dinner was a
light-hearted affair, and commenced with
an interchange of humorous (and brief)
addresses by the President of the Institute,
Dr. Abdul Samad Haji Alias and the Chair-
man of the Compliance Committee, Wim
de Bruijn. All guests were entertained with
a serenade of classical and easy listening
music by a string quartet throughout the
dinner, which ended with a group photo-
graph of all the guests.

Most of the IFAC Compliance Commit-
tee members left Kuala Lumpur on 18 Janu-
ary 2003 although a few stayed on to visit
and sightsee around Kuala Lumpur.

The next meeting of the IFAC Compli-
ance Committee will be in New York be-
tween 8-9 September 2003. AN
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Many questions have been raised about the
ethical conduct of accountants in
commerce and industry as well as the
profession as a whole. Below are the excerpts
from the dialogue session, which explains the
IFAC Compliance Committee’s stand on
matters related to greater compliance and
obligations by member bodies.

� On the efforts taken by the Committee in looking
into the level of compliance by the small businesses
and small practices.
We acknowledge the fact that the small businesses and prac-
tices do have some level of public interest responsibilities.
However, due to practical reasons, we decided to focus on
bigger companies, which have greater resources and impact
on the world economy.

� On who should be accountable in the whole process
of the financial reporting framework.
The Committee recognises the importance of the preparers
and the auditors as well as the members of the supervisory
board in the whole structure of corporate governance.

� On the efforts taken by the international accoun-
tancy body to strengthen its structure.
The proposed International Forum of Accountancy has
clearly put within its framework, the bringing together of all
the players in the structure such as the CEOs, government
agencies, regulators and the financial reporters with the main
objective to create a partnership with the government sec-
tor on dealing with these issues.

� As IFAC member bodies are required to comply with
international accounting and auditing standards, is it
necessary for IFAC members to be subjected to the
US Sarbanes-Oxley Act?
The Committee was initially surprised that a country whose
financial system was as organised as the United States could
experienced such turbulence. Thus, we are not surprised of
the extreme measures taken by them to avoid the recurrence
of such problems. However, we need to inform our member
countries to be united in facing this issue.

� How will these changes initiated by the Committee
affect the accounting firms?

If the firm in question provides transnational audit services
then they would assume wider responsibilities since they
have to be a member of the Forum of Firms (FOF) as well
as being subject to the scrutiny of the Transnational Audi-
tors Committee.

� How does IFAC address the situation where the pro-
fessionals in a particular country are faced with two
dif ferent sets of regulations?

This is a difficult situation to tackle, as ideally the mem-
ber bodies should formulate their regulations to the extent
that their government and regulators would not find the need
to duplicate and improve on it. In such cases, an open dia-
logue between all the parties involved would be absolutely
necessary.

� Does the Committee find it necessary for the con-
duct of the Peer Review through the Forum of Firms
(FOF) when the particular country already has its own
credible review system in place such as the Practice
Review Programme?
We praise MIA for taking such positive initiatives in launch-
ing the Practice Review programme. When such a
programme is already in place there would be no need for
further reviews by the FOF provided that such a programme
is carried out in accordance with the IFAC’s requirements.

� It is obvious that the current process of financial
reporting is structurally flawed as the auditors report
to the shareholders. Does IFAC recognise this weak-
ness and are they doing anything to rectify it?
IFAC does acknowledge these weaknesses and in fact are
talking to other relevant parties to play a part in addressing
this weakness.

IFAC on Greater Compliance
IFAC Compliance
Committee Chairman,
Wim de Bruijn.

AN
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The Myanmar Accountancy Council
(MAC) hosted the 76th AFA Coun-
cil meeting, which was held on 11

January 2003 at Yangon, Myanmar. All AFA
members, except representatives from
Brunei Darussalam, and Associate Mem-
bers (ACCA and CPA Australia) were
present at the meeting.

The meeting was chaired by the Presi-
dent of AFA, Paitoon Taveebhol of ICAAT.
As host, Thinn Thinn of MAC welcomed
the delegates to Myanmar. The Institute
was represented by its President, Abdul
Samad Haji Alias and Council Members,
Nik Mohd Hasyudeen Yusoff, YBhg. Datuk
Nur Jazlan Tan Sri Mohamed and YM Raja
Dato Seri Abdul Aziz Raja Salim. Annamalai
Singaram represented the Accountant-
General’s Office, while the Institute was
supported by two Secretariat staff (Robert
Khaw and Khairul Azmi Rezo).

AFA Meet in
Myanmar

In an effort to update the AG’s office as
well as to seek their opinions and views
on issues pertaining to globalisation and

liberalisation of the accountancy services
sector in the countr y, the Institute’s
Globalisation and Liberalisation Commit-
tee (GLC) held a meeting with the Accoun-
tant-General’s Office (AGO) on 23 January
2003.

The MIA President who is also the GLC
Chairman, Abdul Samad Haji Alias, to-
gether with GLC member Nik Mohd
Hasyudeen Yusoff and Secretariat staf f,
Robert Khaw, Sazalina Kamarudin and
Khairul Azmi Rezo were present at the
meeting. The team from the Institute was
welcomed by the Deputy Accountant-Gen-
eral, Mohd Salleh bin Mahmud, Tuan Haji
Abdul Ghani Haron and Er Beng Kiong.

Among the key issues discussed during
the meeting were the current status of the
negotiations process under both WTO and

The AFA Council Members posing for a group
photo with Brig. Gen. Tin Ayea, Chairman of
MAC and Accountant-General of Myanmar

GLC Meeting with the Accountant-General’s Office
ASEAN CCS as well as pertinent issues
affecting the profession in Malaysia in the
wake of globalisation and liberalisation.

At the same time, the meeting also raised
the need to inculcate awareness on the
necessity of professional qualifications to
comply with international standards. The
committee also stressed on the importance
for local graduates to gain the professional
accountancy qualifications so that they can
be recognised and be able to compete in
the dynamic business world.

Moving forward, the committee also
briefed the AG’s office on MIA’s leading
role in the negotiations process for the
other services sector namely taxation ser-
vices (CPC 863), management consultancy
services (CPC 865) and services related
to management consultancy (CPC 866) and
its focus of encouraging the export of
project management skills instead of the
traditional accounting, auditing and book-

keeping services (CPC 862);
On the same note, MIA’s active involve-

ment in both the National Professional Ser-
vices Export Council (NAPSEC) and the
Professional Services Development Corpo-
ration (PSDC) were also mentioned. Dur-
ing the meeting, the AG’s office was also
updated on the Practice Review
Programme which was officially launched
early this year.

The AGO on the whole was satisfied and
supported the initiatives taken by MIA in
overseeing the whole process of
globalisation and liberalisation. The meet-
ing was concluded with the understanding
that the AGO will continue supporting as
well as assisting financially or otherwise,
MIA’s efforts in safeguarding and promot-
ing the interests of the local accountancy
ser vice providers in the wake of the
globalisation and liberalisation era. AN

AN

4th from left … Abdul Samad Haji Alias, MIA President; Nik Mohd Hasyudeen Yusoff,
YBhg. Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri Mohamed; YM Raja Dato Seri Abdul Aziz Raja Salim;
Robert Khaw; Khairul Azmi Rezo and Annamalai Singaram
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Successful launch … (L-R) YBhg Datuk Nur Jazlan Tan Sri Mohamed, Albert Wong, YBhg
Dato’ Abdul Halim Mohyiddin, Yeo Tek Ling and Prof. Dr. Ibrahim Kamal Abdul Rahman,
Dean, Faculty of Accounting, UiTM

New Route to Accountancy

In a move to enable more people to be-
come qualified accountants in Malaysia,
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

(MIA) has announced the launch of the
MIA Qualifying Examinations (MIA QE)
as an alternative pathway for accounting,
business and finance graduates to qualify
as accountants.

The examination is intended to cater to
aspiring accountants who do not possess
a qualification recognised by MIA as stated
in Part One and Part Two of the First
Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967.

At present, MIA recognises the account-
ing degrees offered by Universiti Malaya,
Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Universiti
Teknologi Mara (UiTM) Universiti Utara
Malaysia, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Inter-
national Islamic University Malaysia and
Universiti Sains Malaysia, in addition to
professional accounting qualifications.

At a press conference, MIA Examinations
Committee Chairman, Datuk Abdul Halim
Mohyiddin, said students who possess quali-
fications relating to accounting, business or
finance presently not recognised under the
Accountants Act 1967 but recognised by the
Public Services Department or other quali-
fications approved by the MIA Council will
be eligible to sit for the examination.

“This includes overseas graduates and stu-
dents who have graduated from twinning and
3+0 programmes. However, all qualifications
will be vetted by MIA’s Examinations Com-
mittee and must meet the requirements for
eligibility set by the Institute,” he added.

According to MIA rules, the qualification
should not be lower than a first degree and
must contain a minimum of 60 per cent ac-
counting content.

Candidates will be required to sit and
pass four papers — namely, Taxation, Au-
diting and Assurance Services, Business
& Company Law and Advanced Financial
Accounting & Reporting — in order to
qualify for a Certificate of Completion.

Students can decide to register for all AN

four papers at one sitting or stagger the
papers over a maximum of four years. In
addition to the fee of RM200 per paper, an
additional registration fee of RM200, valid
for two years, has to be paid to the Insti-
tute upon application for candidacy.

MIA has appointed UiTM as the exami-
nation body to conduct the MIA QE for a
period of two years. UiTM will set the ex-
amination and appoint examiners.

“To date MIA has not approved or en-
dorsed the appointment of any party to
conduct preparatory courses for the pur-
pose of the MIA QE and candidates are
advised to be wary of such claims by any
party,“ said Abdul Halim.

The first examination is scheduled for Sep-
tember. Application forms can be downloaded
from the MIA website at www.mia.org.my

Successful candidates will be issued cer-
tificates of candidacy enabling them to ap-
ply to sit for the examination.

All application forms must reach MIA at
least 60 days before the examination date.

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

Developing Enterprise Risk
Management Framework

Managing risk has always been important. However with the increasing rate of
change and the growing uncertainty in the business world, effective risk man-
agement is becoming increasingly necessary.

With this in mind and to assist business entities to beef-up its risk management frame-
work the Continuous Professional Education Department of the Institute organised a
workshop on Developing Enterprise Risk Management Framework on 9 January 2003.

During the workshop, Patrick Ow, a risk management division specialist of a multinational
company was invited to share his knowledge and expertise in this area. He pointed out that
risk management is more than just avoiding business risks. It is about identifying opportuni-
ties and it can be applied to all strategic areas in business like corporate planning, project
management, asset management, financial management, information management, human
resource management and employee health and safety and contracting.

Group session... Identifying risk and how to manage it.

AN
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David Tiang, MIA Sarawak Branch
Chairman and also the Branch Tax
Committee Chairman paid a cour-

tesy call on  Mohammad Sait Ahmad, head
of IRB Sarawak, who was recently trans-
ferred from Miri. Mohammad Sait carries
with him many years of experience but he
lamented that he is now wearing three hats
and his role is 80 per cent administration,
and jested that his assistant is responsible
for his annual tax returns.

Tiang took the opportunity to introduce
members of the Sarawak Branch Tax Com-
mittee to Mohammad Sait and to discuss
the annual MIA-IRB dialogue in Kuching
and issues on educating the public, accoun-
tants and tax agents on their various re-
sponsibilities in maintaining proper
records and reporting.

Mohammad Sait said that some clients
do not trust accountants and will look for
the cheapest tax agent in town but accoun-
tants have to ensure they do the job the
way it should be done. He jokingly com-
mented that maybe accountants should
charge fees by using a weighing machine
for the boxes of bills, invoices, receipts,

MIA Sarawak Tax Committee Members at IRB Kuching Office (R-L) Kenny Chong, Vivien
Law, Wong Yii Chiong, Mohammad Sait (IRB), David Tiang, Teo Kin Mia, Oh Kim Leong,
Regina Lau, Philip Su and Farehan Hussin

MIA SARAWAK BRANCH

Sarawak Tax Committee Call on New IRB Head
etc. sent for bookkeeping. He observed
that accountants in public practice with
three years experience are as well versed
in tax matters as any IRB officer of 10
years ser vice. Therefore accountants
must ensure clients know they are good
at their job and thus build good client re-
lationships.

Mohammad Sait is keen on basketball

and fishing and he had co-organised games
with the MIA Miri Chapter. He is agree-
able that MIA can promote a good work-
ing relationship with IRB officers through
social activities outside the less stressful
office environment. This was duly noted
by Teo Kin Mia, Chairman of the Sports &
Social Committee who is drawing up his
yearly plan of activities. AN

Tapping Government Audit Work

M ore than 150 participants at-
tended the half-day forum on
Doing an Outsourced Government

Audit in Kuala Lumpur on 22 January 2003.
Organised by the Public Practice Commit-
tee together with the Continuous Profes-

Briefing the practitioners … (L-R) Auditor-General, YBhg Datuk Hadenan
Abdul Jalil; YBhg Dato’ Abdul Halim Mohyiddin and Mohd Afrizan Husain

Participants at the half-day forum

sional Education Department of the Malay-
sian Institute of Accountants (MIA), the half
day forum was conducted to update mem-
bers on some of the important requirements
as well as some pointers on how to conduct
successful audit work for the government.

Specially invited to speak at the forum
were the Auditor-General, YBhg Datuk
Hadenan Abdul Jalil; MIA Council Mem-
ber, YBhg. Dato’ Abdul Halim Mohyiddin
and Member of the Institute’s Public Prac-
tice Committee, Mohd Afrizan Husain. AN
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MIA SABAH BRANCH

Tawau Takes Off At Top Gear

Ho Yung Kong, Tawau Chapter Chair-
man and his newly appointed chap-
ter committee members of 2003, im-

mediately shifted into top gear and planned
the first Tawau Chapter members dinner
at a local hotel, organised an evening talk
and made a courtesy call all over one week-
end in January.

Alexandra Thien, Branch Chairman,
who represented MIA Sabah Branch at
the Tawau dinner also attended the
evening talk conducted on the same day.
The speaker was D.C. Subramanyan,
Manager of Taiko Plantations. His presen-
tation was on Plantation Management and
he provided interesting coverage on nurs-
ery to mature planting, pest and disease
control, how to maximise fruit bunch and
whether palm oil is healthy. Operating sta-
tistics, e.g. number of trees per acre, yield
per hectare, tons of fertilisers per hect-
are, etc. was useful information for audi-
tors whose audit clients are in the oil palm
production business.

While in Tawau, Thien together with
members of the Tawau Chapter Commit-
tee visited the Customs Department. They
were told earlier that due to his tight sched-
ule, the head of Customs was unable to
meet them on that weekend. However,
Ramli bin Johari, Penolong Kanan
Pengarah Kastams made the exceptional
effort to return from Kota Kinabalu on the
day solely to get to know the Branch Chair-
man and the Tawau Committee and he
welcomed them with a spread of local deli-

Group photograph of Tawau Chapter Committee Members and Sabah Branch Chairman
together with officers of Jabatan Kastam Di Raja Malaysia

Enjoying and appreciating the hospitality of Jabatan Kastam Di Raja Malaysia

(L-R) Sia Tiong Guan (member) Alexandra Thien (Sabah Branch Chairman) Chang Yee Vui
(Tawau Committee) and Wong Fung Yin (member) at the Tawau Chapter Members Dinner

D.C. Subramanyan receiving a memento
from Alexandra Thien (Sabah Branch
Chairman) after his presentation on
Plantation Management

cacies with coffee and tea. Several issues
on Sales Tax and Service Tax were raised
and ways to complement the Customs De-
partment on sales/service tax collections
were discussed. Thien thanked Ramli for

his generous offer to be involved in semi-
nars or talks organised by MIA as he
opined that his officers have a better knowl-
edge of certain related subject matters like
Service Tax. AN

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S
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N E W S  F R O M  P R O F E S S I O N A L  B O D I E S

Ron Metcalf (pix), CPA Australia
Director from Perth, Australia,
 was invited by the Malaysian Di-

vision to give one-day seminars on Quality
Assurance in Public Practice to members
in Kuala Lumpur and Penang on 2 and 4
December 2002 respectively. This is a new
area in Malaysia which aroused much in-
terest, as it provided scope for self-regula-
tion of quality. More than 60 members
turned up in Kuala Lumpur and about 80
in Penang.

Ron, a reviewer for the past 10 years in
Australia, spoke on how to prepare for QA
Review; simple and effective quality con-
trols; effect on staff, clients; selection of
reviewers as well as ‘how QA impacted on
my practice’. He also gave some guide to
the audit of small entities.

To raise higher standards among audi-
tors in the country, it is understood that
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA) is discussing a quality assurance

QUALITY ASSURANCE IN PUBLIC PRACTICE

review on audit firms in January 2003. Lam
Kee Soon, Chairman of the Public Practice
Committee CPA Australia Malaysia Divi-
sion as well as Chairman of Practice Re-
view Committee in MIA, said that the re-
view is expected to help promote investor

confidence and advance the quality and
standard of corporate governance.

Metcalf said the review would definitely
set a higher standard among auditors in
the country and will in time be a useful pro-
motional tool for small practitioners. AN

Ron Metcalf,
CPA Australia Director

The Malaysian Finance Association (MFA) was established
in September, 1998. The objectives of the Association are
to stimulate interest in financial research and to encourage

discussion on finance-related issues with special reference to
Malaysia. The Association promotes symposiums, forums, dialogues
and activities on current financial and economic issues. The
Association aims to play a supportive role in promoting Kuala Lumpur
as a regional financial centre.

MFA has been organizing annual symposiums in collaboration with
various academic institutions. The first symposium was organized
by Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia in 1999. Due to the encouraging
support and cooperation from sponsors and finance academics
and practitioners, the symposiums are successfully held every year
since then with Universiti Malaya, the International Islamic
University Malaysia, and Universiti Sains Malaysia being the hosts
for the second (2000), third (2001) and fourth (2002) symposiums,
respectively.

In carrying on the tradition, the Multimedia University takes the

MALAYSIAN FINANCE ASSOCIATION
5th Annual Symposium, April 23-24, 2003, Multimedia University, Cyberjaya, Selangor

For details please visit :  http://www.mmu.edu.my/~fom/mfa2003.html

Enquiries on the Symposium, registration and sponsorship may be made to :

The Secretariat, MFA’s 5 th Annual Symposium, Faculty of Management, Multimedia University, 63100 Cyberjaya, Selangor

Tel :  03-8312 5676, 8312 5722   Fax :  03- 8312 5590   e-mail: mfa2003@mmu.edu.my

proactive move to be the first private university to host the 2003 5th
Annual MFA Symposium. This will be held at the Cyberjaya Campus
on April 23-24, 2003. The theme for the Symposium is
“Competitiveness and Stability :  Financial Strategies in Malaysia.”
About 50 research papers will be presented in the academic parallel
sessions. In addition, the Symposium will feature a keynote address,
a panel discussion on teaching and research in finance, and a tutorial
session. The tutorial session will be on “Recent Advances in
Econometric Research Methodology in Finance and Economics”
conducted by Professor Mansur Masih from King Fahd University
of Petroleum and Minerals, Saudi Arabia.

Interested members of the public are invited to participate. The
Symposium is particularly relevant to all those involved in finance
and related areas : academics, accountants, researchers, analysts,
brokers, investors, portfolio managers, regulators, bankers, etc.
Registration fees are RM150 (MFA members), RM200 (non-
members) and RM100 (college/university students). Intending
participants may also enroll as an MFA member now and get the
reduced registration fees.
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RISING TO

THE CHINA

CHALLENGE

N E W S  F R O M  P R O F E S S I O N A L  B O D I E S

C O L U M N S

Businesses need to reposition their
roles and competitive edge, and
recognise their strengths and

weaknesses to benefit from the rise of
China as a new economic dragon, accord-
ing to Datuk David Chua, Deputy Secre-
tary-General of the Associated Chinese
Chambers of Commerce and Industry
(ACCCIM). He said this while addressing
a group of 20 CEOs and Directors at the
11th CIMA CEO Forum organised by
CIMA in October last year.

At the forum themed China — the New
Economic Dragon :  Opportunities and
Threats, Datuk Chua also said that there
needs to be a re-orientation of attitudes, val-
ues and approaches at the personal, corpo-
rate and sectoral levels to take on the new
challenges posed by China. He said, “While
China develops, it would not want to do so
to the detriment of the development of other
countries. China is pursuing a policy of en-
gagement especially with developing
economies, which will become trading part-
ners and new markets in the future. A well
structured economic and framework of co-
operation augurs well for China and its trad-
ing partners due to the complementarity in
each other’s roles and functions.”

“If we are able to pursue a mutually ben-
eficial policy of a broad framework, Ma-
laysia can actually integrate itself with the
growth path of China. China will provide
the world economy with a new source of
growth, pushing forward the momentum
hitherto led by the US, EU and Japan,”
Datuk Chua added.

Meanwhile, Dato’ Lee Ow Kim, President
of CIMA Malaysia Division and Chairman
of the FMM Northern Branch, warned
businessmen that China will continue to
pose a major challenge to competing econo-
mies in attracting high levels of foreign di-

ACCA EMPLOYERS’
AND ACHIEVERS’ NIGHT

Lee Mei Yi, World Prize winner for Paper C2  — “Information for Management” received the
award from Abdul Rahim Hamid, President of ACCA Malaysia Advisory Committee (MAC)

ACCA achievers for Dip FM and CAT June 2002 examinations!

More than 140 people attended
the ACCA Employers’ and
Achievers’ Night recently held

at Nikko Hotel, Kuala Lumpur. The event
was organised by ACCA to introduce the
ACCA Malaysia Employers’ Network
(AMEN) and to honour various achievers
who excelled in the recent Diploma in Fi-
nancial Management (Dip FM) and Certi-
fied Accounting Technician (CAT) exami-
nations.

The highlight of the night was the
prize and certificate presentation to 27
achievers who won first, second and
third placing in the ACCA Diploma in

Financial Management
(DipFM) and 21 achievers of Certified
Accounting Technician (CAT) for the
June 2002 examinations. The achievers
received their certificates from Abdul
Rahim Hamid, President of ACCA’s Ma-
laysia Advisory Committee (MAC).

Special awards were also given to World
Prize Winners; Chim Wai Chong and Lee
Mei Yi who won first placing in the world
for their CAT papers. Chim Wai Chong
won first place for Paper B1 — Maintain-
ing Financial Records and Accounts while
Lee won for Paper C2 — Information for
Management. AN
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N E W S  F R O M  P R O F E S S I O N A L  B O D I E S

C O L U M N S

Guest speaker, Datuk David Chua (left) with Dato’ Haji Mohd Zuki (centre), Chairman of
Island and Peninsular Berhad and Merlyn Kasimir (right), CEO of MATRADE

Dato’ O. K. Lee, Guest Speaker at the CIMA CEO Forum

AN

rect investment (FDI), given that China has
a large domestic market which is growing,
and that it is liberalising its FDI regime. In
addition, China has both skilled and un-
skilled manpower and its labour costs are
lower than in Malaysia. A cause for concern
is that Malaysia’s FDI inflow (approved ap-
plications) was USD 2.95 billion in 2001 and
USD 0.54 billion for the first half of 2002.

Dato’ Lee also proposed some strategies
for businesses in the face of challenges
from China. He said, “Successful busi-
nesses will be those that establish and
maintain highly reputable brand names.
This is because very few commodities are
out of reach for the Chinese industry which
can marshal cheap labour and high-tech
automation at the same time. High tech
products with good “look and feel” will sell
well to the vast new Chinese middle class.
Honda is already discovering that its Ac-
cord cars sell at a premium in China. Busi-
nessmen should also adopt good market-
ing strategies. You can build up global
marketing channels for China-made goods
and gain a share of their success.”

Another strategy proposed by Dato’ Lee
is “internalising” or making Chinese com-
panies into your own companies. He said,
“Malaysia should create the most condu-
cive total environment for attracting and
retaining the best companies and the most
talented individuals to domicile in the coun-
try. These companies can be registered
and listed on the local stock exchange and
individuals can be given permanent resi-
dence or citizenship.”

“If you can’t beat them, join them. We
should liberalise and open up. Do what
China does and do it better and more
innovatively. The final success factor is the
excellent human resources that we have
in both the public and private sectors in
Malaysia,” he added.

CEO of the Malaysian External Trade
Corporation (MATRADE), Merlyn
Kasimir, viewed the growth of China as a
challenge to Malaysian businessmen. He
said, “We should look at China as a poten-
tial source of FDI and efforts are currently
being made to promote Malaysia as a good
location for FDI. China can also use Ma-

laysia as a gateway to the growing Asean
market. And with China’s entry into WTO,
tariffs for industrial products are expected
to come down to nine per cent and agricul-
tural products to 15.5 per cent in 2005.
China’s commitment to WTO regulations
and trading rules will make it easier for
businessmen to do business with China.”
He added, “Another positive area is that
there will be a big market for building
materials in the next few years, as China
prepares for the Beijing Olympics in 2008.”

Another forum participant, Ng Jui Sia,

Managing Director of F&N Coca-Cola,
raised the possibility of Malaysia being the
gateway to the Muslim world for China.
“This is an opportunity to consider because
Malaysia has an understanding of what the
Muslim world wants,” he said.

“China as a new economic dragon is real.
If we do not do anything now and consider
the options that we can take, we’ll be out
of business very soon,” concluded forum
Chairman, Tuan Haji Razali Mohd Amin,
Managing Director of Behn Meyer (M)
Sdn Bhd.
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List of New Books, Available in the
MIA Resource Centre

CAPA-ADB Training of Trainers, Workshop
Material, Kuala Lumpur :  CAPA, 2002.

Call No. :  657.07 CAP

Article of Merit, 2002 Competition, New York :
IFAC, 2002.

Call No. :  658.1511 INT

Managing Risk to Enhance Stakeholder Value,
New York :  IFAC, November 2002.

Call No. :  658.155 INT

Determinants of FDI Flows to Developing Econo-
mies :  Evidence from Malaysia, by Zubair Hasan,
Kuala Lumpur :  International Islamic Univer-
sity Malaysia, 2003.

Call No. :  332.671 ZUB

Model Annual Report, CPAA Holdings Berhad,
Annual Report 2002, Kuala Lumpur :  CPAA
Australia, BDO Binder, 2002.

Call No. :  657.3 MOD

The 2003 INSOL Directory, Oxfordshire : GTI
Specialist Publishers, 2002.

Call No. :  336.368025 INT

Sample Annual Report 2002, Kuala Lumpur :
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, 2003.

Call No. :  657.32 MAL

The Impact of Globalisation on Accountancy Edu-
cation, by Gert H. Karreman, London :  Inter-
national Accounting Standards Committee
Foundation, 2002.

Call No. :  657.072 KAR

Successful Services Exporting :  Training Mod-
ules : Government Participants, New York :  In-
ternational Trade Centre, UNCTAD/WTO,
2002.

Call No. :  338.47 SUC

Successful Services Exporting :  Training Mod-
ules :  Association Participants, New York :  In-
ternational Trade Centre, UNCTAD/WTO,
2002.

Call No. :  338.47 SUC

Income Tax Non-Compliance in Malaysia, by
Mohani Abdul, Petaling Jaya :  Prentice Hall,
2003.

Call No. :  336.2409595 MOH

A Manual on the National Land Code, Kuala
Lumpur : Koperasi Pegawai Pentadbiran dan
Pengurusan Tanah Malaysia Berhad, 2002.

Call No. : 346.044 MAN

AUDIT FIRMS
REGISTERED
WITH MIA
FROM 16 JANUARY 2003
UNTIL 15 FEBRUARY 2003

NON-AUDIT FIRMS
REGISTERED
WITH MIA
FROM 16 JANUARY 2003
UNTIL 15 FEBRUARY 2003

AUDIT FIRM NAME AF NO

SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN

K.L. Ng & Co. 1478
18C, Jalan 54
Desa Jaya Commercial Centre
52100 Kepong
Tel :  03-6280 1832   Fax :  03-6280 2832
e-mail :  kingaf@tm.net.my

WILAYAH PERSEKUTUAN

Kian Choong & Associates 1480
18-3-1 Jalan Prima 7
Pusat Niaga Metro Prima, Metro Prima
52100 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  012-323 1232

IMN & Partners 1481
14-1A, 14th Floor, Pertama Complex
Jalan Tuanku Abdul Rahman
50100 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  03-2691 8200   Fax :  03-2698 5125

BDO International 1483
15th Floor, Wisma Hamzah-Kwong Hing
No. 1 Leboh Ampang
50100 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  03-2072 2755   Fax :  03-2078 7045
e-mail :  bdo@bdo-malaysia.com

Financial Derivatives :  Markets and Applications
in Malaysia, by Obiyathulla Ismath Bacha, Serdang
:  Penerbit Univeristi Putra Malaysia, 2002.

Call No. : 332.6450595 BAC

Money Laundering — Prevention and Compli-
ance 2001/2002, London :  ACCA, 2002.

Call No. :  364.168 MON

The WTO, the Post-Doha Agenda and the Future of
the Trade System :  A Development Perspective, by
Martin Khor, Penang :  Third World Network, 2002.

Call No. :  382 KHO

Global Financial Stability Report :  Market De-
velopments and Issues, Washington D.C. :  Inter-
national Monetary Fund, 2002.

Call No. :  332.152 GLO

2003 Malaysian Master Tax Guide, 20th ed.,
Singapore :  CCH Asia Pte Ltd., 2003.

Call No. :  343.595052 MAL

NON-AUDIT FIRM NAME NF NO

JOHOR DARUL TAKZIM

T. Ravi & Co. 0335
MIC Building, 4th Floor
49 Jalan Segget
80000 Johor Bahru
Tel :  07-224 3253   Fax :  07-223 5228

Hu & Co. 0337
106 Jalan Sri Pelangi
Taman Pelangi
80400 Johor Bahru
Tel :  012-717 0001

SABAH

PK Lee & Co. 0338
Lot 28-3, Block F
Damai Plaza, Phase 4
Luyang, P.O. Box 16628
88871 Kota Kinabalu
Tel :  088-257232   Fax :  088-258232

WILAYAH PERSEKUTUAN

Kenneth David & Co. 0336
6A, Persiaran Zaaba
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail
60000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  03-7727 2100   Fax :  03-7727 3010

Azidah & Associates 0339
16th Floor, Room 11
Menara TA One
22 Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  019-228 3232   Fax :  03-2072 2369

RD Management Services 0340
7B-1, Jalan Medan Tuanku
50300 Kuala Lumpur
Tel :  03-2697 1705   Fax :  03-2697 1855

Assriza Samad & Co. 0341
40B Tingkat 1, Jalan 6/3
Taman Komersil, Pandan Indah
55100 Kuala Lumpur

SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN

S.C. Chan & Associates 0342
25-2B, Block C
Sunwaymas Commercial Centre
Jalan 1/3B
47301 Petaling Jaya




